
TOWN OF MELBOURNE BEACH 

TOWN COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 

August 19, 2020 

AGENDA PACKET 

1



2



TOWN COMMISSION MEETING PACKAGE 

MEETING DATE:  August 19, 2020 

 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 

 

AGENDA ....................................................................................................................................................... 5 

BOARDS & COMMITTEES ...................................................................................................................... 9 

CONSENT AGENDA ................................................................................................................................ 25  

PUBLIC HEARINGS ..................................................................................................................................71 

       A. First Reading of Ordinance 2020-04 .................................................................................................71 

OLD BUSINESS ..........................................................................................................................................79 

       A. Review and possible action regarding Ordinance 7A-67 related to Boats & RVs………………….79 
       B. Review Social Media Policy……………………………………………………………………… 107 

NEW BUSINESS .......................................................................................................................................111 

A.  Confirm Qualified Candidates and Order Names to be printed on the November 3, 2020 
Municipal General Election and Special Election Ballot  ……………………………………….111 

B. Consideration of extending or ending Emergency Order 2020-06 and 2020-07 ……………….171 
C. Review Proposal from Florida Solar Energy Council on Performing and Energy Analysis and 

Solar Feasibility Assessment ……………………………………………………………………196 
D. Consideration of allowing artwork to be painted on the Town’s Stormwater drains...…………207 
E. Consideration and Review of Quote from Computer Experts for new Software Licenses.…… 211 
F. Consideration of moving money from the Reserve Account into a 360 day Certificate of Deposit 

account with an estimated 0.05%* annual percentage yield, which translates to $498.35 at 360 
days………………………………………………………………………………………………213 

G. Consideration of Budget Resolution 2020-05 ………………………………………………… 217 
H. Consideration of Reallocation of Funds from FY 2019-2020 Fire Control Budget…………….221 
I. Consideration of request that the Town Commission give the Police Pension Board the authority 

to adopt required tax compliance changes by policy and then request the Town Commission to add 
by Ordinance at a later 
date………………………………………………………………………………………………225 

J. Discussion and possible action related to two options that may offer safer bike travel in Town – 
Public Works Supervisor Davis………………………………………………………………   231 

STAFF REPORTS.....................................................................................................................................237 

ACTION ITEMS .......................................................................................................................................273 



4



Town of Melbourne Beach 

REGULAR TOWN COMMISSION MEETING 
AUGUST 19, 2020 at 6:30 p.m. 

COMMUNITY CENTER – 509 OCEAN AVENUE 

AGENDA 
PUBLIC NOTICE 

The Town Commission will conduct a Regular Town Commission Meeting 
on Wednesday August 19, 2020 in the Community Center 

to address the items below 

Due to the effects of COVID-19, recognizing the Centers of Disease Control social distancing 
guidelines, and as authorized and in compliance with Governor Ron DeSantis Executive Orders, 
attendance in the Community Center will be limited to 28 people. Those in excess of that number 
will be accommodated outside the community center where the meeting will be broadcast live in 
an audible format. Should members of the public seated outside wish to be heard, comment cards 
will be available to fill out and those who do will be invited into the Community Center for the 
purpose of speaking at the appropriate time. Anyone who wishes to provide public input without 
personally appearing at the meeting may do so by sending an email to 
townclerk@melbournebeachfl.org. All emails must be received prior to 4:00 p.m. on Tuesday, 
August 18, 2020. All emails will be provided to the Mayor and each of the Town Commission 
Members. Should you wish to have your comment read aloud by Town staff at the meeting, 
please indicate that in your email. Your full name and address must be included and will be read 
aloud. The reading of public comments received by email will be limited to three (3) minutes.  

Commission Members: 
Mayor Jim Simmons 
Vice Mayor Wyatt Hoover  
Commissioner Steve Walters 
Commissioner Sherrie Quarrie 
Commissioner Corey Runte 

Staff Members: 
Town Manager Elizabeth Mascaro 
Town Clerk Jennifer Torres 
Town Attorney Clifford Repperger 
Finance Manager Jennifer Kerr 

5



Notice: Commission discussion and possible action may occur during any Commissioner Meeting. The 
following sections of the Agenda are always subject to such discussion and possible action without further 
motion by the Commission: Changes to the Agenda, Public Hearings, Old Business, and New Business. 

The public is advised that members of the Town Commission may be in attendance and participate in 
proceedings of the board. Attorney General Opinions (AGO) AGO 91-95, AGO 98-14, AGO 2000-68. 

PURSUANT TO SECTION 286.0105, FLORIDA STATUTES, THE TOWN HEREBY ADVISES THE 
PUBLIC THAT: In order to appeal any decision made at this meeting, you will need a verbatim transcript 
of the proceedings. It will be your responsibility to ensure such a record is made. Such person must 
provide a method for recording the proceedings verbatim as the Town does not do so. 

In accordance with the Americans with Disability Act and Section 286.26, Florida Statutes, persons 
needing special accommodations for this meeting shall, at least 5 days prior to the meeting, contact the 
Office of the Town Clerk at (321) 724-5860 or Florida Relay System at 711. 

I. Call to Order – Led by Mayor Simmons

II. Roll Call

III. Pledge of Allegiance and Moment of Silence

IV. Presentations

V. Boards and Committees

A. Review of Town Board Volunteer Applications to fill Board vacancies

VI. Public Comments

After being acknowledged by the Mayor, members of the public should state their
name and address for the record. The Commission encourages citizens to prepare
their comments in advance. Each individual will have three (3) minutes to
address the Commission on any topic(s) related to Town business not on the
Agenda.

VII. Approval of the Agenda

VII. Consent Agenda

A. Site Plan Review for 310 Fourth Avenue, Melbourne Beach
B. Site Plan Review for 222 Surf Road, Melbourne Beach
C. Reappointment of Charles Cain to the Board of Adjustment for a term of 3

years
D. Reappointment of John Haig to the Board of Adjustment for a term of 3

years
E. Reappointment of Kelli Hunsucker to the Environmental Advisory Board

for a term of 2 years
F. Reappointment of Genie Gold to the History Center Board for a term of 2

years

6



G.  Reappointment of Jo Solley-Hansen to the History Preservation & 
Awareness Board Center Board for a term of 2 years 

 
  

IX. Public Hearings  
 

A.  First Reading of Ordinance 2020-04 amending Section 7A-102, Appendix A, 
Town Code of Melbourne Beach, Florida (Land Development Code) – Town 
Attorney Repperger 

 
  X.  Old Business 
 
       A.  Review and possible action regarding Ordinance 7A-67 related to Boats & RVs – 

Commissioner Quarrie 
 
       B. Review Social Media Policy.  Provide edits and changes if necessary – Town 

Manager Mascaro 
 
  XI. New Business   
 

A.  Confirm Qualified Candidates and Order Names to be printed on the November 
3, 2020 Municipal General Election and Special Election Ballot – Town Clerk 
Torres 
 

B. Consideration of extending or ending Emergency Order 2020-06 and 2020-07 –  
Mayor Simmons 
 

C. Review Proposal from Florida Solar Energy Council on Performing and Energy 
Analysis and Solar Feasibility Assessment – Town Manager Mascaro  
 

D. Consideration of allowing artwork to be painted on the Town’s Stormwater drains 
– Town Manager Mascaro 
 

E. Consideration and Review of Quote from Computer Experts for new Software 
Licenses – Town Manager Mascaro  
 

F. Consideration of moving money from the Reserve Account into a 360 day 
Certificate of Deposit account with an estimated 0.05%* annual percentage yield, 
which translates to $498.35 at 360 days – Finance Manager Kerr 
 

G. Consideration of Budget Resolution 2020-05 – Finance Manager Kerr 
 

H. Consideration of Reallocation of Funds from FY 2019-2020 Fire Control Budget 
– Fire Chief Gavin Brown 
 

I. Consideration of request that the Town Commission give the Police Pension 
Board the authority to adopt required tax compliance changes by policy and then 

7



request the Town Commission to add by Ordinance at a later date - Attorney 
Bonni Jensen on behalf of Police Pension Board.  
 

J. Discussion and possible action related to two options that may offer safer bike 
travel in Town – Public Works Supervisor Davis 
 

XII. Staff Reports   
 

A. Town Attorney Report 
B. Town Manager Report 
C. Town Clerk Report  
D. Departmental Reports: 

1. Building Department 
2. Public Works Department 
3. Code Enforcement 
4. Police Department 
5. Fire Department 
6. Finance Department 

 
XIII. Town Commission Comments   
 

A. General Comments 
B. Review of Commission Action List 

 
XIV.   Adjournment 
 

8



Attachments: Application and resumes attached 

Date Prepared: August 11, 2020 

Prepared By: Town Clerk Torres 

Meeting Date: August 19, 2020 
 
Agenda Category: 

 Proclamations & Awards  Public Hearings 
 Presentations  Old Business 

X Boards & Committees  New Business 
 Consent  Other:  

 
Subject: Town Board Volunteer Applications (3)  

Recommended Action: Review of Volunteer applications to fill Board 
vacancies 

Background Information: Application and resumes for:  
• Thomas Jones (BOA, Parks, PZ, EAB) 
• Jamie Guth (EAB) 
• Lisa Rubenstein (BOA, EAB, Parks, PZ) 

 

9



10



11



12



13



14



15



16



17



18



19



20



21



22



23



24



Attachments: - RTCM Draft Minutes from July 15, 2020 
 
- Site Plan Reviews for: 

• 310 Fourth Avenue, Melbourne Beach 
• 222 Surf Road, Melbourne Beach 

 
- Reappoint Board Members 

Updated applications attached for:  
• Charles Cain (BOA)  
• John Haig (BOA) 
• Genie Gold (HCB) 
• Kelli Hunsucker (EAB) 

Date Prepared: August 14, 2020 

Prepared By: Town Clerk Torres  
Mark Meyers, SAFEBuilt, CBO, CFM 
Town Clerk Torres 

Meeting Date: August 19, 2020 RTCM 
 
Agenda Category: 

 Proclamations & Awards  Public Hearings 
 Presentations  Old Business 
 Boards & Committees  New Business 

X Consent  Other:  
 
Subject: 200715 RTCM Draft Minutes & Site Plan Approvals (2) 

& updated Town Volunteer Board Applications (4) 

Recommended Action: - Consider approval of 200715 RTCM Draft Minutes 
- Approve site plans as submitted. Planning & Zoning 

approved each of the three (2) site plans during the 
August 4, 2020 Board Meeting. 

- Reappoint Board Members 

Background Information: See attached reports. 
 

25



26



Town of Melbourne Beach 
 

REGULAR TOWN COMMISSION MEETING 
 

WEDNESDAY JULY 15, 2020 @ 6:30 pm 
COMMUNITY CENTER – 509 OCEAN AVENUE 

 

 
DRAFT MINUTES 

 
 
 

Commission Members: 
Mayor Jim Simmons 

Vice Mayor Wyatt Hoover 
Commissioner Steve Walters 

Commissioner Sherrie Quarrie 
Commissioner Corey Runte 

 
Staff Members: 

Town Manager Elizabeth Mascaro 
Town Clerk Jennifer Torres 

Town Attorney Clifford Repperger 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

27



 
I. Call to Order  

 
Vice Mayor Hoover called the meeting to order at 6:32 p.m. 
 

II. Roll Call  
 
Town Clerk Torres conducted roll call: 
 
Commissioners Present: 
Vice Mayor Wyatt Hoover  
Commissioner Steve Walters 
Commissioner Sherrie Quarrie 
Commissioner Corey Runte (via Zoom) 
 
Commissioners Absent: 
Mayor Jim Simmons  
 
Staff Present: 
 Town Manager Elizabeth Mascaro 
 Town Clerk Jennifer Torres 
 Town Attorney Clifford Repperger 
 Public Works Supervisor Tom Davis 
 

III. Pledge of Allegiance and Moment of Silence 
 
Led by Vice Mayor Hoover  
 

IV. Presentations 
 
V. Boards and Committees 

 

VI. Public Comments 
 

Kate Wilborn 
  502 2nd Avenue 

 
Ms. Wilborn asked for an update on storm water issues at Pine and 2nd. 
Vice Mayor Hoover said Public Works had been doing updates in the area and 
Town Manager Mascaro added that Public Works Supervisor Davis installed 
swales on Pine and 1st that seem to be moving a majority of the water off the 
street – and as far as flooding goes they hadn’t seen anymore.  
 
 Ms. Wilborn said she sent the Commission photos that show flooding and she 
didn’t think the Town is supposed to use resident’s property to percolate. She also 
said that swales seem like a nice idea - but they are more of a symbolic idea. 

28



Town Manager Mascaro responded that the area is in the Town’s right-of-way 
and the swales are not symbolic – they really work.  
 

VII.     Approval of the Agenda  
 

Commissioner Quarrie moved to approve the Agenda; Commissioner 
Walters seconded; Motion carried 4-0. 

 
VIII. Consent Agenda   

 
A. Approval of the June 17, 2020 Regular Town Commission Meeting Draft Minutes 

 
B. Site Plan Review for 408 Fifth Avenue, Melbourne Beach 

 
C. Site Plan Review for 410 Fourth Avenue Melbourne Beach 

 
D. Site Plan Review for 509 Sunset Boulevard Melbourne Beach 

 
Commissioner Walters noted that edits were made to the June 17, 2020 RTCM draft 
minutes after the agenda packet was sent out.  

 
Commissioner Walters moved to approve the Consent Agenda with 
the draft minutes approved as amended; Commissioner Quarrie 
seconded; Motion carried 4-0. 
 

IX. Public Hearings  

A.  First reading of Ordinance amending Section 7A-67, Appendix A, Town Code of 
Melbourne Beach, Florida (Land Development Code) 

Commissioner Walters moved to table the Ordinance based on the 
recommendation not to approve made by the Planning & Zoning 
Board;  

Vice Mayor Hoover asked the Town Manager if Planning & Zoning wanted to 
separate RVs and boats and Town Manager Mascaro said yes. 

Vice Mayor Hoover said he still feels they have some work to do on the Ordinance and 
referenced a few areas that he felt needed edits. He pointed out that in one area it 
refers to a “reasonable amount of time” for loading and unloading – and in another 
area it states the time allowed is 48-hours. He also felt it needed stronger language 
than “substantially screened by vegetation” and that they should have additional 
privacy requirements in consideration of neighborhood comments they received. 

Commissioner Walters said he made a motion to table it.  

Commissioner Quarrie seconded;  

29



Commissioner Quarrie said they need to wordsmith it a little better and go over the 
original minutes so they have a better understanding of what was discussed.  

Commissioner Walters said he wants to table the Ordinance and send it back to 
Planning & Zoning asking for their advice because they don’t accept it in its current 
structure and he felt they should let them make their suggestions and then send it 
back to the Commission.  

Commissioner Quarrie said when they brought us the draft we discussed the idea of 
separating RVs and boats and making two separate Ordinances but the discussion 
was not in favor of that and before they send it back to Planning & Zoning she wanted 
to have a clear understanding of what was discussed.  

Town Attorney Repperger said the Planning & Zoning Board felt 45-feet is 
appropriate for boats but not for RVs – the separation is in the size and the problem 
with the three that voted in favor of not recommending the Ordinance was the fact 
that RVs were included. He suggested the Commission table this until the next 
Commission meeting when they can look further into this issue.  

Vice Mayor Hoover asked if the Planning & Zoning Board wanted to keep the length 
of RVs at 26-feet – or at another length – and then asked if the Board had made any 
other suggestions?  

Town Attorney Repperger said they felt 45-feet was too long for RVs. 

Commissioner Quarrie said that’s why she felt a review of the minutes would give the 
Commission a better understanding and the opportunity to re-read their notes to see 
how they responded the first time  - she said it should be tabled until the next 
Commission meeting after they received those minutes.  

Vice Mayor Hoover called for a vote on Commissioner Walters’s motion to table the 
Ordinance.  

Motion carried 4-0. 

X. Old Business 
 

A. Consideration and possible action of BSE bid to write RPF for Orange Street 
project – Town Manager Mascaro 

Commissioner Walters moved to table the decision on this bid until they 
receive a cost; Commissioner Quarrie seconded;  

Commissioner Runte said he’d like to see a cost as well but thought they should   
agree to approve up to a certain amount so they don’t slow down the process.  

He suggested that amount be $5,000 or less depending on what services are 
included and the scope of work.  

30



Commissioner Walters said he wants the company to give us an actual number and 
then the Town Manager can call other municipalities to check and see if the price 
they quote is good. 

Commissioner Runte said he was just saying they should authorize up to $5,000 for 
now so the project can proceed and they don’t have to wait a month. 

Public Comments 

Tom Swenson 
217 Surf Road 

Mr. Swenson said that he feels like there are more issues on Riverside and the Key 
streets than on Orange. 

Town Manager Mascaro said the Town has a master plan and this particular roadway 
is part of the plan. The amount of water that goes down Orange and down the Key 
Streets and into the river has caused major issues and flooding and the only way to 
fix it is to re-engineer the road, add swales, remove the Miami curb, etc.  

Vice Mayor Hoover said the purpose of Miami curb is to funnel stormwater directly 
into the river - so the Town is trying to remove Miami curb and put in micro-swales.  

Public Works Supervisor Davis said there is a stormwater masterplan and it serves as 
the Town’s game plan and Orange was carefully chosen.  

Mr. Swenson said they should have a plan for the entire Town and execute it based 
on how much money we have to spend. He asked why they would put a bid out for 
something they don’t have a complete scope on and suggested they get a 
comprehensive RFP for the whole Town.  

Town Manager Mascaro said that is exactly what they are doing – but because of 
limited funds – they can only do one project per year.  

Commissioner Quarrie said that they are obligated to get an RFP on any project.  

Vice Mayor Hoover called for a vote on the motion to table this item made by 
Commissioner Walters and seconded by Commissioner Quarrie.  

Motion carried 4-0. 

B. Consideration and possible action to approve or amend Vacation Rentals 
Application Fee Schedule – Town Attorney Repperger 

Town Attorney Repperger said that in order to implement the vacation rental 
process, they must adopt a resolution to adopt fees.  

Commissioner Walters asked where he got the fees from and Town Attorney 
Repperger said they are comparable to what other local jurisdictions have done; 
adding that these are fees currently being used by Indian Harbour Beach. 

Vice Mayor Hoover remarked that they seem a bit steep. 

31



Town Attorney Repperger said the Commission is free to do what they want with 
them – keep them as is – adjust them, etc.  

Commissioner Walters said he just wanted to know where the fees came from so 
the Town isn’t gauging residents with exorbitant costs – and now that he is aware 
they are comparable to Indian Harbour Beach, he can explain where they came 
from. 

Commissioner Quarrie suggested extending the deadline to complete the 
registration application to September 1, 2020. 

Public Comments 

Ingrid Perkins 
510 3rd Avenue  

 
Ms. Perkins said she has lived here 10 years and she and her husband are artists 
with three children and they are very proud to be members of this community. 
She then asked how soon the fee schedule would be implemented. She has a room 
in her house that she rents on occasion - mostly to locals.  Her concern, aside 
from the fees, is having someone come in and inspect the room because she 
values her privacy. Town Manager Mascaro suggested she call or come to Town 
Hall to discuss the issue because her situation sounds more like a RB & B and 
that is a little different.  

Frank Lagrassa 
412 1st Ave.  

 
Mr. Lagrassa said he supports the Town’s effort to control vacation rentals. 

 
       Lauren Hardman 
       320 6th Ave 

Ms. Hardman felt that if you lower the fees it would lower the level of people who 
are renting and she would hate to see someone trash a place because fees were 
lowered.  

Commissioner Quarrie moved to approve the Resolution amending 
the vacation rentals application fee schedule; Commissioner Walters 
seconded; Motion carried 4-0. 

Commissioner Runte moved to extend the registration date of 
vacation rentals to September 1, 2020; Commissioner Quarrie 
seconded; Motion carried 4-0. 

XI. New Business   
 

A. Discussion and possible action of an emergency Ordinance related to Face Masks 
– Mayor Simmons 

 

32



Commissioner Quarrie stated that she works in a business that deals with the 
public and in the last two weeks every single person in there has been from out of 
Town. She went on to say that she is very torn about the whole situation and 
would like to get public input doesn’t want to be sued based on taking anyone’s 
rights away. 
 
Commissioner Runte said there are obviously concerns dealing with lawsuits but 
they don’t outweigh the negative repercussions and the cases of COVID going up.  

 
Public Comments 

 
Nancy Haney 
181 Ocean Ridge Drive 

 
Ms. Haney said that her understanding is that the Towns of Indialantic, Satellite 
Beach, and Cocoa Beach have mask mandates in place. She wanted to know if the 
Town of Melbourne Beach has conferred with them to see how they arrived at 
their decision and what the fines would be.  

 
Dan Brunger 
400 6th Ave. 

 
Mr. Brunger wanted the Commission to consider a few things. There are people 
like his mother who has congestive heart failure and can’t wear a mask and he 
would hate to see someone in town have those struggles. He asked if the 
Commission had considered the disposal of used masks, because he has seen 
them thrown on the ground – so they may want to consider providing extra trash 
receptacles. Mr. Brunger went on to ask if the original emergency order declared 
by the Mayor was still in effect.  

 
Town Attorney Repperger said the Order was made by a Proclamation initially 
adopted on March 18, and it was adopted pursuant to Chapter 16. The Order says 
a Declaration of Civil Emergency shall remain in effect until Governor’s Order 
expires –Sept 5, 2020. 

 
Cynthia Lagrassa  
412 1st Ave 

 
Ms. Lagrassa said she thinks a mask ordinance just gives the police more to do 
and creates a burden for them because they have more important things to do. 
Commissioner Runte responded by saying that in reference to it being a burden 
on businesses, when an employee tests positive when there is no mask order and 
that business has to be closed for two weeks – that is a burden.  
 

Ingrid Perkins 
510 3rd Avenue 

 

33



Ms. Perkins said that if they make a lot of small adjustments, it could work. She 
agreed with having a warning in place of a fine for a first infraction – so it’s more 
like a slap on the wrist and after the first infraction she feels the fine should be 
low – like $10 – and masks should only be required where people can’t safely 
social distance 6-feet apart and not require masks outside. Town Manager 
Mascaro said the orders make it clear they are not directed at outside activities  
 

Frank Lagrassa 
412 1st Ave 

 
Mr. Lagrassa said he is fundamentally opposed to the policy and he believes we I 
have reached a point of insanity with special interest groups having far too much 
to say.  
 

Mike Granger 
2103 Neptune Drive 

 
Mr. Granger said he doesn’t wear a mask but if he has to do it – he will. He said 
he doesn’t have a problem with it.  He agrees that a warning is better than a fine 
for infractions.  
 

Gabor Kishegyi 
221 Surf Road 

 
Mr. Kishegyi said he doesn’t have strong thoughts eithers way but feels masks 
should be strongly suggested in a close environment.  

 
Tom Winston 
217 Surf Road 

 
Mr. Winston said there is a CDC study from 2018 that said if you don’t have a 
N95 mask, the other kind does not help. He pointed to the Country of Sweden 
where he says, they never locked down and the death rate is lower. Vice Mayor 
Hoover responded by saying that recent studies show people who contract 
COVID still have significant impact after 60 days. It’s not just about death but 
also about continuous problems caused by the infection. 

 
Scott Fishman  
410 4th Avenue 

 
Mr. Fishman said he echoes the comments from those on the fence and wondered 
how kids would be affected by a mask order.  Vice Mayor Hoover said children 6-
year-of-age and younger are not required to wear masks.  

 
 
 
 

34



Lauren Hardman  
326 6th Avenue 

 
Ms. Hardman said she does not envy the Commission at all in the decisions they 
need to make. As a person who is high-risk, she is cautious but it’s not OK to 
accept even one death from it. As far as the Town – she feels people should be 
required to wear masks if they go into Town Hall. She said it shows respect and 
we’ve lost that in our society right now.  

 
Nancy Haney  
181 Ocean Ridge Drive 

 
Ms. Haney said Florida is very different than many other states – in that Florida 
is very relaxed when it comes to facemasks and social distancing. All the states 
treat it more seriously and people follow the common rules and guidelines. 
Whether we know if masks help or don’t – we should start with wearing masks.  
If you have a health condition, you can get a doctor’s note. Vice Mayor Hoover 
said he doesn’t think it would be appropriate for local police to ask for 
exemptions for health conditions. There has to be a certain amount of good will 
and personal responsibility.  
 
 Town Manager Mascaro said she spoke to the Police Chief about enforcement 
and it really will be up to the store owner to enforce. The police are going to take 
a very practical approach to this.  A lot of this will fall on the shoulders of the 
business owners. 
 
Commissioner Quarrie asked if any local businesses offered feedback. 
 
Town Manager Mascaro said the gas station had a few questions – but that’s the 
only one.  

 
Town Clerk Torres read two emails that were received for public comment. 

 
 

Ian Kennedy 
511 Magnolia Drive 

  
Good evening Commissioners and residents of Melbourne Beach,  
My name is Ian Kennedy. I’d like to begin by introducing myself: I am 21-years-
old and currently a senior at Florida State University. I was born and raised in 
Melbourne Beach, so I am back here under my parent’s roof due to the university 
closure. My mother and father are both around the age of 60, putting them at a 
higher risk of severe illness from COVID-19. This is why you don’t see my face 
today, you only hear my words. Despite the suggested use of masks and social-
distancing, I did not feel comfortable attending this meeting out of fear of 
jeopardizing my parents’ health. Like I said, I am young and I am healthy. For 
many people in my generation, COVID-19 may be just flu – something we can 

35



fight off with Vitamin C and a couple days of Netflix in bed. But this isn’t just 
about me. It’s about all of us. This is not the reality for the majority of the people 
in America, in Florida, and in Melbourne Beach. This is why it is crucial to have a 
mask mandate in our town. Defeating COVID-19 must be a collective effort. Each 
of us must do our own part for the greater good of humanity. Despite the political 
controversy, both the scientific and medical communities have proven the 
efficacy of masks and recommend wearing them to reduce the transmission of 
COVID-19. But a recommendation is not enough. If wearing a mask remains up 
to personal discretion, then positives cases will continue to rise and our precious 
community will continue to be in danger. Other towns, other cities, other states, 
and other countries have required masks and have then seen a decrease in 
COVID-19 cases. There is a direct correlation between mandated prevention and 
protection. Why is Melbourne Beach still behind? Our rates are continuing to 
climb as a result of negligence and a lack of compassion for our neighbor.  
On Monday, July 13 (two days ago), Florida Today reported 32 positive 
Coronavirus cases in Melbourne Beach. While this is about 1% of our town’s 
population, the number is still too high. Even one positive case was too high. 
Melbourne Beach is not safe from the horrors of this virus and we cannot pretend 
that it is. Commissioners, science has given you a powerful, effective, and simple 
tool that will protect your community. So please enforce it. Please protect us.  
Lastly, I’ll leave you with a quote from Dr. Anthony Fauci, director of the 
National Institute of Allergy and Infectious Diseases. He said: “It’s really in our 
hands as a community, as a nation, as a populace to make this happen. It does 
not have to be 100,000 cases a day.” Thank you for your time. 
 
 

Kathleen Tesi 
2005 Neptune Drive 

 
I would very much like to come to the meeting but do not wish to be in a crowd, 
particularly since there is only encouragement and no requirement to wear 
masks. I am asking that you please step up as Town leadership and approve the 
requirement to wear masks. I understand that it is a difficult thing to enforce, but 
even having the requirement would make a difference. Right now there are 
different rules in our local communities, which makes an already confusing 
situation more so. Additionally, it is hard to go anywhere and feel safe. I now 
know many people who have the virus, that it seems just a matter of time before 
the entire county is infected and our medical services are overrun. A good friend’s 
13 year old daughter tested positive. She has lost her sense of smell and taste, a 
very frightening thing for her to experience. Both of my neighbor’s parents have 
now tested positive as well as friends, local business owners, grocery store staff 
and a host of others. We need to do this one simple thing to support each other 
and keep things safe. It is not fair to any of us, but folks like my senior parents, in 
particular, that cannot even do simple life tasks like going to the grocery or 
hardware store without the possibility of contracting a disease that will kill them. 
The lack of public health safety measures in our state, and our county and town in 
particular, force seniors like my parents to remain locked in their homes. This is 
very difficult for their wellbeing and also seems to be taking a toll on their 

36



cognitive functioning as well. I feel like we are leaderless in the midst of a public 
health emergency. Instead of things getting better, they are getting so much 
worse. Please do what is right for the health and wellbeing of our community. We 
need a mask requirement if we are to have any hope. It is already so late in the 
game. Please do something! 
 

 
Commissioner Walters asked for clarification on the number of the orders:  
 
Town Attorney Repperger said they would be Emergency Order 2020-06 and 
Emergency Order 2020-07. 
 
Commissioner Quarrie said she thinks Emergency Order 2020-06 should be 
adopted with the penalties changed.  She suggested a first infraction is a warning 
with a complimentary mask provided to them, second is $50 and third and 
thereafter is $100. 
 
Commissioner Quarrie said she would recommend the same changes in fines to 
Emergency Order 2020-07. 
 
Vice Mayor Hoover had a few small edits in wording on each Order and then 
asked the Town to provide businesses the signs they can post. 
 
He suggested the effective date could be this Friday as 12:01 p.m. and the end 
date would be at Midnight on August 20, 2020. It would be a 30-day Order to 
start and then the Commission can continue it if they choose to. 

 
Commissioner Quarrie moved to accept Emergency Order 2020-06 with 
changes as specified; Commissioner Walters seconded;  
 

Town Attorney Repperger said – in regard to both Emergency Orders - he would 
amend the third “whereas” clause to say “as extended by the Governor’s 
Executive Order.” 
 

Motion carried 4-0. 
 
Commissioner Quarrie moved to accept Emergency Order 2020-07 with 
changes specified including attorney changes; Commissioner Runte 
seconded; Motion carried 3-1 with Commissioner Walters in dissent. 
 

 
B. Consideration of Impact Fee Funding - Stephen M. Swanke, Brevard County 

Planning & Development Department 
 

Vice Mayor Hoover said he feels that libraries are generally underfunded so the 
impact fees should go toward the libraries but he is not in favor of impact fee for the 
correctional facilities.  

37



 
Commissioner Runte explained that this money has already been collected and will 
go toward correctional facilities and the libraries – the ballot is asking for approval 
on how they each have decided to spend it.  
 
Public Comments 
 

Ashley Link 
Brevard County Public Libraries 

 
Ms. Link explained that the impact fees have already been collected and what the 
libraries would like to spend the money on is large print books because they will 
really impact the community in a positive way. 
 

Ingrid Perkins 
510 3rd Avenue 

 
Ms. Perkins said she is in support of impact fees for the library – but thinks the 
impact fees could be better spent by Sheriff Ivey on psychological services, 
reeducation and on re-assimilating.  
 
Commissioner Walters moved to recommend approval of Library Impact 
Fees as stated on the ballot; Commissioner Quarrie seconded; Motion 
carried 4-0. 
 
Commissioner Runte moved to reject approval of Correctional Facilities 
Impact Fees as stated on the ballot; Commissioner Walters seconded; 
Motion carried 4-0. 
 
 

 XII. Staff Reports  
  

A. Town Attorney Report – No report 
B. Town Manager Report 

Vice Mayor Hoover asked the Town Manager to tell them about the Loggerhead 
Stewardship Report –TM Mascaro said the Town is now in compliance with the 
requirements of the grant.  

In other updates, TM Mascaro said the parking kiosks wouldn’t arrive for approximately 
ten more weeks and said the Town has handed out about 480 resident parking decals so 
far. 

C. Town Clerk Report 
D. Departmental Reports: 

1. Building Department 
2. Public Works Department 

38



3. Code Enforcement  
4. Police Department  
5. Fire Department 

Fire Chief Brown said he put a Fire Department stipend update into the agenda 
packet and then proceeded to give a short overview. He said the program is 
working and since we started there has been a 200-perent increase in 
membership, which is a huge increase and the program is working the way they 
wanted it to – he then thanked the Commission. 

Vice Mayor Hoover explained that the stipend program was created due to a big 
decrease in participation and volunteers.  

6. Finance Department 

Commissioner Quarrie moved to approve the Finance Report; 
Commissioner Runte seconded;  

Commissioner Walters said that since 2004 the Town had a good Ordinance that 
mandated when you went over your budget or had to switch something around, 
you had to explain why – but last year that changed and now we get this Finance 
Report each month. He said an internal audit said there were expenditures in the 
law enforcement fund in the general fund and stormwater funds exceeded budget 
– which means we violated state law and he wanted to know what was going to 
happen. 

Town Manager Mascaro said they had explained the reason that happened – and 
it was due to police cars. She said they were not prepared to replace police cars 
and one was involved in an accident while another caught on fire.  

Commissioner Walters said the stormwater budget has been over expended in the 
past.   

Motion carried 4-1 with Commissioner Walters in dissent. 

XIII. Town Commission Comments   
 

A. General Comments 
Commission Walters congratulated Public Works Supervisor Tom Davis on a job well 
done.  

B. Review of Commission Action List 

Closed 

- EAB Projects for 2020 
- Town Manager Evaluation 
- Investigate grant opportunities for water retention along Oak and County Roads 
- Create a Special Event permit for restaurants to have additional outdoor 

seating/signage 

 

39



Updates 

- Collaborate with Indialantic to make joint request to FDOT for 
reduction in speed limit on A1A to 35 mph – Town Manager attended 
workshop with Indialantic Town Manager. Waiting on FDOT to make a decision 
and will update in August if any developments.  

- Street paving and repaving plan – The Commission asked the Town 
Manager and Public Works Supervisor to create a color-coded master plan 
indicating projected dates/timeline of future projects. 

-  Charging Stations – Town Manager shared that Tesla is no longer available, 
meaning the charging stations are no longer free. They cost $500. TM is looking 
at other options and will return in August with more information: Commission 
asked TM to look for similar offers and/or grants as Tesla was offering. 

 -  Employees 6-month Evaluations – Town Manager has not received all 
evaluations and will update in August.  

-  Code Enforcement Magistrate – Town Attorney Repperger said first reading 
will be at August RTCM. 

XIV.   Adjournment 

Commissioner Walter moved to adjourn; Commissioner Quarrie seconded; 
Motion carried 4-0. 

Meeting adjourned at 9:12 p.m. 

 

 

40



41



42



43



44



45



46



47



48



49



50



51



52



53



54



55



56



57



58



59



60



61



62



63



64



65



66



TowN BoaRn VoTuNTEER APPLIC,\TIoN
Town of Melbourne Beach

ii0l/ Ocean l,.venue
Melbourne Be:lctr, Florida 32gil

Phone: {32D 72+5860 Fax: (321,t gg.l_ggg4

Name: Haig M. John, D.C.

Home Address: 517 Andrews Dr., Melbourne Beach FL, 32gs1

1.

2.

3.

4.

5.

6.

Mobile phone: 772-7 13-1 487 E-mait address: HaigJohnDC@rgmail.com

BusinessName:BusinessPhone:321.722.5B46
Resume or Education & Experience: B.A. Political science & Internationat Retations, Graduate Sturiy Doctor of chrrorpactic

(Use additionar sheets if necessary or submit resume)

Date of birth: April 2,1969 (to verify voter registration)

7. Are you a qualified elector of the town? ZyeS !f.fO
8. Are you a resident of the town? EyeS nruO
9' Do you reside in the town for at least ten (10) months of each calendar year,? tZ yrr; ; ruo10. Do you hotd a pubtic oftice? fl yeS A NO
11. Do you currenfly serve on a Town board?Z yES f]ttO

lf yes, which board?

12. Please check the board(s) you are interested in serving on:

tr Audit Committee

A Board of Adjustment

tr Civil Service Board

! Code Enforcement Board

n Environmental Advisory Board

D History Center Board

tr Historypreservationand,Awarenerjs

n Parks Board

n Planning and Zoning Board

tr Police Pension Fund Board of Trustees

13' Why do you think you are qualified to serve on this board? Currently a Board mr-.mber&
B'A' Political Science & lnternational Relations, Graduate Study Doctor of Chnrp"rti.

14' lould you consider serving on another board other than the one(s) you haver s*lectecfE ves nruo "O,ru"Z

Signature: Z://-.2='67



68



69



70



Attachments: Ordinance 2020-04 

Date Prepared: 8/14/2020 

Prepared By: TA Repperger 

Meeting Date: 08/19/2020 
 
Agenda Category: 

 Proclamations & Awards X Public Hearings 
 Presentations  Old Business 
 Boards & Committees  New Business 
 Consent  Other:  

 
Subject: First Reading of Ordinance 2020-04 

Recommended Action: Planning & Zoning unanimously recommended 
approval of Ordinance 2020-04 at their 8/4/2020 
meeting. 

Background Information: Amending section 7A-102, Appendix A, Land 
Development Code 

 

71



72



   ORDINANCE NO. 2020-04 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE TOWN OF MELBOURNE 
BEACH, BREVARD COUNTY, FLORIDA, AMENDING THE 
LAND DEVELOPMENT CODE OF THE TOWN OF 
MELBOURNE BEACH, AMENDING SECTION 7A-102 TO 
AUTHORIZE THE CONSIDERATION OF CONDITIONS, 
LIMITATIONS, OR REQUIREMENTS IN A PROPOSAL 
FOR ZONING CHANGE OR AMENDMENT 
VOLUNTARILY PROFFERED AS PART OF A BINDING 
DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT; CREATING SECTION 7A-
103 AUTHORIZING BINDING DEVELOPMENT 
AGREEMENTS; PROVIDING A SERVERABILITY 
/INTERPRETATION CLAUSE; PROVIDING FOR 
CODIFICATION; PROVIDING FOR REPEAL OF 
CONFLICTING ORDINANCES AND RESOLUTIONS; 
PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE; AND 
PROVIDING AN ADOPTION SCHEDULE. 

 
WHEREAS, Section 7A-102, of Appendix A of the Code of Ordinances of Melbourne 

Beach (“Land Development Code”) provides that “[n]o proposal for a zoning change or 

amendment affecting particular property or properties shall contain conditions, limitations, or 

requirements not applicable to all other property in the district to which the particular property is 

proposed to be rezoned;” and,  

WHEREAS, the limitations of Section 7A-102, Land Development Code, operate to 

prohibit the Town from considering Binding Development Agreements voluntarily proffered by 

applicants proposing zoning changes or amendments; and,  

WHEREAS, the Town Commission has determined that the prohibition of its ability to 

consider Binding Development Agreements voluntarily proffered by applicants proposing zoning 

changes or amendments limits its authority to agree to conditions, limitations, or requirements that 

would otherwise ensure that a property rezoned is compatible with the property’s surrounding 

zoning and uses; and,  

73



WHEREAS, the Town Commission has determined that Binding Development Agreements 

are useful tools in ensuring managed and controlled growth, development, and location of properly 

sited compatible uses within the Town of Melbourne Beach; and,  

WHEREAS, the Town Commission has determined that authorizing the use of Binding 

Development Agreements in proposals for zoning changes or amendments will serve to better 

ensure that properties are developed consistent with the historic character of development within 

the Town of Melbourne Beach; and, 

WHEREAS, the Town Commission acknowledges that various courts in Florida have 

upheld the use of voluntary proffered conditions by applicants proposing zoning changes or 

amendments; and,  

WHEREAS, the Town Commission acknowledges that the Florida Legislature has 

authorized the use of statutory Development Agreements in the Florida Local Government 

Development Agreement Act; currently Fla. Stat. Sec. 163.3220 through Fla. Stat. Sec. 163.3243; 

and,    

WHEREAS, the Town Commission recognizes that non-statutory Development 

Agreements may be entered into under the authority of home rule powers of the Town of 

Melbourne Beach pursuant to Article VIII, Section 2 of the Constitution of the State of Florida and 

Chapter 166, Florida Statutes,  

WHEREAS, the Town Commission desires to amend Section 7A-102, Land Development 

Code, to authorize the Town Commission to consider conditions, limitations, or requirements not 

applicable to all other properties in a district to which a particular property is proposed to be 

rezoned that are voluntarily proffered by an applicant for a rezoning by way of a statutory or non-

statutory Binding Development Agreement, 

74



WHEREAS, the Town Commission desires to create Section 7A-103, Land Development 

Code to authorize the use of statutory and non-statutory Binding Development Agreements in 

rezoning proposals; 

WHEREAS, the Town Planning & Zoning Board, sitting as the Local Planning Agency, has 

found that this Ordinance is consistent with the Comprehensive Plan and will promote the public 

health, safety, and welfare of the Community; and, 

  WHEREAS, the Town Commission of the Town of Melbourne Beach, after duly noticed 

public hearings, has determined that the amendments to the Land Development Code, provided 

for in this Ordinance are in the best interests of its citizens and promote the general health, safety, 

and welfare of the residents of the Town of Melbourne Beach; 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ENACTED BY THE TOWN OF MELBOURNE 

BEACH, FLORIDA: 

SECTION 1.  That, Article VI, Section 7A-102, Appendix “A,” of the Town Code of the 

Town of Melbourne Beach, Florida, is hereby amended to read as follows:  

 
§ 7A-102.  LIMITATIONS. 
 

No proposal for a zoning change or amendment affecting particular property or properties 
shall contain conditions, limitations, or requirements not applicable to all other property in the 
district to which the particular property is proposed to be rezoned, except where such conditions, 
limitations, or requirements are voluntarily proffered by an applicant proposing a zoning change 
or amendment as part of a statutory or non-statutory Binding Development Agreement. 
 

SECTION 2.  That, Article VI, Section 7A-103, Appendix “A,” of the Town Code of the 

Town of Melbourne Beach, Florida, is hereby created to read as follows:  

§ 7A-103.  RESERVEDBINDING DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENTS. 
 

(a)  For purposes of this article, Binding Development Agreements are defined as 
agreements voluntarily proffered by applicants proposing a zoning change on a particular property 
or properties that propose conditions, limitations, or requirements not applicable to all other 

75



property in the district to which the particular property or properties is proposed to be rezoned.  
Binding Development Agreements may only be utilized in proposals for zoning amendments and 
may only propose conditions, limitations, or requirements that are more restrictive than those 
found in the zoning district to which a property or properties is proposed to be rezoned.  A Binding 
Development Agreement may provide for specific conditions of site development or dedications, 
such as those reflected on site or subdivision plans, but only to the extent that such plans are 
proposed as part of a proposal for rezoning. Binding Development Agreements may be either 
statutory or non-statutory. 

 
(1) Statutory Binding Development Agreements. Statutory Binding 

Development Agreements are those adopted in accordance with the Florida Local 
Government Development Agreement Act, Fla. Stat. Sec. 163.3220 through Fla. Stat. Sec. 
163.3243 or as may be amended. 

 
(2) Non-statutory Binding Development Agreements. Non-statutory Binding 

Development Agreements are those adopted under the authority of the home rule powers 
of the Town under Article VIII, Section 2 of the Constitution of the State of Florida and 
F.S. ch. 166.  
 
(b)  An applicant proposing a zoning change or amendment affecting a particular property 

or properties may voluntarily proffer conditions, limitations, or requirements not applicable to all 
other properties in the district to which the particular property or properties is proposed to be 
rezoned by way of a statutory or non-statutory Binding Development Agreement.   
 

(c)  Statutory and non-statutory Binding Development Agreements may be considered by 
the Planning and Zoning Board and the Town Commission as part of any proposal for zoning 
change or amendment affecting particular a property or properties. 

 
(d)  An approved statutory or non-statutory Binding Development Agreement shall be 

recorded in the Public Records of Brevard County, Florida and shall act as a restrictive covenant 
which runs with the particular property or properties subject to the Binding Development 
Agreement. 

 
(e)  Unless otherwise provided by law, the initial term of a statutory or non-statutory 

Binding Development Agreement may not exceed thirty (30) years, but may be automatically 
extended for and unlimited number of successive defined renewal periods upon the mutual consent 
of the Town and the applicant for rezoning at the time of adoption of the Binding Development 
Agreement after an initial public hearing.  A public hearing for the consideration of a Binding 
Development Agreement may be noticed and held in conjunction with a public hearing for a 
proposal for rezoning.  

 
(f)  Nothing in this section shall obligate the Planning and Zoning Board or Town 

Commission to consider or approve any proposed Binding Development Agreement, nor shall this 
section be interpreted to create any independent cause of action against the Town of Melbourne 
Beach arising from the denial of a proposed Binding Development Agreement by the Town 
Commission.      

76



 SECTION 3.  Severability/Interpretation.   

(a)  In the event that any term, provision, clause, sentence or section of this 

Ordinance shall be held by a court of competent jurisdiction to be partially or wholly unenforceable 

or invalid for any reason whatsoever, any such invalidity, illegality, or unenforceability shall not 

affect any of the other or remaining terms, provisions, clauses, sentences, or sections of this 

Ordinance, and this Ordinance shall be read and/or applied as if the invalid, illegal, or 

unenforceable term, provision, clause, sentence, or section did not exist. 

(b)  In interpreting the provisions of this Ordinance, the following rules and 

symbols shall apply: 

(1)  Words underlined are additions to existing text. 

(2)  Words stricken through are deletions from existing text. 

(3)  Asterisks (* * *) indicates a deletion from the Ordinance of text existing 

in the Code of Ordinances.  It is intended that the text in the Code of Ordinance denoted by the 

asterisks and not set forth in this Ordinance shall remain unchanged from the language existing 

prior to adoption of this Ordinance. 

 SECTION 4.  Codification. The provisions of this Ordinance shall be codified as, and 

become and be made a part of, the Town of Melbourne Beach Code of Ordinances. The sections 

of this Ordinance may be renumbered or re-lettered to accomplish such intention. 

 SECTION 5.  Ordinances and Resolutions in Conflict.  All ordinances or resolutions or 

parts thereof that may be determined to be in conflict herewith are hereby repealed. 

 SECTION 6.  Effective Date.  This Ordinance shall become effective upon adoption.  
 
  

 

77



 SECTION 7.  Adoption Schedule.  

 PASSED by the Town Commission of the Town of Melbourne Beach on first reading on 

the 19th day of August, 2020, and ADOPTED by the Town Commission of the Town of Melbourne 

Beach, Florida, on final reading on the 16th day of September, 2020. 

 
 
TOWN OF MELBOURNE BEACH, FLORIDA 

 
 

By:____________________________ 
        JAMES D. SIMMONS, Mayor 

 
ATTEST: 
      (TOWN SEAL) 
_______________________ 
Jennifer Torres,  
Town Clerk 

78



Attachments: AS shown with attachments: P&Z Feb 4, 2020 minutes, 
March 3, 2020 minutes recommendation to the 
Commission on RV & Boat Ordinance 7A-67 changes, 
RTCM March 18, 2020 minutes showing the discussion 
and vote of 5 -0 from the commission accepting the P & Z 
recommended  March 3, 2020 changes. 

Date Prepared: July 25, 2020 

Prepared By: Commissioner Quarrie 

Meeting Date: August 5, 2020 
 
Agenda Category: 

 Proclamations & Awards  Public Hearings 
 Presentations X Old Business 
 Boards & Committees  New Business 
 Consent  Other:  

 
Subject: Ordinance 7A-67 

Recommended Action: There is no reason to start the process over and have 
additional cost when the recommended Ordinance 7A-67 
changes were already voted 5-0 to be put in place. This 
included 12 residents in favor of the changes at P & Z Feb. 
meeting with 1 opposed. 

Background Information: Please review the minutes from P&Z Feb and March meetings 
and RTCM March 18th.  
 

• P&Z Feb 4, 2020 minutes to bring it back to the next 
meeting. 

• The next meeting minutes on March 3, 2020 clearly 
shows recommendation to the Commission on RV & 
Boat Ordinance 7A-67 changes. 

• RTCM March 18, 2020 minutes showing the 
discussion and vote of 5 -0 from the commission 
accepting the P & Z recommended March 3, 2020 
changes. 

 
At the July RTCM it was misstated regarding P & Z thoughts 
about splitting the RV’s from Boats. The discussion regarding 
that split was brought up in discussion prior to the 5-0 vote by 
the commission to have the Town Attorney prepare the 
Ordinance 7A-67.  
  
Ordinance 7A-67 has all changes voted on and recommended 
by P&Z 3-2 and the Commission 5-0. 
  
 

 

79



 

 

Town of Melbourne Beach 
 

PUBLIC NOTICE 
 

MINUTES 
 

PLANNING & ZONING BOARD MEETING 

TUESDAY FEBRUARY 4, 2020 @ 7:00pm 

COMMUNITY CENTER – 509 OCEAN AVENUE 

 
 

Board Members: 

Chair David Campbell 

Member Kurt Belsten       

Member April Evans     

Member Douglas Hilmes  

Member Daniel Gonzalez 

Alternate Member Libby Brown-Brock 

Alternate Member/School Board Representative Christian Lindbaek 

 

Staff Members: 

Town Manager Elizabeth Mascaro 

Town Clerk Nancy Wilson 

Town Attorney Clifford Repperger 

Town Planner Corey O’Gorman 

 

80



 

 

I. CALL TO ORDER 
 
Chairman Campbell called the meeting to order at 7:00 p.m. 
 

II. ROLL CALL 
 

Town Clerk Wilson led roll call: 
 

 Present:     Staff Present: 
Chairman Campbell                 Town Manager Mascaro 
Member Belsten     Town Clerk Wilson 
Member Evans     Town Attorney Repperger  
Member Gonzalez  
       
Absent: 
Member Hilmes      
                   

III.  APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
 

A. January 7, 2020 
 
Member Evans made a motion to approve the minutes from the 

January 7, 2020 meeting; Member Belsten seconded.  Motion carried 

4-0. 
 

V. NEW BUSINESS 
 

Request from the Town Commission to review section 7A-67 of the Code, 

specifically: 

 recreational vehicles and sheds on corner lots 
 

Chairman Campbell said that the Code, section 7A-67, currently reads that on 

any corner lot, no trailer, boat or recreational vehicle shall be located in 

front of the front  building line of any side of the structure which abuts a 

street unless the boat, trailer or recreational vehicle is sheltered from 

view.    He asked the Town Manager if sheltered from view is interpreted to 

mean completely sheltered from view.  She answered in the affirmative.   He 

said he doesn’t read it that way; if a fence is erected or vegetation is planted, 

that should satisfy the Code requirement of being sheltered from view.  The 

Town Manager said the issue of a boat parked on a corner lot went before the 

Code Enforcement Board.  They put up a fence and have bougainvillea 

planted but the bridge of the boat is still visible so the resident was found to 

not be in compliance because it wasn’t completely obstructed from view.    

Chairman Campbell said the choices are then to have no additional 

restrictions on trailers, boats or recreational vehicles parked on corner lots or 

modify the Code to indicate that a 6 foot fence would satisfy the requirement 

even though it wouldn’t obscure the entire vehicle or boat.  Member Gonzalez 

said the question is if corner lots are to be treated differently from any other 

81



 

 

property.   If partial obstruction is allowed on a regular lot, he doesn’t see 

why corner lots shouldn’t be treated the same.    Member Evans said it’s 

because there’s visibility from the side street.   
 

 length restrictions  

Code: Trailers, boats and recreational vehicles which exceed 26 feet in 

overall length, whether powered or unpowered, shall not be parked, stored 

or placed on any residential lot located within the Town except for purposes 

of active loading and unloading.    The Town Planner said that Indialantic 

allows 40 foot vehicles and North Palm Beach, whose Code is similar to ours, 

allows 30 foot vehicles.  Maybe the Code should be changed to increase the 

current length.   Member Gonzalez said 26 feet is a reasonable yet arbitrary 

number; he doesn’t see any reason why any size trailer, boat or recreational 

vehicle can’t be allowed as long as they are parked in compliance with our 

Code.   There’s no proposal to suggest reducing the allowed length.  Member 

Evans asked what kind of vehicle is necessary to pull larger boats and RV’s; at 

some point, it wouldn’t be possible to park a vehicle and the necessary truck 

to pull it.   Chairman Campbell thinks between 30 and 40 feet would be 

reasonable.  Town Manager Mascaro said the length of the trailer has to be 

taken into consideration along with the length of the recreational vehicle 

itself.  

 height restriction of garages  

Chairman Campbell doesn’t want to increase the allowable height (28 feet) 

for garages.  He added that keeping the Code intact on this matter is the best 

solution, otherwise, they could be opening a can of worms.   In response to a 

question, he said if a garage is connected to the house it can be 28 feet in 

height even if the house is lower; it has to be part of the primary structure.   If 

it’s not connected to the house, it can’t be higher than the house.  No code 

change recommended. 

 recreational vehicles connected to utilities  

Code: Trailers, boats and recreational vehicles or any combinations thereof, 

shall not be connected in any manner to utilities except for the purpose of 

charging batteries thereon.   The suggestion is to be able to hook up electric 

for maintenance only.  Member Evans said aside from charging batteries, 

electric may be used to run dehumidifiers.  The Board members have no 

problem with electric being connected to a recreational vehicle for 

maintenance purposes.   

 time allowed for active loading and unloading of recreational vehicles   

Code: reasonable amounts of time are allowed for the loading and 

unloading of cargo trailers and for trailers, boats and recreational vehicles 

that are 26 feet or less in length.  For trailers, boats and recreational 

vehicles over 26 feet in length, the time allowed for active loading and 

unloading is 2 6-hour periods in any seven consecutive day period.  Member 

Formatted: Highlight

Formatted: Highlight

82



 

 

Evans said “reasonable” to one person may not be “reasonable” to another.   

Member Gonzalez said he’d like to know how other jurisdictions handle this 

matter. 

 during time of disaster allowing exceptions for trailers, temporary housing  

Chairman Campbell said this is already allowed in the Code, section 16-3 

gives the Town Commission the ability to allow exceptions on this issue 

during emergencies:  The Town Commission can make provisions for the 

availability and use of temporary emergency housing and the emergency 

warehousing of materials.  No change. 

 

VII.  PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
   Sherrie Quarrie 
   701 Pine 

Ms. Quarrie thanked the Board for taking the time to look into this matter.  While 

doing some research before the meeting, she found that we have 116 recreational 

items on properties (property appraiser aerials) so there are a lot of residents who 

have a vested interest in this issue.    From residents who have talked to her, their 

concern is that we continue to restrict living in RV’s.  Regarding boats, there were a 

lot of things put in the Code in the 1980’s that don’t pertain to todays living. She 

went on to list events and activities that happen now that didn’t happen 40 years 

ago such as fishing tournaments, red snapper weekends, lobster season, etc.   The 

many events and activities that take place now require that boats and recreational 

vehicles need to be outfitted which takes a couple of days.  It can’t happen in 6 hours 

which is why she was cited for her boat being parked in front of her house.  Ms. 

Quarrie also didn’t see why cargo trailers are an issue.    If a person’s cargo trailer or 

any recreational vehicle fits in their yard, behind the front line of the house, length 

should not be a big deal; she said that’s what a lot of residents are saying.  She said 

regarding corner lots, some don’t have back yards and others can’t access their back 

yards without crushing sidewalks and storm drains.  She also asked them to address 

the time allowed for loading and unloading; more time is needed.   Also, maybe 

accessory structures should be addressed on a case by case basis.  

 
   Ted Funkhouser   

509 Banyan 
Mr. and Mrs. Funkhouser moved to Melbourne Beach in 2009 after travelling 

around the county looking for a great place to live.  They found Melbourne Beach, 

they loved the Town, loved the people and loved that the Town had ordinances.   It 

isn’t like other beach communities that allow boat parking year round in driveways, 

etc.  

  

   His input regarding the 6 issues being addressed: 

 

83



 

 

1. Thinks corner lots should be treated like interior lots 

2. Length restriction was written a long time ago and should be updated to 

allow for longer recreational vehicles even up to 45 feet 

3. Garage height - no comments 

4. RV’s attached to utilities is fine if it is electric only; if hooking up to water and 

sewer is permitted, people will live in the RV’s and it will be hard to control 

or enforce.  He says no water or sewer hookups should be allowed 

5. Loading and unloading time of 6 hours is ridiculously short; several days for 

loading and unloading should be sufficient 

6. No comment on emergency housing and storage 

 

Jeff Saraka 
508 Banyan 

Mr. Saraka has lived in Town for 45 years.  He said if a boat is parked behind the 

house it should be OK.  He’s had a 40 foot boat/trailer behind his house for 5 years; 

he didn’t know there was a 26 foot limit.  He said there are some people with other 

interests who have lived here for 5 years who want to change things; if the change is 

in the best interest of the Town, that’s OK.   He said if a boat or RV is too big, it’s too 

hard to maneuver so it wouldn’t be practical on our sized lots.  In conclusion, he 

thinks parking for unloading/loading boats and RV’s should be allowed for 3 days 

no more than twice a month is sufficient. 
 

  Warren Hardman 
  320 6th Avenue 

Mr. Hardman and his wife moved to Melbourne Beach in 1997 and they’ve had a 

boat parked next to their house (on a corner lot) since that time.    There was a fence 

around it until the 2004 storms took it down.  They then put up a 6 foot fence and 

planted bougainvillea (about 8 feet high) such that all that can be seen is the railing 

and a little bit of the windshield of the boat.   When first cited, he put up another 

fence in front of the boat so from Oak, very little of the boat can be seen.  He read 

from Melbourne’s code that says all recreational vehicles/boats may be parked on a 

side corner yard if located behind a 6 foot opaque fence or parked behind the 

required side setbacks.  It does not say completely out of sight.  Why, after more 

than 20 years, has this become an issue? 

 

  Dan Brunger 

  400 6th Avenue 

Mr. Brunger also lives on a corner lot and has lived here for 20 years.  He has a 26 

foot travel trailer and in 2018 he received a citation stating that he needed to move 

his trailer because it wasn’t in compliance.  He also received a citation about having 

his travel trailer parked in front of his house too long for loading and unloading.   

He currently has no recreational vehicle.  He thinks that RV owners should be 

actively involved in the process of determining what should and shouldn’t be 

84



 

 

allowed.  He thinks the length restriction of 26 feet is an arbitrary figure and should 

be increased. Also, he said that parking out front to load and unload can’t happen in 

6 hours – more time is needed.  In conclusion, he also thinks that corner lots should 

be treated the same as interior lots and RV’s should be able to plug into electric 

without restrictions. 
 

  Matt Brandli 

  415 Hibiscus 

Mr. Brandli said he also received a citation.  One of the reasons he purchased his 

property is because it already had a concrete pad alongside the house to 

accommodate a boat.  He’s lived in the house since 2010 and grew up here.  He said 

Melbourne Beach is a beach town and is laid back which is what he likes about it.  

There are a lot of people in Town who travel via RV or go boating.  The old Code 

Enforcement Officer (Bob) said there was no length restriction and as long as it is 

parked behind the front line of the house, there’s no issue.   This is the first time 

he’s heard of the 26 foot limit.  He also doesn’t have a fence in front of his boat 

(now RV) and it’s been there for 9 years.  Recently he received a citation saying his 

RV was too long but nothing that said he needed a fence in front of it.  He keeps the 

RV plugged in for maintenance reasons and feels that as long as a recreational 

vehicle doesn’t stick out past the front line of the house, it should be permitted.   
 

  Thijs Stelling 

  610 Mango 

Mr. Stelling was also issued a citation.  He said that trailers add many feet to the 

overall length.  He also lives on a corner lot but has plenty of room on the north side 

of his house and has a wide driveway so he can easily get in and out even with his 

long RV.  He agreed that water and sewer hook ups should not be allowed as well as 

prohibiting the use of an RV for living quarters.    This is his first time hearing about 

the 26 foot restriction – by today’s standards, 26 feet is considered small.  Hooking 

up to power is reasonable for maintenance.  In conclusion, Mr. Stelling said that it’s 

private property and everybody pays a lot of taxes so there shouldn’t be so many 

restrictions.   
 

  Chris Schultz 

  409 Hibiscus 

Mr. Schultz said he has a monster fifth wheel trailer parked next to his house that’s 

not owned by his neighbor.  He said the RV has been used as living quarters and 

recounted the dates when it has been occupied.   The Code Enforcement Officer got 

the owners to at least close the slides.  The Code Officer talked to the neighbor who 

said nobody was living in the RV but Mr. Schultz knows they are.  The RV is taller 

and longer than his house and sits on his lot line.  Further, a realtor told him that 

having that RV parked there would lower the value of his property.    There must be 

rules and ordinances in place to prevent this nonsense.  He filed another complaint 

85



 

 

about lights going on and off in the RV at night; doors being opened and shut and 

said it is still connected to water and sewer.    Chairman Campbell reminded him 

that he is discussing a Code Enforcement matter so Mr. Schultz moved on.  In the 

Comprehensive Plan it says to care for existing properties, maintain the residential 

character of the Town and install community pride.   Some of the people in the 

room don’t think it’s a big deal because one of them isn’t parked next to them.  Is 

the Town going to open the floodgates to allow more of this? 

  

  Kara Parks 

  1902 Neptune Drive 

Ms. Parks said regarding the restrictions on the length of RV’s - we live in a 

recreational community and a lot of people indulge in those activities.    A lot of 

people are retired and they moved here to be able to enjoy our climate and the 

associated activities.  She said there shouldn’t be a restriction on length as long as 

it is parked behind the front line of the house.  

  

  Frank Coughlin 

  406 1st Avenue 

Mr. Coughlin said Brevard County has no limit on the length of boats and RV’s.  45 

feet is a reasonable length to allow since it’s probably the longest that would be 

feasible in Town.  Regarding height, you have to be able to get under bridges so 

height is automatically limited.   He agreed that corner lots should be treated like 

center lots since they are restricted by having 2 fronts; they should be able to have a 

fence to mostly obscure their recreational vehicle.   In conclusion, he said he agrees 

with extending the time to load/unload.  
 

  Paul Carlson 

  400 River View Lane 

Mr. Burgess said he bought a house here 2 years ago that’s on a sweeping corner.  

He purchased a boat last year and was cited 2 days later because the boat was in 

front of the front line of his house.  However, he’s not able to park behind the front 

line because of the shape of his lot but he’s been trying hard to comply to the Code.  

He’s been trying to get somebody to build a lift behind his house but, again, access 

is limited.  He added that a limit of 26 feet for an RV is antiquated; most are over 30 

feet.  Boats over 30 feet, on the other hand, are different because boats that size 

would be difficult to negotiate.  He agreed that more time should be allowed for the 

loading/unloading of boats and RV’s.  He wants to be part of the solution.   
 

  Brad Cushing  

  403 Anchor 

Mr. Cushing said length shouldn’t be an issue if it is parked behind the front line of 

the house.  RV’s should not be lived in, therefore, sewer and water should not be 

hooked up, however, he keeps the boat connected to electricity for maintenance 

86



 

 

reasons.    
 

  Chris Schultz 

  409 Hibiscus 

Mr. Schultz said he went to Town Hall and received a report that there are 16 boats 

and RV’s in violation. 
   

  Mike Kalajian 

  524 Sunset 

Mr. Kalajian has lived here for 46 years and built a house to accommodate a 32 foot 

boat which can barely be seen.  He doesn’t understand why there’s an issue with 

length.     
 

Chairman Campbell said he wants language from the Town Planner prior to making 

recommendations to the Town Commission regarding the matters discussed.  They 

also want more data about allowed lengths from other entities.  In summary: 
 

 recreational vehicles and sheds on corner lots 

Opinion is that a fence is all that’s needed on corner lots and that they should 

be treated like inside lots.   
 

 length restrictions  

More research requested prior to making suggestion. 
 

 height restriction of garages   

The Code should remain intact regarding height restrictions.   As a side note, 

a garage can be taller than the primary structure if it is attached to it.   

No Action. 
 

 recreational vehicles connected to utilities  

Opinion is that RV’s need to be connected to electric for maintenance reasons 

not just for battery charging.  There was no support for allowing people to 

live in an RV, thus sewer and water hookups shouldn’t be allowed since it 

would be hard to determine if an RV is inhabited.   

 

 time allowed for active loading and unloading of recreational vehicles  

Opinion is that the time is not long enough for loading and unloading; most 

said 3 days was fair.  
 

 during time of disaster allowing exceptions for trailers, temporary housing 

This matter is addressed in 16-3 of the Code.   

No Action. 
 

Chairman Campbell said that the Planning & Zoning Board only makes 

recommendations to the Town Commission; they then make the final 

decisions.    The Chairman doesn’t want to leave length unrestricted, 

somebody will abuse it.  Maybe 40-45 feet should be the limit.  He also said 

87



 

 

the restriction that recreational vehicles must be completely obscured on side 

lots is stupid; a fence should be adequate.    Finally, being hooked up to 

electric only should be OK as should allowing more time for 

loading/unloading. 
 

Member Evans said one issue she heard is the situation where an RV is not 

owned by the property owner.  Nothing was said about renting side lots for 

RV parking though zoning would most likely prohibit it.    Maybe there could 

be a requirement that it had to be registered to the owner of the house.   

Chairman Campbell said tackling this subject might open a can of worms. 
 

In conclusion, Chairman Campbell wants to come back next month after 

getting input from the Town Planner and then send recommendations to the 

Town Commission.   Somebody from the audience asked what the people 

with citations should do to which the Chairman answered that the Planning 

Board can’t do anything enforcing ordinances.  There is a moratorium on 

enforcement of RV’s parked on corner lots but there is not a moratorium on 

enforcement of length violations. 
  

   Matt Bramly 

   415 Hibiscus 

Mr. Bramly said he received a citation about the length of his vessel and 

he doesn’t know what to do now.  The Town Manager told him to call 

Town Hall on the following day. 
   
VIII. REPORTS: TOWN MANAGER AND TOWN ATTORNEY 
 

 No reports 
 
 IX. ITEMS TO BE ADDED TO THE AGENDA FOR FUTURE MEETINGS 

  

After further research, the review of section 7A-67 of the Code will be brought back 
before the Planning & Zoning Board on March 3, 2020. 

 
 X. ADJOURNMENT 

 

Meeting adjourned at 8:14p.m. 

 

Member Gonzalez made a motion to adjourn; Member Evans seconded.  

Motion carried 4-0.   

 

 

      ATTEST: 

 

 

_______________________             _________________________ 

88



 

 

David Campbell, Chairman         Nancy Wilson, Town Clerk 

89



 

 

Town of Melbourne Beach 
 

MINUTES 
 

PLANNING & ZONING BOARD MEETING 

TUESDAY MARCH 3, 2020 @ 7:00pm 

COMMUNITY CENTER – 509 OCEAN AVENUE 

 
 

 

Board Members: 

Chair David Campbell 

Member Kurt Belsten       

Member April Evans     

Member Douglas Hilmes  

Member Daniel Gonzalez 

 

Staff Members: 

Town Manager Elizabeth Mascaro 

Building Assistant Beth Crowell  

Town Attorney Clifford Repperger 

Town Planner Corey O’Gorman 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

90



 

 

I. CALL TO ORDER 
 
Chairman Campbell called the meeting to order at 7:02 p.m. 
 

II. ROLL CALL 
 

Building Assistant Crowell led roll call: 
 
 Present:     Staff Present: 

Chairman Campbell                 Town Manager Mascaro 
Member Belsten     Town Attorney Repperger  
Member Gonzalez     Building Assistant Beth Crowell   
Member Evans     
Member Hilmes   
      
               

III.  APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
 

A. February 4, 2020 
 

Member Belsten made a motion to approve the minutes from the February 

4, 2020 meeting; Member Evans seconded.  Motion carried 5-0. 

 
 

V. NEW BUSINESS 
 

A. Site Plan Review for 1904 Rosewood 
 

This project is an addition to a single family home.  Lot area, lot coverage, maximum 

height and setback requirements were met.    
 

Member Belsten made a motion to approve the site plan for 1904 Rosewood; 

Member Evans seconded.  Motion carried 5-0.  

 

VII.   OLD BUSINESS 

A. Discussion regarding section 74-67 of the Melbourne Beach Land Development Code 

 

Chairman Campbell said he reviewed state of Florida restrictions of motor homes which 

limits them to 45-feet and trailers to 40-feet. Melbourne Beach Town Code currently 

limits trailers, boats and trailers to 26-feet. The Chairman feels this is outdated and 

asked the board to share their opinions.  

 

Member Hilmes expressed concern with lumping boats and RVs into same category 

because of the difference in height. He believes the board should consider regulating 

them separately or institute a height limit.  He pointed to the fact that a boat has very 

little protruding above a fence line but an RV has a sizeable amount above the fence line. 

He feels RVs are much more obtrusive to neighborhoods and property.  

 

Member Hilmes has seen many RVs throughout town with some that are twice his own 

height and very imposing. Others are pushed up against the rear fence of the house 

pushing against the neighbor’s property. He has no issue with increasing boat length 

91



 

 

because they are not as objectionable as RVs.  

 

Member Hilmes said he reviewed the ordinance in Palm Beach and their maximum 

height is 12-feet. The ordinance there also contained a lot of verbiage about screening. 

He said he does not want to restrict people from having an RV or a boat but it should not 

intrude on a neighbor.  

 

Member Belsten pointed out he doesn’t think length is the issue so much as where the 

RV is parked – behind the house or on the side of the yard. 

 

Member Hilmes referred to a situation in town where a 45-foot RV is parked the 

front/side of a house, about 3-4 feet off property line - and when the homeowner extends 

out the RV sliders, the sliders are less than 10-inches from the fence line – and the issue 

of whether you are allowed to put sliders out when you are supposedly storing an RV 

needs to be addressed.  We could require they are stored in a collapsed state which also 

prevents people from living in there.  

 

Member Evans said that perhaps adding a discussion about height should be part of a 

future meeting agenda.   

 

Member Belsten said separating the rules overseeing boats and RVs may be something to 

consider because he believes boats are less intrusive.  

 

Member Hilmes said specific vegetative screening should also be required of RV owners.  

 

Chairman Campbell asked Member Belsten to clarify if he wanted to require RV owners 

to have a vegetative screen to cover the structure.  

 

Member Belsten said yes and other ordinances he’s looked at recommended certain 

plants and require the vegetative screen has to grow in 2-3 years, with required setbacks 

to keep it from encroaching on neighbors 

 

The Chairman then asked the board what they thought, saying that personally he did not 

see a need to separate them. He then asked for opinions on what the length limit should 

be. 

 

Members Evans said she had no problem with the state limits of 45-feet.  

 

Chairman Campbell turned the conversation to corner lot and said that right now the 

way it’s being interpreted by town; you can’t put an RV or a boat on the street-side corner 

of a corner lot without completely screening it.  

 

Member Evans said she would have interpreted “screening” as the 6-foot fence she 

already has - or vegetation – but in her mind - the requirement was never meant to be 

interpreted as having to totally obscure the boat or RV, but she does think the Town 

should retain some type of screening requirement on those corner lots. 

92



 

 

 

Member Hilmes suggested using a triangle method to preserve side lines so you don’t 

block too much of the view of someone turning.  

 

The Chairman read the current ordinance and in his opinion it does not require 

screening to completely shelter the RV or boat.  

 

Member Evans said it appears to be a matter of interpretation and suggested they modify 

the wording to clarify.  

 

Member Hilmes said in regard to screening he thinks some good suggestions and ideas 

on how to screen have been made and his main concern is not to impede on neighbor’s 

property. He suggested the board move on and specifics on the topic can be raised at a 

future date.  

 

Moving on, Chairman Campbell asked for input on the issue of RVs connected to 

utilities.  

 

Member Evans said she thinks it should be electric only for running A/C, heat.   

 

Chairman Campbell said currently it now says - except for the purpose of charging 

batteries. He said we could change that to - except for the purpose of vehicle 

maintenance. 

 

Member Evens asked if running a dehumidifier was considered maintenance – and 

Chairman Campbell said he believes it is. 

 

The Town Attorney agreed and said his understanding was that it limited use to electric 

only.  

 

Member Hilmes said that’s reasonable because with anything else you run the risk of 

people living in the RV. 

 

Member Belsten said some of the towns have ordinances that vehicles must be registered 

and maintained in good order – and he felt that they should at least require a valid 

registration.  

 

 The board agreed to consider this. 

 

The Chairman then opened the topic of time allowed for active loading and unloading of 

recreation vehicles for discussion.  

 

The board agreed that 48 hours is reasonable and sufficient.  

 

Member Hilmes asked about putting a limitation of how many times they can do this in a 

30 day period and the board agreed not to add this in as it appeared to be 

93



 

 

micromanaging.  

 

Member Hilmes went back to the topic of screening and felt verbiage for RV screening 

should include being concealed from the property line. Member Belsten and Chairman 

Campbell expressed concern over what material the screening would be made from. 

 

Hilmes said doesn’t want to take away someone’s right to own an RV but wants to protect 

the rights of neighboring properties. 

 

Member Evans understands Member Hilmes sentiment but feels it would be hard to 

regulate.  

 

Member Hilmes suggested a three-foot setback in order it to give code enforcement more 

teeth to deal with issues.  

 

Member Hilmes asked Town Manager Mascaro why code enforcement was not more 

aggressive towards a property he feels is in violation with someone living in their RV. 

 

Town Manager Mascaro responded that code enforcement has been to the property in 

question many times - as have the police department - on evenings, weekends – but 

there is no offense present anytime they have been out.  

 

 

VIII.   PUBLIC COMMENT 
 

 

Sherrie Quarrie 

701 Pine Street 

 

Ms. Quarrie presented photos to the board and said she does not know 

how we would enforce an owner completely obscuring an RV or boat – 

no matter what size it is – they will not be obscured by a 6-foot fence. If 

you don’t want to look at something your neighbor has then create your 

own landscaping. Making landscaping tied to RVs or boats is not a fair 

method. The person upset should be the person to fix it. Ms. Quarrie also 

says any registration process for RVs doesn’t take into account guests 

and visitors and in relation to screening on a corner lots – it’s not fair to 

make their standards higher. She felt that perhaps the idea of making 

fences higher should be considered.  

 

 

 

Chris Schultz 

Hibiscus Trail  

 

Mr. Schultz said his biggest concern is maintaining the residential 

94



 

 

character of the town and changing the RV/boat length limit from 26-

feet to 45-feet can adversely affect the property value of his home. He 

said he did think some revisions on corner lot should be made.  

 

Joe Marchese 

310 1st Ave.  

 

Mr. Marchese said don’t write anything you can’t enforce.  

 

Member Hilmes addressed the comment about making sure you can 

enforce the rules you write – he said we have to have rules or we have a 

free for all but we do have to make sure they are easy to enforce. He also 

addressed the idea of collapsing RVs when not in use so people are not 

living in them – and state that they can be opened for maintenance but 

not overnight.  

 

The Town Attorney asked for the board’s recommendations for each 

item brought to them by the commission for consideration. The board 

did not address the issue of sheds. 

 

Member Hilmes made a motion to recommend separating 

boats and RVs in the code; Member Belsten seconded the 

motion. The vote was 3 nays and 2 ayes. Motion failed. 

 

Discussion concluded with the following proposed changes to Ordinance 

7A-67: 

 

- RVs parked on a corner lot must be shielded with fence or vegetative 

cover but the words “shelter from view” should be stricken. 

- The board agreed to a maximum length for boats with trailers or RVs 

– or a combination of both - should be 45-feet.  

- RVs should be connected to electric for purposes of maintenance 

only.  

- Time allowed for loading and unloading boats and RVs is 48 hours. 

- A new three-foot setback from the lot line for parking. 

- Corner lots fence or vegetative cover must substantially shield from 

view – but not required to totally shelter from view.  

- RVs should be stored in a collapsed state. 

 
 

 

 

Member Gonzalez made a motion to recommend the Town Commission 

move forward to draft an ordinance that incorporates the suggested 

changes; Member Evans seconded.  Motion carried 3-2 with Member 

Hilmes and Member Belsten dissenting.  

95



 

 

 

   IX. REPORTS: TOWN MANAGER AND TOWN ATTORNEY – No reports 

 

Member Evans asked the Town Manager to ask the commission to consider 

separating boats and RVs.  
 

 X. ITEMS TO BE ADDED TO THE AGENDA FOR FUTURE MEETINGS - None 
 

XI.     ADJOURNMENT 
 

Member Hilmes made a motion to adjourn; Member Belsten 

seconded. Motion carried 5-0. 

The meeting adjourned at 8:38 pm 

       ATTEST: 

 

 

_______________________             _________________________ 

David Campbell, Chairman   Jennifer Torres, Interim Town Clerk 

 

 

96



97



98



99



100



101



102



103



104



105



106



Attachments: Chapter 23 –Social Media  

Date Prepared: 8/14/2020 

Prepared By: Elizabeth Mascaro 

Meeting Date: 8/19/2020 

  
 
Agenda Category: 

 Proclamations & Awards  Public Hearings 
 Presentations x Old Business 
 Boards & Committees  New Business 
 Consent  Other:  

 
Subject: Action Item to Create Social Media Policy 

Recommended Action: Review Social Media Policy.  Provide edits and 
changes if necessary. 

Background Information: Town Manager was tasked with developing a Social 
Media Policy. 

 

107



_  
   Town of Melbourne Beach 

Chapter 23 
Town of Melbourne Beach 

Social Media Policy 
 

22.01 Policy 
The Town of Melbourne Beach supports the use of authorized social media sites as an alternative 
and timely method for communication with its citizens and employees. The objective of this 
Policy is to provide direction to the Town Commission, Town employees and Town Board 
Members on the acceptable uses of social media sites. 

 
This Policy applies to any social media site which communicates with site users concerning the 
Town of Melbourne Beach. The Town Manager encourages all users to be mindful when using 
their department’s or board’s social media sites that they are responsible for the content they 
publish and should show respect for the individuals and communities with which they interact. 
The Town Manager also reminds all employees, board members and Commissioner’s that use of 
a personal social media site to discuss Town business may result in the creation of a public 
record. 

 
 Violations of this Policy may be subject to disciplinary action, up to and including termination 
or removal from the Board. 

 
 22.02 Definitions and References 

 
A. Definitions 

 
1. Social Networking Sites - A type of website where users can join to connect and interact 

with other users and organizations. 
 

2. Social Media Sites - Types of websites that allow for the exchange of digital words, 
sounds, videos and pictures between users on the internet, such as blogs, social 
networking sites or wiki. Popular social media sites include Facebook, Twitter, Linked-ln, 
YouTube, blogs, and microblogs. 

3. Blog - A type of website usually maintained by an individual with regular entries of 
commentary, descriptions of events, or other material such as graphics or video. 

 
B. References 

 
1. Chapter 119, Florida Statutes. 

 
2. Attorney General Opinion 2009-19, Records, municipal Facebook page. 
 

108



22.03 Directives 

A. Standards

1. The Town of Melbourne Beach website (www.melbournebeachfl.org) shall remain the
Town’s official and predominant internet presence.

2. All social media sites shall provide a link to the Town’s official website, either on the site
profile, bio, or other area visible to the user.

3. Social media sites concerning the Town of Melbourne Beach shall only be used to
provide information regarding Town official business. It is prohibited for any employee
or board member to use the social media site for personal use.

4. The Town Manager or their designees (a media administrator) shall have the right to
restrict or require the removal of any content on the social media site that is in violation of
this Policy, or other Town policies, federal, state or local law, or is otherwise not in the best
interest of the Town. Content concerning Town official  business that is removed must be
digitally retained, stored and timely disposed of in the manner required to meet the
requirements of applicable public records laws.

5. The Town Manager shall be responsible for establishing the procedures for authorizing
social media sites, provided such procedures meet with the approval of the Commission.

B. Administration

1. Before a site is created, the Town Manager or their designees (a media administrator) must
approve the use of a site and must appoint an employee or board member to be the liaison to
the Media Administrator. A liaison must be appointed for each social media site.

2 Before a social media site may be created, the Town Manager must receive a request to 
create a social media site from the department head or Chairman.  A separate request must be 
made for each site (e.g. if a parks sets up a Facebook and Twitter site one form must be 
submitted for Facebook and one for Twitter). The media administrator will keep a record and 
provide a copy of the request to the Town Clerk.  The media administrator and Town Clerk must be 
notified promptly of any change in the liaison, account information, or removal/deactivation 
of the site. 

3. The media administrator is responsible for the administration, updating and monitoring of
the Town Website, Face Book and Next Door sites. A media administrator shall not reveal an
account password or allow another to post content on the site without approval from the Town
Manager.

4. The liason representing a department or board must update and monitor their Town site and
comply with all Town policies, federal, state or local law, or is otherwise not in the best
interest of the Town.  Content concerning Town official business that is removed must be
digitally retained, stored and timely disposed of in the manner required to meet the
requirements of applicable public record laws.

109



 
 
 
 
5. The profile/username shall clearly identify the name of the department/office/program. 

 
6. Any e-mail addresses used in the account set-up must be a Town issued e-mail address. No 
personal e-mail address may be registered with an account. 

 
7. Social media sites shall clearly indicate that any content posted or submitted for posting are 
subject to public disclosure under Florida's public records laws. 

 
8. Use of the Town logo shall be in compliance with color and scheme. 

 
C. Records 

 
1. It is the responsibility of the Administrator to retain, store and dispose of all content 
made or received relating to Town business, so as to ensure compliance with Chapter 119, 
Florida Statutes AGO 2009-19. Specifically the Administrator shall keep a record of all 
posts, direct messages, tweets, retweets, responses, or replies made by the Administrator. 
The Administrator must provide the Town Manager access to all social media that the 
current subscription based Archive Social (a cloud based software that continuously Archive 
all of the posts, tweets, comments, reviews, and videos produced and received by connected 
social media) which currently includes: Facebook, YouTube, Instagram and Twitter. For all 
other social media accounts, the Administrator must configure the account settings or use a 
service which either delivers the content to the Town. 

 
 

2. The Administrator shall set any privacy settings on the social media site so the content on 
the site is as open to as many members of the general public as possible. No user may be 
denied from viewing (i.e. being a fan, follower or similar) the site. 

 
3. All content posted on the site and all responses to a user of the site shall be factual, 
accurate, and in compliance with all Town policies. An Administrator shall seek assistance 
before offering advice, support or comment on any topic that falls outside the 
Administrator's duties or responsibilities. 

 
D. Town Commission 

 
1. Each Town of Melbourne Beach Commissioner is responsible for all aspects of their 
personal social media page(s), including retention of records. To prevent a violation of the 
state sunshine law, Commissioners shall not post any comment or content to a social media 
site that is responsive to comment(s) of another Commissioner on any subject or matter that 
may foreseeably come before the entire Commissioner, unless duly noticed as a public 
meeting. 

 
2.No Town authorized social media site shall, or appear to, support or imply the 
endorsement of any elected public official, political candidate, political cause, party, or 
referendum issue, whether local, state or federal. 

  

110



Attachments: Candidate packages 

Date Prepared: August 14, 2020 

Prepared By: Jennifer Torres, Town Clerk 

Meeting Date: August 19, 2020 

Agenda Category: 
Proclamations & Awards Public Hearings 
Presentations Old Business 
Boards & Committees X New Business 
Consent Other: 

Subject: Qualifying Candidates for the 2020 Election 

Recommended Action: Confirm Qualified Candidates and Order Names to 
be printed on the November 3, 2020 Municipal 
General Election Ballot which will include a Special 
Election” for the balance of the term of the vacated 
Town Commission seat to be held in conjunction 
with (and included on the ballot for) the General 
Election. 

Background Information: Pursuant to Chapter 13, Section 13-3 of the Town  
Code, the Commission is required to meet as 
soon as practicable after the deadline for qualifying 
to get a report from the Town Clerk that the 
petitions are in order and the named candidates 
have qualified. 
The Town Clerk has verified the petition 
signatures, received the filing fees and reviewed 
and accepted the required forms from the following 
individuals. 

Wyatt Hoover - Mayor-at-large

Joyce Barton – Commissioner-at-Large 

Paul Carlson  – Commissioner-at-Large 

Gail Gowdy – Commissioner-at-Large 

 

111





113



114



115



116



117



118



119



120



121



122



123



124



125



126



127



128



129



130



131



132



133



134



135



136



137



138



139



140



141



142



143



144



145



146



147



148



149



150



151



152



153



154



155



156



157



158



159



160



161



162



163



164



165



166



167



168



169



170



Attachments: Emergency Order 2020-06 
Emergency Order 2020-07 
Draft of EO 2020-08 
Draft of EO 2020-09 

Date Prepared: August 14, 2020 

Prepared By: Town Clerk Torres 

Meeting Date: August 19, 2020 
 
Agenda Category: 

 Proclamations & Awards  Public Hearings 
 Presentations  Old Business 
 Boards & Committees X New Business 
 Consent  Other:  

 
Subject: Emergency Orders related to Face Masks 

Recommended Action: Consideration of extending Emergency Order 2020-
06 and 2020-07 –  Mayor Simmons 

Background Information: Current EO’s expire August 20, 2020 
 

171



172



173



174



175



176



177



178



179



180



181



182



183



184



Town of Melbourne Beach 

EMERGENCY ORDER NO. 2020-08 

AN EMERGENCY ORDER OF THE TOWN OF 
MELBOURNE BEACH, BREVARD COUNTY, FLORIDA, 
REQUIRING FACE COVERINGS AT ALL INDOOR TOWN 
FACILITIES TO MINIMIZE THE SPREAD OF COVID-19; 
MAKING LEGISLATIVE FINDINGS OF EMERGENCY AND 
SUPPORTING THE WEARING OF FACE COVERINGS AS 
AN EFFECTIVE MEASURE AGAINST THE SPREAD OF 
COVID-19; PROVIDING FOR  COVERING FACE 
REQUIREMENTS; PROVIDING  EXCEPTIONS; FOR 
PROVIDING FOR PENAL TIES; PROVIDING FOR SUNSET; 
PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY, CONFLICTS AND 
EFFECTIVE DATE. 

WHEREAS, Governor Desantis issued Executive Order No. 20-51 on March 1, 
2020 directing the Florida Department of Health to issue a Public Health Emergency; and 

WHEREAS, the State of Florida Surgeon General and State Health Officer 
declared on March 1, 2020 that a public health emergency exists in the State of Florida as 
a result of COVID-19; and 

WHEREAS, Governor Desantis issued Executive Order No. 20-52 on March 9, 
2020 declaring a state of emergency for the entire State of Florida as a result of 
COVID-19; as extended by Executive Order No. 20-113 and Executive Order No. 20-166; 
and 

WHEREAS, President Donald J. Trump and the Centers for Disease Control and 
Prevention ("CDC") issued the 15 Days to Slow the Spread guidance on March 16, 2020 
advising individuals to adopt far-reaching social distancing measures, and avoiding 
gatherings of more than 10 people; and 

WHEREAS, Governor Desantis issued Executive Order No. 20-68 on March 17, 
2020, in partial response to information reflecting individuals were not adhering to the 
CDC's social distancing measures and gathering limitations; and 

185



EMERGENCY ORDER 2020-08 PAGE 2 

WHEREAS, between March 17, 2020 and the date hereof, Governor Desantis 
issued several Executive Orders placing numerous restrictions on individuals and 
businesses in response to the Statewide level and threat of the COVID-19 virus; and 

WHEREAS, President Donald J. Trump updated and extended the previously 
issued 15 Days to Slow the Spread guidance on March 31, 2020, renamed it 30 Days to 
Slow the Spread, and along with the White House Coronavirus Task Force urged 
Americans to continue to adhere to the guidelines and expand community mitigation 
efforts; and 

WHEREAS, the Town of Melbourne Beach ("the Town") adopted a Proclamation 
declaring a Civil Emergency/State of Local Emergency ("the Proclamation") on March 18, 
2020 declaring a local state of emergency for the Town regarding the COVID-19 
emergency; and 

WHEREAS, as part of the Proclamation, the Town authorized the exercise of its 
authority and powers regarding the COVID-19 emergency to be exercised under the 
direction of the Mayor to the extent necessary to protect the public health, safety and 
welfare and the best interests of the Town, and 

WHEREAS, on April 29, 2020, Governor Desantis issued Executive Order 
#20-112 as modified by Executive Order #20-120 on May 9, 2020, and Executive Order 
#20-123 on May 14, 2020, in response to the recommendations set forth in Phase One of 
the Plan issued by the Task Force to Re-Open Florida, and adopted a phased approach 
to remove or decrease certain restrictions imposed pursuant to the Executive Order 
#20-91, Safer-At-Home Order; and 

WHEREAS, on June 3· 2020, Governor Desantis issued Executive Order #20-139, 
moving all counties in Florida, other than Miami-Dade, Broward, and Palm Beach 
counties, into Phase Two issued by the Task Force to Re-Open Florida, which order 
supersedes Executive Order #20-91, the Safer-At-Home Order, and supersedes in part, 
and extends and modified, other provisions of Executive Order 20-112; and 

WHEREAS, guidance released by the CDC on June 15, 2020 states that (i) the 
COVID-19 virus is mostly spread by respiratory droplets released when people cough, 
sneeze and talk and (ii) that a person can get COVID-19 by touching a surface or object 
that has the virus on it and then by touching their mouth, nose or possibly their eyes. 
This guidance goes on to state that "personal prevention practices (such as staying home 
when sick, social distancing, wearing a cloth face covering, and handwashing) and 
environmental prevention practices (such as cleaning and disinfection) are important are 
important ways to prevent the spread of COVID-19; and 

WHEREAS, the CDC has expressly found that "COVID-19 spreads mainly from 
person to person through respiratory droplets produced when a person coughs, sneezes 

186



EMERGENCY ORDER 2020-08 PAGE 3 

or talks. These droplets can land on the mouths or noses of people nearby and possibly 
inhaled into the lungs. Studies and evidence on infection control report that these droplets 
usually travel around 6 feet (about "2 arms' length"); and 

WHEREAS, the CDC therefore specifically recommends that as businesses and 
communities reopen, and people resume their daily activities, people should wear face 
coverings to slow the spread of COVID-19 particularly in "pubic settings where other 
social distancing measures are difficult to maintain"; and 

WHEREAS, on June 20, 2020, the State of Florida Surgeon General, Scott A. 
Rivkees, M.D., issued a Public Health Advisory recommending the wearing of face 
coverings in any setting where social distancing is not possible, except under certain 
circumstances; and 

WHEREAS, Sections 876.12 through 876.15 of the Florida Statutes, make it 
unlawful to wear a mask, however, pursuant to Section 876.155, Florida Statutes, this 
prohibition of mask wearing only applies when there is also evidence that there is an 
intent to intimidate other people, deprive them equal protection under the law, or engage 
in criminal conduct; and 

WHEREAS, based on the information provided by the Florida Department of 
Health in Brevard County, and updated daily, the COVID-19 cases in the Town of 
Melbourne Beach has been rising substantially since the re-opening of the State of 
Florida; and 

WHEREAS, based on the advice of medical professionals, the number of 
COVI D-19 cases will continue to rise unless measures are instituted to stop the spread of 
the COVID-19 virus; and 

WHEREAS, the Town Commission resolves that it is in the best interest of the 
residents of the Town of Melbourne Beach and it is the furtherance of the public health, 
safety, and welfare, to formally adopt this Order to require face coverings in indoor Town 
owned and operated facilities as specified herein on an emergency basis in accordance 
with Chapter 16 of the Town of Melbourne Beach Ordinances. 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT ENACTED BY AN EMERGENCY ORDER BY THE TOWN 
COMMISSION OF THE TOWN OF MELBOURNE BEACH, FLORIDA, as follows: 

Section 1. The above recitals are adopted by the Town Commission as 
legislative findings. 

187



EMERGENCY ORDER 2020-08 PAGE4 

Section 2. Definitions. 

"Face Covering" shall mean a uniform piece of material that securely 
covers a persons' nose and mouth and remains affixed in place without the use of one's 
hands, whether store-bought or homemade, concurrent with CDC guidelines. 

"Social Distancing" shall mean keeping space between yourself and 
other people by staying at least 6 feet (or approximately 2 arms' length) from other 
people. 

Section 3. Face Coverings Required. 

(a). Every Person living, working, or visiting the Town of Melbourne 
Beach shall wear a face covering in every indoor Town owned and operated 
facility. 
Section 4. Exceptions. 

(a) Persons under the age of 6 years old; or
(b) Persons observing social distancing under the CDC guidelines;

or
(c) Persons for whom a face covering would cause impairment due

to an existing health condition; or
(d) Persons working in a business or profession who do not have

contact with other people; or
(e) Persons working in a business or profession who maintain

continuous social distancing from another person; or
(f) Persons working in a business or profession where working with

a face covering would prevent them from performing the duties of
the business or profession; or

(g) Persons exercising while maintaining social distancing; and
(h) Persons eating or drinking; or
(i) Public safety, fire, and other life safety and public health

personnel, as their personal protection equipment will be
governed by their respective agencies; or

U) This requirement shall not apply when a person who is hearing
impaired needs to see the mouth of someone wearing a face
covering in order to communicate.

Section 5. Penalties. 

(a). Civil Citation. Any person violating the terms of this Emergency Order and 
found in violation may be punished and fined up to $100.00 by the Police Department. A 
warning and a complimentary mask will be provided for a first offense; the fine for a 

188



EMERGENCY ORDER 2020-08 PAGE 5 

second offense shall be $50.00, and the fine for a third or more offense shall be $100.00 
for each of the third and successive offense(s). 

Section 6. Severability. In the event a court of competent jurisdiction shall 
hold or determine that any part of this Order is invalid or unconstitutional, the remainder of 
Order not be affected and it will be presumed that the Town Commission for the Town of 
Melbourne Beach did not intend to enact such invalid or unconstitutional provision. It 
shall further be assumed that the Town Commission would have enacted the remainder 
of this Order without said invalid and unconstitutional provision thereby causing said 
remainder to remain in full force and effect. 

Section 7. Conflicts. All ordinances or parts of ordinances or orders or parts 
of orders in conflict herewith are hereby repealed. 

Section 8. Effective Date and Sunset. This Emergency Order shall 
become effective on Friday, August 21 at 12:01 am., and shall sunset at 12:00 midnight 
on Thursday, September 17, 2020. 

• 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and caused the Seal of the Town to be 
affixed in Melbourne Beach, Florida on this 19th Day of August, 2020.

ATTEST

________________________   _________________________    
Jennifer Torres, Town Clerk     James D. Simmons, Mayor 

189



Town of Melbourne Beach 

EMERGENCY ORDER NO. 2020-09

AN EMERGENCY ORDER OF THE TOWN OF 
MELBOURNE BEACH, BREVARD COUNTY, FLORIDA, 
REQUIRING ALL BUSINESSES TO POST THEIR MASK 
POLICY AT THE ENTRY OF THE BUSINESS TO ADVISE 
CUSTOMERS, PATRONS, EMPLOYEES AND BUSINESS 
INVITEES OF SAME PRIOR TO ENTERING THE 
BUSINESSES; REQUIRING CUSTOMERS, PATRONS, 
EMPLOYEES AND BUSINESS INVITEES OF ESSENTIAL 
BUSINESSES, AS DEFINED HEREIN, TO WEAR MASKS; 
MAKING LEGISLATIVE FINDINGS OF EMERGENCY AND 
SUPPORTING THE WEARING OF FACE COVERINGS AS 
AN EFFECTIVE MEASURE AGAINST THE SPREAD OF 
COVID-19; PROVIDING FOR EXCEPTIONS; PROVIDING 
FOR PENAL TIES; PROVIDING FOR SUNSET; PROVIDING 
FOR SEVERABILITY, CONFLICTS AND EFFECTIVE DATE. 

WHEREAS, Governor Desantis issued Executive Order No. 20-51 on March 1, 
2020 directing the Florida Department of Health to issue a Public Health Emergency; and 

WHEREAS, the State of Florida Surgeon General and State Health Officer 
declared on March 1, 2020 that a public health emergency exists in the State of Florida as 
a result of COVID-19; and 

WHEREAS, Governor Desantis issued Executive Order No. 20-52 on March 9, 
2020 declaring a state of emergency for the entire State of Florida as a result of 
COVID-19; as extended by Executive Order No. 20-113 and Executive Order No. 20-166; 
and 

WHEREAS, President Donald J. Trump and the Centers for Disease Control and 
Prevention ("CDC") issued the 15 Days to Slow the Spread guidance on March 16, 2020 
advising individuals to adopt far-reaching social distancing measures, and avoiding 
gatherings of more than 10 people; and 

190



EMERGENCY ORDER 2020-09 PAGE 2 

WHEREAS, Governor Desantis issued Executive Order No. 20-68 on March 17, 
2020, in partial response to information reflecting individuals were not adhering to the 
CDC's social distancing measures and gathering limitations; and 

WHEREAS, between March 17, 2020 and the date hereof, Governor Desantis 
issued several Executive Orders placing numerous restrictions on individuals and 
businesses in response to the Statewide level and threat of the COVID-19 virus; and 

WHEREAS, President Donald J. Trump updated and extended the previously 
issued 15 Days to Slow the Spread guidance on March 31, 2020, renamed it 30 Days to 
Slow the Spread, and along with the White House Coronavirus Task Force urged 
Americans to continue to adhere to the guidelines and expand community mitigation 
efforts; and 

WHEREAS, the Town of Melbourne Beach ("the Town") adopted a Proclamation 
declaring a Civil Emergency/State of Local Emergency ("the Proclamation") on March 18, 
2020 declaring a local state of emergency for the Town regarding the COVID-19 
emergency; and 

WHEREAS, as part of the Proclamation, the Town authorized the exercise of its 
authority and powers regarding the COVID-19 emergency to be exercised under the 
direction of the Mayor to the extent necessary to protect the public health, safety and 
welfare and the best interests of the Town, and 

WHEREAS, on April 29, 2020, Governor Desantis issued Executive Order 
#20-112 as modified by Executive Order #20-120 on May 9, 2020, and Executive Order 
#20-123 on May 14, 2020, in response to the recommendations set forth in Phase One of 
the Plan issued by the Task Force to Re-Open Florida, and adopted a phased approach 
to remove or decrease certain restrictions imposed pursuant to the Executive Order 
#20-91, Safer-At-Home Order; and 

WHEREAS, on June 3· 2020, Governor Desantis issued Executive Order #20-139, 
moving all counties in Florida, other than Miami-Dade, Broward, and Palm Beach 
counties, into Phase Two issued by the Task Force to Re-Open Florida, which order 
supersedes Executive Order #20-91, the Safer-At-Home Order, and supersedes in part, 
and extends and modified, other provisions of Executive Order 20-112; and 

WHEREAS, guidance released by the CDC on June 15, 2020 states that (i) the 
COVID-19 virus is mostly spread by respiratory droplets released when people cough, 
sneeze and talk and (ii) that a person can get COVID-19 by touching a surface or object 
that has the virus on it and then by touching their mouth, nose or possibly their eyes. 
This guidance goes on to state that "personal prevention practices (such as staying home 
when sick, social distancing, wearing a cloth face covering, and handwashing) and 
environmental prevention practices (such as cleaning and disinfection) are important are 
important ways to prevent the spread of COVID-19; and 

191



EMERGENCY ORDER 2020-09 PAGE 3 

WHEREAS, the CDC has expressly found that "COVID-19 spreads mainly from 
person to person through respiratory droplets produced when a person coughs, sneezes 
or talks. These droplets can land on the mouths or noses of people nearby and possibly 
inhaled into the lungs. Studies and evidence on infection control report that these droplets 
usually travel around 6 feet (about "2 arms' length"); and 

WHEREAS, the CDC therefore specifically recommends that as businesses and 
communities reopen, and people resume their daily activities, people should wear face 
coverings to slow the spread of COVID-19 particularly in "pubic settings where other 
social distancing measures are difficult to maintain"; and 

WHEREAS, on June 20, 2020, the State of Florida Surgeon General, Scott A. 
Rivkees, M.D., issued a Public Health Advisory recommending the wearing of face 
coverings in any setting where social distancing is not possible, except under certain 
circumstances; and 

WHEREAS, Sections 876.12 through 876.15 of the Florida Statutes, make it 
unlawful to wear a mask, however, pursuant to Section 876.155, Florida Statutes, this 
prohibition of mask wearing only applies when there is also evidence that there is an 
intent to intimidate other people, deprive them equal protection under the law, or engage 
in criminal conduct; and 

WHEREAS, based on the information provided by the Florida Department of 
Health in Brevard County, and updated daily, the COVID-19 cases in the Town of 
Melbourne Beach has been rising substantially since the re-opening of the State of 
Florida; and 

WHEREAS, based on the advice of medical professionals, the number of 
COVID-19 cases will continue to rise unless measures are instituted to stop the spread of 
the COVID-19 virus; and 

WHEREAS, the State of Florida has the highest percentage of population in the 
United States 65 years of age and older, as well as the second largest population of that 
demographic; and 

WHEREAS, based upon recent updated census estimates, the demographic of 
residents 65 years of age and older living in the Town of Melbourne Beach is 18.7%; and 

WHEREAS, according to the CDC, the vast majority of persons that test positive 
for the COVID-19 virus that are hospitalized or die from the virus are persons over the age 
of 65 years and/or have underlying health conditions; and 

WHEREAS, according the CDC, overall, 31 % of cases, 45% of hospitalizations, 
53% of ICU admissions, and 80% of deaths associated with COVID-19 were among 

192



EMERGENCY ORDER 2020-09 PAGE4 

adults aged 65 years of age and older with the highest percentage of severe outcomes 
among persons aged 85 years of age and older; and 

WHEREAS, the Town Commission has determined that it is in the best interest of 
the residents of the Town of Melbourne Beach and it is the furtherance of the public 
health, safety, and welfare, to formally adopt this Order to require all businesses to post 
their face covering policy to alert older persons and persons with underlying conditions 
whether or not all other persons within a business will have face coverings as a way to 
make informed decisions to enter a business; as specified herein on an emergency basis 
in accordance with Chapter 16 of the Town of Melbourne Beach Ordinances and require 
businesses that are deemed essential to the needs of all residents to require face 
coverings for all patrons. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ENACTED BY AN EMERGENCY ORDER BY THE 
TOWN COMMISSION OF THE TOWN OF MELBOURNE BEACH, FLORIDA, as follows: 

Section 1. The above recitals are adopted by the Town Commission as 
legislative findings. 

Section 2. Definitions. 

"Face Covering" shall mean a uniform piece of material that securely 
covers a person's nose and mouth and remains affixed in place without the use of one's 
hands, whether store-bought or homemade, concurrent with CDC guidelines. 

Section 3. Businesses Required to Post Face Coverings Policy on their 
Doorway. 

(a). Every business in the Town of Melbourne Beach with a 
storefront that allows customers into their building for the purpose of purchasing 
goods and services are required to post their Policy requirements for Face 
Coverings for their customers, patrons and employees. 

(b ). The Policy shall be posted on the entry doorway in a clearly 
visible manner for all customers to read prior to entering the business. 

(c). All businesses are encouraged to prohibit entry of any person 
who is not wearing a face covering with the exception of the below listed persons: 

1. Persons under the age of 6 years old; or
2. Persons for whom a face covering would cause impairment

due to an existing health condition; or
3. Persons exercising while maintaining social distancing; or
4. Persons eating or drinking; or

193



EMERGENCY ORDER 2020-09 PAGE5 

5. When a person who is hearing impaired needs to see the
mouth of someone wearing a face covering in order to
communicate.

Section 4. "Essential" businesses required to mandate Face Coverings 
for all customers and employees. 

(a). Every business in the Town of Melbourne Beach with a 
storefront that allows customers in their building for the purpose of purchasing 
goods and services that are deemed to be essential to all residents (gas stations, 
convenience stores, grocery stores, and drug stores) are required to mandate face 
coverings for their customers, patrons, employees and business invitees. 

(b ). The mandate shall be posted on the entry doorway in a clearly 
visible manner for all customers to read prior to entering the business. 

(c). Essential businesses are required to prohibit entry of any 
person who is not wearing a face covering with the exception of the below listed 
persons: 

1. Persons under the age of 6 years old; or
2. Persons for whom a face covering would cause impairment due

to an existing health condition; or
3. Persons eating or drinking; or
4. When a person who is hearing impaired needs to see the mouth

of someone wearing a face covering in order to communicate.

Section 5. Penalties. 

(a). Civil Citation. Any person violating the terms of this Emergency Order and 
found in violation may be punished and fined up to $100.00 by the Police Department. A 
warning and a complimentary mask will be provided for a first offense; the fine for a 
second offense shall be $50.00, and the fine for a third or more offense shall be $100.00 
for each of the third and successive offense(s). 

Section 6. Severability. In the event a court of competent jurisdiction shall 
hold or determine that any part of this Order is invalid or unconstitutional, the remainder of 
the Order shall not be affected and it will be presumed that the Town Commission for the 
Town of Melbourne Beach did not intend to enact such invalid or unconstitutional 
provision. It shall further be assumed that the Town Commission would have enacted 
the remainder of this Order without said invalid and unconstitutional provision thereby 
causing said remainder to remain in full force and effect. 

Section 7. Conflicts. All ordinances or parts of ordinances or orders or parts 
of orders in conflict herewith are hereby repealed. 

194



EMERGENCY ORDER 2020-09 PAGE 6 

Section 8. Effective Date and Sunset. This Emergency Order shall become 
effective on Friday, August 21 at 12:01 am., and shall sunset at 12:00 midnight on 
Thursday, September 17, 2020. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and caused the Seal of the Town to 

be affixed in Melbourne Beach, Florida on this 19th Day of August, 2020.

ATTEST

________________________   _________________________    

Jennifer Torres, Town Clerk              James D. Simmons, Mayor 

195



Attachments: Email from Karen Fenaughty from Florida Solar 
Energy Council.  Email from Curtis Byrd regarding 
Energy Audit and Page 26 of Sustainability Action 
Plan. 

Date Prepared: 8/5/2020 

Prepared By: Elizabeth Mascaro 

Meeting Date: 8/19/2020 

  
 
Agenda Category: 

 Proclamations & Awards  Public Hearings 
 Presentations  Old Business 
 Boards & Committees x New Business 
 Consent  Other:  

 
Subject: Energy Audit for Town Hall Complex-Addresses 

Priority Action Item No.7-Increased renewable 
energy use with town municipal infrastructure in the 
Guidelines for Sustainable Actions (EAB) 

Recommended Action: Review Proposal from Florida Solar Energy Council 
on Performing and Energy Analysis and Solar 
Feasibility Assessment at a cost of $5,000.00 

Background Information: EAB’s Guidelines for Sustainable Actions has a 
Priority Action Item calling for the Town to increase 
its renewable energy use. 5 action items were 
identified: 
1. Conduct energy audit 
2. Complete replacement of all current lighting with 
LED. 
3. Install at least one electric vehicle charging 
station. 
4. Assess feasibility of solar energy installation in 
Town Hall Complex. 
5. Voluntarily strive for Town operations to use 
100% renewable energy by 2030. 
 
The EAB Board contacted Karen Fenaughty with 
Florida Solar Energy Council to determine the scope 
and cost of an energy audit for the Town Hall 
Complex. 

196



197



198



199



200



201



202



203



204



205



206



Attachments: Examples of Storm Drain Art (3 pages) 

Date Prepared: 8/14/2020 

Prepared By: Elizabeth Mascaro 

Meeting Date: 8/19/2020 

  
 
Agenda Category: 

 Proclamations & Awards  Public Hearings 
 Presentations  Old Business 
 Boards & Committees x New Business 
 Consent  Other:  

 
Subject: Artwork to be Painted on the Town’s Storm Drains 

Recommended Action: Review examples of existing Stormwater Art Work 
from Baltimore, MD., Dubuque, IA. and Clearwater, 
FL. 

Background Information: Curtis Byrd, Chairman of the EAB, asked to have 
the Commission consider allowing artwork to be 
painted on the Town’s Stormwater drains.  The 
artwork would be completed by local artists (local 
schools, churches, youth groups and local artists) 
free of charge.  The Town would supply the art 
supplies. Concept drawings would be required prior 
to beginning the project.  Approval of the drawings 
could come from the EAB, Commission or Town 
Hall.  

 

207



208



209



210



Attachments: Quote for New Software Licenses for Microsoft Office 
From Computer Experts 

Date Prepared: 8/14/2020 

Prepared By: Elizabeth Mascaro 

Meeting Date: 8/19/2020 

  
 
Agenda Category: 

 Proclamations & Awards  Public Hearings 
 Presentations  Old Business 
 Boards & Committees x New Business 
 Consent  Other:  

 
Subject: New Computer Software Licenses for 15 

Workstations at a cost of $5985.00 

Recommended Action: Review Quote from Computer Experts for new 
Software Licenses. 

Background Information: The Town’s current software licenses for Microsoft 
Office expire in October 2020.  Those licenses have 
been good for the past 10 years.  There is no fixed 
time frame as to when the new licenses would 
expire.  Once the licenses expire the Town will no 
longer be supported (i.e.. no updates, security 
issues updated virus protection, especially for Police 
Department). 
 
The Town does have the option to pay a 
subscription price of $100.00 per person, annually 
for 20 people or a cost of $2,000 per year.  The 
workstation cost would be recouped in 3years if we 
were to pay the subscription price. 
 

 

211



   

 
 
 

.    
 
 

1500 Palm Bay Road, Suite1 Palm Bay, Florida 32905  
 Tel (321)726-5977 ● Fax (321)722-0735 ● website: www.mycomputerexperts.net ● email: sales@mycomputerexperts.net 

1500 Palm Bay Road, Suite 1, Palm Bay, Florida 32905 (321) 726-5977 or Fax: (321) 722-0735  

Software Licenses 

 
June 16, 2020 

Proposal 
Town of Melbourne  
507 Ocean Avenue 
Melbourne Beach, Florida 32951 
(321)  724-5860 Tel (321)984-8994 Fax 
 
 
 
 
Item Description        Qty.  Cost/Unit Ext. Price  
Microsoft Office 2019 Standard Edition VLK (Govt)    15  $ 399.00    $ 5,985.00  
 
 
           Sub Total: $ 5,985.00 
           Tax:  $   Exempt 
           Total:  $ 5,985.00 

 
 
We propose hereby to furnish goods– complete in accordance with above specifications for the sum of   $ 5,985.00 

 

Payment to be made as follows; Company check due at installation. 
 

Seller may withdraw this proposal if not accepted within 10 days.    
 

The buyer hereby agrees to pay all collection expenses, including reasonable attorney’s fees, expenses, and costs, if it becomes 
necessary to collect the balance through legal action. 
 

The party signing this agreement hereby agrees to the terms and conditions as stated above.  You are authorized to do the work as 
specified.  Payment will be made as outlined above. 
 

Buyer’s Signature       Date   

212



Attachments: BBT CDARS Certificate of Deposit Accounts 
(three pages) 

Date Prepared: August 12, 2020 
Requested By: Jennifer Kerr 
Meeting Date: April 19, 2020 
  
 
Agenda Category: (check all that apply) 

 Proclamations & Awards  Public Hearings 
 Presentations  Old Business 
 Boards & Committees x New Business 
 Consent  Other: Workshop 

 
Subject: Moving money from the Reserve Account into a 

360 day Certificate of Deposit account with an 
estimated 0.05%* annual percentage yield, 
which translates to $498.35 at 360 days. 

Recommended Action: Approve the transfer of $1,010,560.00 from the 
Town’s BBT Reserve account into two BBT 
CDARS Certificate of Deposit account for 360 
days. Each CD will hold $505,280.00 

Background: The Town receives an average of $8.43 per 
month in interest on our BBT Savings (Reserve) 
Account.  By moving funds, in the amount of, 
$1,010,560.00 into a 360 Day Certificate of 
Deposit, the Town will earn $498.35 in interest 
instead of $101.16.  The funds will be FDIC 
insured.  If the Town needed to utilize the money 
prior to the 360 day term, we would forfeit 3 
months of simple interest earned on the 
principal amount withdrawn or $25.00, 
whichever is greater. There is no risk to the 
principal after 3 months. Certificates of Deposit 
are not in the “market”. 

  
 
*Interest rate subject to change from the time this is submitted until the time a decision is 
approved and the CD signed for.  

213



214



215



216



Attachments: Proposed Resolution 2020-05 

Date Prepared: August 13, 2020 

Prepared By: Finance Manager Jennifer Kerr 

Meeting Date: August 19, 2020 
 
Agenda Category: 

 Proclamations & Awards  Public Hearings 
 Presentations  Old Business 
 Boards & Committees X New Business 
 Consent  Other:  

 
Subject: Proposed Resolution 2020-05 

Recommended Action: Consideration of Budget Resolution 2020-05 

Background Information: Carry Forward Revenue Fund balances for 
utilization from FY19 to FY20 

 

217



218



RESOLUTION NO. 2020-05 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN OF MELBOURNE BEACH, BREVARD 
COUNTY, FLORIDA, AMENDING THE BUDGET FOR THE FISCAL 
YEAR 2019-2020; AMENDING RESOLUTION NO 2019-05 RELATED TO 
THE USE OF ALL BALANCE CARRY FORWARDS FOR ALL FUNDS 
EXCEPT THE GENERAL FUND; ESTABLISHING AUTHORITY FOR 
THE TOWN MANAGER TO IMPLEMENT THE BUDGET; AND 
PROVIDING FOR ADOPTION. 

WHEREAS, the Town Commission adopted the Budget for the Town of Melbourne Beach for 
the fiscal year beginning October 1, 2019 and ending September 30, 2020 by Resolution No 
2019-05; and 

WHEREAS, this Resolution amends Resolution No. 2019-05 covering the period October 1, 
2019 to September 30, 2020; and 

WHEREAS, the Town Commission of the Town of Melbourne Beach has conducted the 
requisite public hearing(s) on this resolution as required by Section 166.241, Florida Statutes and 
Section 15-6, Melbourne Beach Code of Ordinances. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Town Commission of the Town of 
Melbourne Beach, Florida, as follows: 

 
Section 1. Carry Forward Revenue Balances for Utilization from FY2019 to FY2020 for the 
following Funds:  
 
Fund 121 – Police Education Book Fund in the amount of $9,746 
Fund 124 – Building Department Education Fund in the amount of $903 
Fund 125 – Building Department Fund in the amount of $0.00 
Fund 141 – Stormwater Utility Fund in the amount of $104,400 
Fund 201 – Municipal Complex Bond Fund in the amount of $0.00 
Fund 202 – Stormwater Bond Debt Fund in the amount of $277,668 
Fund 333 – Long Term Capital Projects Fund in amount of $207,593.61 
Fund 341 – Stormwater Bond Grants Fund in the amount of $208,112 
Fund 390 – Historic Preservation and Awareness Fund in the amount of $8,173.94 
Fund 391 – Old Town Hall History Center Fund in the amount of $21,230.45 
Fund 622 – Police Donations Fund in the amount of $1,578.43 

  

Section 2. That the amounts shown in Section 1. of the Resolution are hereby appropriated 
out of the treasury of the Town and any revenues accruing to the Town available for said 
purposes of the Town’s budgetary accounts. 

219



Section 3. That the Town Manager is hereby authorized and directed to proceed with the 
implementation of the service programs and projects provided for in the budget. Such 
implementation is to be consistent with the provisions of the Town Code of Ordinances and 
policies established by the Mayor and Town Commission. 

Section 4. That the appropriations and authorizations provided in this resolution are hereby 
made effective as of August 19, 2020. 

 
 
PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Town Commission of the Town of Melbourne Beach, 
Brevard County, Florida, at its regular meeting this 19th day of August, 2020. 
 
 
       TOWN OF MELBOURNE BEACH, 
       FLORIDA, a Florida Municipal Corporation 
 
 
       By: ________________________________ 
        James D. Simmons, Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
_____________________________ 
Jennifer Torres 
Town Clerk 

220



Attachments: Justification Summary for Equipment Trailer & 
Chief/Administrative Vehicle for the Fire Department 

Date Prepared: 8-11-2020 

Prepared By: Gavin Brown 

Meeting Date: August 19, 2020 
 
Agenda Category: 

 Proclamations & Awards  Public Hearings 

 Presentations  Old Business 

 Boards & Committees x New Business 

 Consent  Other:  

 
Subject: Reallocation of Funds from FY 2019-2020 Fire 

Control Budget 

Recommended Action:  
1) Move Extractor Washer/Dryer line item to 

long term capital fund. ($11,000) 
 

2) Allow repainting of Fire Department interior 
garage walls with funding from Floor 
Refinishing capital item. ($1,475)   

 
3) Move remaining funds from Professional 

Services to long term capital fund to assist 
with the purchase of an equipment trailer and 
chief/administrative vehicle for the Fire 
Department. (Approx. $50,000) 

 

Background Information:  
1. The Melbourne Beach Vol. Fire Department has 

partnered with 3 other local fire agencies to 
submit a FEMA regional AFG grant to assist with 
the purchase of an Extractor style bunker gear 
washing machine and dryer.  At this point the 
grant is under review and we are still awaiting 
notification from FEMA if the grant is going to be 
awarded.  By moving the current Extractor funds 
to long term capital, it will allow us to hold off on 
spending the full amount allocated until we have 
a better idea if we will be getting any federal aid 
for the project.  Either way there will still be a cost 
for the equipment and for the building to be 
retrofitted with utilities to allow installation. 

221



 
2.  The Fire Department is requesting that the 

Commission consider allowing the remaining 
$1,475 of the budgeted $27,000 short term 
capital floor refinishing funds to go towards 
repainting the interior Fire Department garage 
walls.  The walls have not been repainted since 
the building was built in 2004, and if we are 
planning on painting the interior walls for upkeep, 
now would be the time to do it before the floors 
are refinished and while everything is already 
moved out.  The Department volunteers would 
provide free labor to clean, prep, and paint the 
walls. 

 
 

3. As discussed during the last Commission 
Meeting, the Professional Services budget line 
item (Volunteer Firefighter Stipend & Physicals) is 
projected to have a substantial surplus this fiscal 
year (approx. $50,000) due to recruitment, 
training, and physical exam scheduling 
constraints placed on the Department from the 
COVID-19 health crisis.  The Department is 
requesting the Commission consider allowing the 
remaining funding left in this category at the end 
of the fiscal year to be reallocated to a long term 
capital fund to go towards the purchase of an 
equipment trailer and chief/administrative vehicle.  
Attached is a justification summary detailing why 
we believe both of these items would be 
significant improvements for the Fire Department.   

 
 

 

222



Town of Melbourne Beach 

Fire Department 
 

August 11th, 2020 
 

Justification for Equipment Trailer &  
Chief/Administrative Vehicle for the Fire Department 

 

 

Summary 

 This year there will be a surplus in the Professional Services line item (approx. $50,000) 

 The surplus is due to the way the volunteer stipend program was designed (to prevent any 

budget overrun) and the training, recruitment, and medical constraints due to COVID-19. 

 Next fiscal year we project there will not be as big of a surplus. 

 We are requesting the surplus from this year be reallocated to a long term capital fund for the 

purpose of purchasing an equipment trailer and chief/administrative vehicle. 

 

Equipment Trailer 

 Used to quickly transport hazmat containment supplies, traffic cones, and larger specialized 

fire/rescue equipment. 

 Allows for critical equipment to be pre-loaded instead of having to load before responding. 

 Can also be used to transport the ATV. 

 Could be used by other Town Departments to transport barricades or other supplies. 

 Aluminum trailer will resist rusting and provide longevity of use. 

 Approx. cost $8,000. 

 

Chief/Administrative Vehicle 

 Used for emergency response of the Fire Chief and for administrative purposes (errands, 

shuttling apparatus, etc.) by other members of the Department. 

 Hybrid Electric Vehicle would be better for environment, save on fuel costs, and put less wear 

and tear on Fire Department apparatus that are more expensive to maintain. 

 Would become the most used vehicle in the Fire Department’s fleet. 

 Would keep fire apparatus in-service for primary purposes. 

 Historically the Department has gone back and forth between having a chief’s vehicle, currently 

the Fire Chief responds to emergencies in his personal vehicle. 

 Approx. cost fully outfitted $42,000. 

223



224



Attachments: Draft Ordinance 

Date Prepared: 8/10/2020 

Prepared By: Attorney Bonni Jensen advised the Police Pension 
Board of the updates please see her explanation 
below.  
 

Meeting Date: 8/19/2020 
 
Agenda Category: 

 Proclamations & Awards  Public Hearings 
 Presentations  Old Business 
 Boards & Committees X New Business 
 Consent  Other:  

 
Subject: Consideration of proposed amendment  

Recommended Action: That the Board’s request that the Town Commission 
give the Board the authority to adopt required tax 
compliance changes (like the SECURE Act) by 
policy and then request the Town Commission to 
add by Ordinance at a later date.   

Background Information: “The amendment implements the federal SECURE 
Act that was signed into law by President Trump in 
December.  The law, as it relates to Public Pension 
Plans, changes the age for the required minimum 
distributions from 70 ½ to age 72 effective January 
1, 2020.  Additionally, I am recommending that the 
Board’s request that the Town Commission give the 
Board the authority to adopt required tax 
compliance changes (like the SECURE Act) by 
policy and then request the Town Commission to 
add by Ordinance at a later date.  This will help to 
keep the plan in compliance.  The SECURE Act 
change is mandatory.  The adoption of Tax changes 
by policy is discretionary, but recommended as a 
best practice.” 

 

225



226



ORDINANCE NO.

AN ORDINANCE OF THE TOWN OF MELBOURNE BEACH, BREVARD
COUNTY, FLORIDA, RELATING TO THE POLICE OFFICERS'
RETIREMENT SYSTEM; AMENDING SECTION 11-54, TOWN CODE,
RETIREMENT; AMENDING SECTION 11-54 (k)(2), TOWN CODE,
REQUIRED DISTRIBUTIONS, TO AMEND THE REQUIRED MINIMUM
DISTRIBUTION AGE; AMENDING SECTION 11-54 (l)(4), TOWN CODE,
MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS, TO ADD A NEW SUBSECTION
ENTITLED QUALIFICATION OF SYSTEM; PROVIDING FOR
SEVERABILITY AND INTERPRETATION; AND PROVIDING AN
EFFECTIVE DATE.

WHEREAS, changes to the Internal Revenue Code may happen quickly and

frequently. There is a benefit in authorizing the Board to make appropriate changes to the

Plan in order to maintain the Plan’s tax qualified status; 

WHEREAS, effective January 1, 2020, the Internal Revenue Code was amended

by increasing the required minimum distribution age from 70½ to 72;         

WHEREAS, to implement the change, it is necessary to amend the Plan; and

WHEREAS, the Town Commission desires to make such changes to the Retirement

Plan.

BE IT ENACTED by the Town of Melbourne Beach, Florida:

Section 1. That section 11-54(k)(2)(B) of the Town Code of the Town of
Melbourne Beach, Florida, is hereby amended as follows:

§ 11-54. RETIREMENT.

* * *

(k) Required distributions.

* * *

Page 1 of  300159557.WPD;1

227



     (2)   Any and all benefit payments shall begin by the later of:

         (A) April 1 of the calendar year following the calendar year of the
member’s retirement date; or

         (B) April 1 of the calendar year following the calendar year in which the
member attains age 72 70 ½, provided the member had not
attained age 70½ by December 31, 2019.

* * *

Section 2. That section 11-54(l) of the Town Code of the Town of Melbourne

Beach, Florida, is hereby amended by adding new subsection (4) as follows:

(l) Miscellaneous provisions.

* * *

(4) Qualification of system:

(A)   It is intended that the Plan be administered at all times in
accordance with the provisions of the Internal Revenue
Code and the corresponding Treasury Regulations
applicable to a governmental defined benefit retirement
plan.

(B) In recognition of the changing requirements of Plan
qualification, the Board shall adopt an administrative
policy setting forth the required provisions for tax
qualification. Such a policy shall be amended by the Board
as required to maintain continuing compliance with the
Internal Revenue Code and that policy and any
amendments shall have the force of law as if adopted by
the Town Commission.

Section 3. Severability and Interpretation

(a) In the event that any term, provision, clause, sentence or section of this
Ordinance shall be held by a court of competent jurisdiction to be partially or wholly
unenforceable or invalid for any reason whatsoever, any such invalidity, illegality, or
unenforceability shall not affect any of the other or remaining terms, provisions, clauses,
sentences, or sections of this Ordinance, and this Ordinance shall be read and/or applied
as if the invalid, illegal, or unenforceable term, provision, clause, sentence, or section did
not exist.

Page 2 of  300159557.WPD;1

228



(b) In interpreting the provisions of this Ordinance, the following rules and symbols
shall apply:

(1) Words underlined are additions to existing text.

(2) Words stricken through are deletions from existing text.

(3) Asterisks (* * *) indicates an omission from the Ordinance of text existing in
the Code of Ordinances. It is intended that the text in the Code of
Ordinances denoted by the asterisks and not set forth in this Ordinance shall
remain unchanged from the language existing prior to adoption of this
Ordinance.

Section 4. Effective Date. This Ordinance shall become effective immediately upon
adoption, unless another effective date is indicated by in the amendment.

PASSED by the Town Commission of the Town of Melbourne Beach on first reading
on the _______ day of ________________, 2020, and ADOPTED by the Town
Commission of the Town of Melbourne Beach, Brevard County, Florida, on second/final
reading the ________ day of __________________, 2020.

TOWN OF MELBOURNE BEACH,
FLORIDA

By: ___________________________

Jim Simmons, Mayor

ATTEST:

_____________________________________

Jennifer Torres, Town Clerk (TOWN SEAL)

Page 3 of  300159557.WPD;1

229



230



Attachments: Supporting documentation 

Date Prepared: 12 August 2020 

Prepared By: Tom Davis 

Meeting Date: 8-19-20 
 
Agenda Category: 

 Proclamations & Awards  Public Hearings 
 Presentations  Old Business 
 Boards & Committees x New Business 
 Consent  Other:  

 
Subject: Bike lanes/markings 

Recommended Action: Discussion/ possible action 

Background Information: Item had been an action item. The Commission had 
requested that staff research options to make for 
safer bike travel in our Town.  Research has been 
completed and two options identified. Seeking 
direction from the Commission as to what if any 
action should be taken. 

 

231



232



233



234



235



236



       Town Manager Report for July 2020 
 

1.   Received notification from Jim Stroz at FDOT, that lowering the speed limit on A1A to 35 mph looks 
favorable.  The final review should be sent to me any day as Jim thought he would have a final by @July 
7th. 

2.  The two dates for the Budget Workshop are: Wednesday, September 9th at 6:00 pm and Monday, 
September 21st at 6:00pm.  The Millage rate was changed to 4.5151 (4% change over rollback) due to 
the increase in the roll back rate provided by the Florida Department of Revenue. 

3.  The Comprehensive Plan sent to me on 8/13/2020 for a final review after our meeting in July to make 
final edits. Once the edits are finalized the document will be brought before the Commission and must 
be adopted by Ordinance per the Florida State Statue. 

4.  Attended the BOA meeting.  BOA voted to grant a variance to the property located at 394 Riverview 
to allow for a buildable lot. 

 5.  As of Friday, August 14th, the Town has issued 816 parking permits. 

6. Indian Harbour Beach and the City of Melbourne are currently waiving Business Tax Receipts for 
businesses for the upcoming year to help support local businesses.  Our fee is $75.00 per business, 
which brings in revenue to the Town of @13,500 annually.   

7. Submitting grants to the Indian River Lagoon Water Quality Improvement Project and Protecting 
Florida Together (water quality improvement) Grant. 

 

 

237



238



 
Building Department Report   

July 2020 
 

 
• 61 permits issued 
• 126 inspections completed 
• 69 plans reviewed 
• 2 Site Plan reviews for P&Z 
• 2 BTR reviews 
• 1 new homes 

 

239



Permit Description Issue Company Value Fee Address

MB19_275 REPLACE WINDOWS & DOORS - ALL IMPACT
7/7/2020 Lowe's Home Centers $54,000.00 $641.47 445 RIVER VIEW LN

MB20_232 WINDOWS, DOOR, SHUTTER,       INSTALL
7/22/2020 JLM Windows LLC $21,309.00 $322.53 317 FOURTH AVE

MB20_236 BATHROOM REMODEL
7/24/2020 $25,000.00 $358.54 509 AVENUE A

MB20_267 DEMOLITION OF A SFD
7/7/2020 LIFESTYLE HOME BUILDERS $5,500.00 $71.00 409 SECOND AVE

MB20_304 SHUTTERS, INSTALL

7/23/2020 Mark Farnham Construction LLC $2,641.00 $71.00 306 SURF RD

MB20_307 SEAWALL, INSTALL
7/27/2020 LAND AND SEA MARINE, INC. $35,465.00 $460.63 502 RIVERSIDE DR

MB20_332 INTERIOR REMODEL
7/2/2020 Walden Custom Builders $30,000.00 $407.32 306 BANYAN WAY

MB20_346 INTERIOR REMODEL

7/9/2020 SLATE BUILDING AND CONTRACTING LLC $1,187.80 1421 ATLANTIC ST

MB20_350 SHUTTERS

7/2/2020 East Coast Shutter, Inc $12,948.00 $240.96 401 ATLANTIC ST

MB20_354 WINDOWS, DOORS
7/15/2020 DON BO, INC. $0.00 $71.00 1503 ATLANTIC ST  B

MB20_368 ELECTRICAL

7/9/2020 STINGRAY ELECTRIC & CONTROL $1,100.00 $71.00 415 FIFTH AVE

MB20_375 PERGOLA

7/7/2020 MAC Construction and Development $7,000.00 $153.66 601 HIBISCUS TRL

MB20_378 BOAT DOCK, INSTALL
7/17/2020 Dock Masters Inc $35,000.00 $456.10 422 RIVER VIEW LN

MB20_385 HVAC, REPLACE

240



7/21/2020 American Air & Heat of Brevard $6,706.00 $71.00 219 FIFTH AVE

MB20_387 METER MAIN, REPLACE
7/3/2020 All Pro Electrical Services LLC $1,000.00 $71.00 305 FIFTH AVE

MB20_390 INTERIOR DEMOLITION AND REMODEL
7/6/2020 Sal Vitale The Roof Doctor $18,000.00 $290.24 2101 ATLANTIC ST  534

MB20_391 NEW IN GROUND POOL
7/6/2020 Space Coast Shotcrete Inc $30,000.00 $407.32 314 AVENUE B

MB20_392 POOL RESURFACE

7/2/2020 CUSTOM POOL RENOVATIONS IN $6,075.00 $71.00 411 DRIFTWOOD AVE

MB20_393 WINDOWS AND DOORS, INSTALL

7/1/2020 SUNSET VIEW CONSTRUCTION $0.00 $267.00 507 AVENUE A

MB20_394 GARAGE DOOR, REPLACE
7/7/2020 All Pro Garage Doors Inc $3,400.00 $71.00 318 THIRD AVE

MB20_395 GARAGE DOOR, REPLACE
7/7/2020 All Pro Garage Doors Inc $3,400.00 $71.00 314 THIRD AVE

MB20_398 HVAC, REPLACE

7/2/2020 EVERLY'S AIR & HEATING INC $8,730.00 $71.00 402 RIVERSIDE DR  1

MB20_399 REPLUMB, EMERGENCY

7/6/2020 DOUG HERRELL PLUMBING INC $5,400.00 $71.00 1303 ORANGE ST

MB20_400 GARAGE DOOR, REPLACE

7/6/2020 QUALITY GARAGE DOOR SERVICE $5,289.00 $71.00 2005 NEPTUNE DR

MB20_401 SHUTTERS, INSTALL

7/2/2020 BREVARD SOFFIT & SIDING, INC D   $10,200.00 $71.00 207 RIVERSIDE DR

MB20_403 PV SOLAR SYSTEM, INSTALL
7/6/2020 BOB HEINMILLER $37,567.00 $481.14 312 HIBISCUS TRL

MB20_404 SEAWALL AND DOCK, NEW     WALKWAY, REBUILD
7/24/2020 East Coast Docks $62,470.00 $724.10 405 PELICAN KEY

241



MB20_405 PAVER WALKWAY AND ENTRY, REPLACE

7/23/2020 ELITE PAVERS & PRICE RITE PAIN  $2,400.00 $71.00 320 HIBISCUS TRL

MB20_406 FENCE, INSTALL
7/28/2020 FREDERIC E D SIMPSON INC $3,500.00 $71.00 804 OAK ST

MB20_407 HVAC, REPLACE              NO DUCT
7/29/2020 Florida Breeze $4,375.00 $71.00 209 SIXTH AVE

MB20_408 NEW HOME
7/7/2020 Lifestyle Homes Builders $321,900.00 $2,172.68 409 SECOND AVE

MB20_409 WALKWAY COVER

7/10/2020 JAG Enterprises & Associates Inc. $3,625.00 $87.38 500 OCEAN AVE

MB20_412 SHED, INSTALL
7/20/2020 TUFF SHED, INC $5,840.00 $71.00 438 SANDY KEY

MB20_413 KITCHEN AND BATHROOM REMODEL

7/10/2020 Coastal Builders of Brevard LLC $75,000.00 $846.34 445 SANDY KEY

MB20_414 HVAC, REPLACE

7/21/2020 Service Star Air Conditioning & Heat $7,490.00 $71.00 501 ANDREWS DR

MB20_415 PAVERS, INSTALL

7/13/2020 SUNSTATE TREE AND LANDSCAP  $8,700.00 $71.00 222 BIRCH AVE

MB20_416 GARAGE DOOR, INSTALL

7/16/2020 MM ENTERPRISES OF BREVARD I $2,660.00 $71.00 309 HIBISCUS TRL

MB20_418 FENCE, INSTALL
7/13/2020 American Fence of Brevard $3,015.00 $71.00 2208 ROSEWOOD DR

MB20_419 FENCE AND GATE, INSTALL
7/13/2020 American Fence of Brevard $11,194.00 $71.00 607 CITRUS CT

MB20_420 REROOF
7/9/2020 Atlantis-1 Roofing Inc. $16,500.00 $275.61 422 THIRD AVE

MB20_421 ADDITION, REMODEL

242



7/21/2020 CCC HOLDING COMPANY INC $200,000.00 $1,578.05 221 SURF RD

MB20_423 DRIVEWAY, REPLACE

7/21/2020 STILLWATER CONSTRUCTION INC $4,250.00 $109.22 213 FIR AVE

MB20_425 REROOF     W/FLAT
7/10/2020 Florida Native Roofing Inc $53,425.00 $635.85 201 RIVERSIDE DR

MB20_426 REROOF
7/10/2020 ICM ROOFING $7,400.00 $161.47 225 SIXTH AVE

MB20_427 MECHANICAL, HVAC
7/24/2020 COAST AIR & HEAT $5,500.00 $71.00 227 FIFTH AVE

MB20_429 REPLUMB, SHOWER PAN, CEMENT BOARD

7/17/2020 PAUL DAVIS RESTORATION OF TH   $6,000.00 $71.00 505 POINSETTIA RD

MB20_430 HVAC, REPLACE
7/16/2020 Ocean Air and Heat Inc $700.00 $71.00 407 BANYAN WAY

MB20_431 HVAC, REPLACE
7/16/2020 Ocean Air and Heat Inc $5,100.00 $71.00 429 RIVER VIEW LN

MB20_433 REROOF

7/20/2020 G&G ROOFING CONSTRUCTION IN $16,891.00 $279.42 312 AVENUE A

MB20_434 DOOR, REPLACE
7/27/2020 Clyde Hippchen Carpentry Inc $780.00 $71.00 1415 ATLANTIC ST

MB20_436 GAS LINE, INSTALL
7/29/2020 SAMS LP GAS COMPANY INC $1,995.00 $71.00 413 HIBISCUS TRL

MB20_437 ADDITION
7/31/2020 BRUBAKER BUILDERS $65,000.00 $748.78 407 RIVER VIEW LN

MB20_438 HVAC, REPLACE

7/23/2020 ABLE AIR, INC $2,780.00 $71.00 315 ATLANTIC ST

MB20_440 REROOF

7/20/2020 POE ROOFING AND CONSULTING $11,000.00 $231.70 502 HARLAND AVE

243



MB20_442 FENCE AND GATE, INSTALL

7/30/2020 Carrie's Fence of Palm Bay $1,445.00 $71.00 208 ASH AVE

MB20_443 DOORS, REPLACE
7/24/2020 Brevard Window & Doors Inc $11,400.00 $239.51 1903 NEPTUNE DR

MB20_446 HVAC, REPLACE
7/23/2020 Extreme Air & Electric Inc. $11,634.00 $71.00 809 RIVERSIDE DR

MB20_447 WINDOWS AND DOORS, REPLACE

7/22/2020 Property Renovations and Constructi  $16,900.00 $279.51 1850 ATLANTIC ST  123

MB20_449 GENERATOR/ PROPLANE/ CONNECTIONS, INSTALL
7/24/2020 Eau Gallie Electric, Inc $14,200.00 $253.17 309 SURF RD

MB20_451 HVAC, REPLACE
7/28/2020 Florida Breeze $3,476.00 $71.00 322 FOURTH AVE

MB20_457 WINDOWS, REPLACE
7/31/2020 Lowe's Home Centers $3,787.00 $90.57 526 AVENUE A

MB20_461 HVAC, REPLACE
7/29/2020 Dave Mastro Air & Heat Inc. $5,325.00 $71.00 2101 NEPTUNE DR

$1,343,387.00 $16,731.07

244



Public Works Activity Overview 

July 2020 

 

July provided to be not only very hot but productive for PW.  Because of the heat we practice very 
intentional re-hydration habits.  We provide plenty of water and commercial re-hydration drinks and 
popsicles.  Cool off breaks are taken.   

Production wise we are quite proud of the rain garden/swale in our right of way in front of the Post 
Office.  While it is primarily Florida adaptive plants we are incorporating in a native plant presents in the 
form of Muhley grass.  The number of residents stopping or driving by and letting us know how much 
they appreciated the beautiful landscape was amazing.  

What even made this project more rewarding was that on two occasions we witnessed the area filling 
with storm water from the streets and then dissipating within less than an hour.  

Our next big accomplishment took place at the beach crossover at 1st Ave. As you know water would 
stand in that area for days after a storm.  By creating a swale on each side of the entrance and using 
crushed concrete the water is gone in hours.  We found that using the crushed concrete seems to have 
eliminated the ruts caused by truck traffic in the area.  We will be sodding the swales and adding more 
of the crushed concrete.   

Installing 57 Permit only parking signs at the crossovers was quite the task.  We accomplished that in 
about one and a half days.  But person/s unknown decided to remove nearly all of the signs and throw 
them on the beach and stairs to the beach.  Thankfully the police found the signs returned them to there 
proper places. 

We then re-installed the signs and added concrete the second time. 

An event that caused some concern was discovery of a sheen on the water in the baffle box located on 
2nd Ave.  This was discovered when the company was installing the required filters inside the box.  We 
immediately responded to the location with the Ditch Witch and began pumping out all the water in the 
box.  Chief Brown and Assistant Chief Mica responded at our request and placed absorbing materials to 
prevent the substance from entering the ICW. 

Investigation by PW revealed that the sheen was likely caused by a bio-degradable soap that had been 
used by a commercial company.  The company had been employed by Waste Pro to clean up a hydrolic 
spill from one of their trucks.   

We have arranged with both entities to notify us in the future should any such incident were to happen 
in the future.   

Our usual daily task were completed and some trimming started at the crossovers. 

245



 

246



Public Works Activity 

July 2020 

 

Joint venture with US Post Office to install pump and provide irrigation for rain garden swale 

Installed pump and attached to irrigation rain garden/swale at Post Office 

Dug and created rain garden/swale at Post Office to include plantings 

Picked up Permit Parking decals  

Installed signs along Pine St. indicating high pedestrian and bike use 

Checked city water meter at Ocean Park pursuant to extremely high cost water bill 

Coordinate with Police Chief to have street light re-installed on Andrews 

Added additional trash cans at beach crossovers for 4th July 

Installed 57 permit only parking signs beach crossovers and one at 6th boat ramp 

Re-Installed 57 permit only parking signs and concreted in at beach crossovers 

Trimmed all palm trees along Acacia – removed all cuttings 

Coordinated clean up and finish work at 6th ave. boat ramp with seawall contractor 

Utilized Ditch Witch to remove suspicious shiny liquid from baffle box at 2nd Ave.- turned out to be bio-
degradable soap used by a commercial company 

Leveled a damaged area of median on Sunset caused by person moving out 

Moved two speed trailers for PD 

Trimmed and continued spraying of vitek at Ocean Park 

Met with well drilling company to designate location of new well if approved. 

Mounted bulletin board Town Clerks office 

Turned off shower water at Ocean Park leaving the well fed shower at OP  

Mounted large bulletin board in Town Hall 

New sign at Ocean Circle 

Notified FPL of very poor condition of transformer rear Town Hall 

247



Changed AC filter PW 

New stormwater inlet cover on at Riverside and Sunset 

Constructed swales at entrance to beach crossover 1st.-installed crushed concrete 

Trimmed crossovers A and B 

Repaired leak in roof area cupola over FD 

248



MONTHLY REPORT: July 2020
New Cases for the Month of July June
CASE NUMBER    DATE ADDRESS CODE VIOLATION DATE CLOSED ACTIVE
2020-CE-088 7/1/2020 448 River View Lane Large trailer on lot 7/1/2020
2020-CE-089 7/11/2020 402 Coral Avenue Fence is leaning 7/11/2020
2020-CE-090 7/11/2020 323 Avenue A Grass overgrown 7/11/2020
2020-CE-091 7/11/2020 406 Fourth Ave Trash cans in st. 7/15/2020
2020-CE-092 7/13/2020 1805 Atlantic Street Turtle Lighting 7/11/2020
2020-CE-093 7/13/2020 1905 Atlantic Street Turtle Lighting 7/11/2020
2020-CE-094 7/13/2020 1905 Atlantic Street Turtle Lighting X
2020-CE-095 7/13/2020 2005 Atlantic Street Turtle Lighting 7/11/2020
2020-CE-096 7/13/2020 2005 Atlantic Street Turtle Lighting 7/11/2020
2020-CE- 097 7/13/2020 2101 Atlantic Street Turtle Lighting 7/11/2020
2020-CE-098 7/13/2020 2105 Atlantic Street Turtle Lighting 7/25/2020
2020-CE-099 7/13/2020 2105 Atlantic Street Turtle Lighting 7/25/2020
2020-CE-100 7/15/2020 406 Riverview Lane Boat Trail. On Vacant Lot  07/17 /2020
2020-CE-101 7/17/2020 410 Second Ave Pool not maintained X
2020-CE-102 7/22/2020 406 Ave A Repairing Fence 7/24/2020
2020-CE-103 7/22 2020 218 Fifth Avenue Motor hame in Drive X
2020-CE-104 7/22/2020 401 fourth Ave. refrigerater in Row Doors ON ########
2020-CE-105 0717/2020 2105 Atlantic Street Turtle Lighting 7/25/2020
2020-CE-106 0/17/2020 2105 Atlantic Street Turtle Lighting 7/17/2020
2020-CE-107 7/17/2020 2101 Atlantic Street Turtle Lighting 7/25/2020
2020-CE-108 &/17/2020 2005 Atlantic Street Turtle Lighting 7/17/2020
2020-CE 109 07/17 2020 2005 Atlantic Street Turtle Lighting 7/17/2020
2020-CE-110 7/17/2020 1905 Atlantic Street Turtle Lighting X
2020-CE-111 7/17/2020 1903 Atlantic Street Turtle Lighting 7/25/2020
2020-CE-112 7/17/2020 1805 Atlantic Street Turtle Lighting 7/25/2020
2020-CE-113 7/24/2020 1202 Oak Street Bush opstructing Traf. X
2020-CE-114 7/25/2020 407 Pelican Key yard wast in Street 7/27/2020
2020-CE=115 7/25/2020 1905 Atlantic Street Turtle Lighting X
2020-CE-116 7/25/2020 1805 Atlantic Street Turtle Lighting X
2020-CE-117 7/25/2020 1805 Atlantic Street Turtle Lighting X

249



2020-CE-118 7/25/2020 1805 Atlantic Street Turtle Lighting X
2020=CE-119 7/25/2020 2207 Atlantic Street Turtle Lighting X
2020=CE=120 7/25/2020 2203 Atlantic Street Turtle Lighting X
OPEN/ACTIVE CASES FROM PRIOR MONTHS
CASE NUMBER DATE ADDRESS CODE VIOLATION ACTION
2020-CE-038 3/16/2020 305 fourth  Ave Boat in DW X
2020-CE-041 3/22/2020 401 fourth Ave. Buisness from home X
2020-CE-043 3/25/2020 415 Sixth Ave Pool not maintained X
2020-CE-069 5/23/2020 404 Colony Street Boat in Driveway X

PRIOR CASES CLOSED IN July 2020
2020-CE-056 4/27/2020 507 Andrews Dr.  M H lived in 7/1/2020
2020-CE-084 6/16/2020 512 Sunset Blvd. Lot Overgrown 7/10/2020
2020-CE-085 6/16/2020 509 Sunset Blvd. Lot Overgrown 7/8/2020

NUMBER OF CASES OPEN THIS MONTH 33
NUMBER OF CASES CLOSED THIS MONTH 24
NUMBER OF CASES OPEN AND CLOSED SAME MONTH 21
TOTAL NUMBER OF CASES STILL OPEN 14
NUMBER OF CASES THAT WENT TO BOARD 0

PREPARED BY Robert Schaefer, CODE ENFORCEMENT OFFICER, 

250



trailer moved case closed
no problem found Case closed
Grass has been cut     Case closed
Ck. Numerous days and on pick up day none instreet
lights were out
lights were out

lights were out case closed
lights were out case closed
lights were out Case closed
lights were out case closed
lights were out case closed
trailer moved case closed
New Pump on order Due in nexed week
Applied for Case Closed
Will tow next week
Doors removed case closed
lights were out case closed
lights were out case closed
lights were out case closed
lights were out case closed
lights were out case closed

Lights Where out case closed
Lights Where out case closed
Sched. For trim
Trash picked up Case closed

251



NOV 05/04/2020
House in forclosure
NOV 07/05/2020

Daughter no longer in town
Have to sen  ######## lot mowed  Case Closed
Have to sen  ######## Customer is going to building Dept. for building permit 07/07/2020 

252



   
 
 
 
 
In July, we had a total of 3 traffic arrests and 2 other arrests that ranged from Domestic Battery and Narcotics.    

House checks/residential and business checks are continued daily. The officers and I continue to be proactive 

as they conducted several “directed traffic enforcement details” throughout the town. Our radar trailers are 

also placed in various locations throughout the city to assist in deterring speeders. 

We did not have any animal complaints/calls this month. 

One of our areas of high volume calls consists of Injured/Ill persons. These calls are unpredictable, and each 

of the officers is First Responder/CPR/AED certified and is first on the scene to provide medical treatment as 

necessary.  

The Police Department has received calls regarding essential businesses that are not adhering to the TOMB 

Executive Order 2020-07. Officers have responded to these calls, educated the business owners on the safety 

of wearing masks and social distancing, and this appears to have reduced the complaints.  

All reports and calls for service are checked each day by either myself or a supervisor. Depending on the type 

of crime we have, procedures are in place to take the appropriate action to resolve the issue.    

Officer Zach Martin received his Remote Pilot Certificate from the FAA. This certificate demonstrates that he 

understands the regulations, operating requirements, and procedures for safely flying drones.  Congratulations 

Ofc. Zach!  

Two security cameras were installed on the Community Center. One camera is facing FD, TH, and PD entry 

doors, and the second camera is facing Ryckman Park and the toddler playground. These cameras are being 

monitored by myself and our Administrative Sergeant.  

The Melbourne Beach Police Officers and I are committed to community policing and keeping our town safe, 

which is our #1 priority.  

Melbourne Beach Police Department 
Monthly Report 

July 2020 

 

253



Attached you will see a brief overview of the Sergeants monthly report that highlights some of our calls for 

service.  

Stay Safe, Chief Melanie Griswold 

 

 

254



   
 
 

Monthly Report July 2020 
 

 
 

• 07/04- Recovery of a stolen vehicle out of Jacksonville. The vehicle was located at the 
Fourth Avenue beach access, abandoned with no suspect(s).  

• 07/04- Vehicle crash between (2) vehicles in the 400 block of Riverview Lane. Both vehicles 
had only minor damage and there were no injuries reported. 

• 07/04- Traffic arrest of a male for expired tag, more than 6 months. The vehicle was stopped 
for speeding in the 2100 block of Atlantic Street. 

• 07/06- Burglary to an occupied dwelling in the 300 block of Surf Road. A male entered a 
home through a back door and the resident inside yelled at the male to leave. The male was 
caught by officers in the backyard minutes later. A Decline to Prosecute was signed by the 
homeowner and the male was placed under a Baker Act. 

• 07/06- Vehicle crash between (2) vehicles in the 400 block of Oak Street. Both vehicles had 
only minor damage and there were no injuries reported.  

• 07/12- Domestic, verbal dispute between husband and wife, in the 200 block of Third 
Avenue. Parties separated for the night. 

• 07/14- Vehicle crash between (2) vehicles at Oak Street and Ocean Avenue. Both vehicles 
had only minor damage and there were no injuries reported. 

• 07/21- Arrested a male for operating an unregistered motor vehicle. The vehicle was 
stopped for improper tag in the 500 block of Ocean Avenue.  

• 07/21-Arrested a female for possession of a controlled substance and drug paraphernalia. 
The vehicle was stopped for a possible domestic violence investigation in the 300 block of 
Ocean Avenue.  

• 07/22- Arrested a female for battery, domestic violence, in the 500 block of Second Avenue. 
Mother battered adult daughter during an altercation.  

• 07/30- Trespassed a male in the 300 block and 500 block of Ocean Avenue.  

MELBOURNE BEACH POLICE DEPARTMENT 
Matthew Smith 

Sergeant 
507 Ocean Ave, Melbourne Beach, FL 32951 

Phone: (321) 723-4343  Fax: (321)725-3253 
 

255



   
 

 
MEMORANDUM 

 
TO: Chief Griswold 
 
FROM: Sgt. Kino 
 
RE: July Monthly Call Report 
 
DATE: 08/01/2020   

 
 
07/11- Vehicle burglary and petit theft in the 600 block of Hibiscus Trail.  The r/p stated that an 
unknown person entered his vehicle and removed two items.  The r/p did not want to pursue 
charges unless a suspect was identified.  Due to the pandemic, a sworn statement and decline 
to prosecute documents were not completed. 
 
07/18- Trespass warning issued in the 400 block of Sixth Ave.  A w/m was on a property that 
was placed under a house watch.  Paperwork was completed without incident. 
 
07/19- An information call was created for the Town.  An unknown person took approximately 
30 Permit Parking Only signs out from the parking spots and placed them on the beach 
crossovers and on the beach.  They all were located and placed back into the ground.  A 
canvass of the areas was completed with negative results. 
 
07/19- Vehicle burglary in the 300 block of Banyan Way.  An unknown suspect entered an 
unlocked vehicle and removed a black bag containing miscellaneous medical equipment.  The 
bag was recovered at the corner of Poinsettia Rd and Banyan Way.  A decline to prosecute 
was completed due to the owner getting her belongings back. 
 
07/19- A traffic crash in the area of Oak St. and Sunset Blvd.  Both vehicles were traveling 
south on Oak St. when one was stopped in traffic and the other rear ended it.  There were no 
injuries or airbag deployments.  Both drivers drove the vehicles away from the scene. 
 
 

MELBOURNE BEACH POLICE DEPARTMENT 
Steven Kino 

Detective/Sergeant 
507 Ocean Ave, Melbourne Beach, FL 32951 

Phone: (321) 723-4343  Fax: (321)725-3253 
 

256



JULY JUNE MAY APRIL MAR FEB JAN YTD
Total Calls for Service 1137 1490 1651 1330 1263 1081 1162 9114
Total Felonies 5 9 10 4 6 1 14 49
Total Misdemeanors 24 19 17 12 10 8 19 109
Total Capias Requests 0 0 0 2 2 2 1 7
Total Traffic Arrests 3 5 6 2 8 3 3 30
Total Other Arrests 2 3 1 3 6 3 8 26

911 Investigation 31 40 34 23 30 20 11 189
Alarm Business 3 6 3 0 7 1 2 22
Alarm Residence 7 7 5 2 1 2 6 30
Animal Complaint 0 5 4 13 7 5 12 46
AOA LEO 24 30 24 6 23 22 21 150
Assist Citizen 5 10 7 11 6 9 9 57
Assist DCF 1 0 0 2 4 2 1 10
Assist Motorist 3 2 0 1 1 1 1 9
Attempt to Contact 2 3 1 3 4 4 6 23
Baker Act 0 2 1 0 1 2 1 7
Battery 0 2 0 2 0 0 0 4
Burglary Residence 1 0 0 0 0 0 4 5
Burglary Vehicle 2 0 5 0 0 0 1 8
Civil Matter 4 7 3 1 5 2 5 27
Crash 5 6 4 1 4 5 4 29
Criminal Mischief 0 2 4 0 0 1 3 10
Death Investigation 0 0 0 0 1 1 1 3
Disturbance Domestic 1 2 5 8 3 2 2 23
Disturbance Domestic Battery 1 1 0 0 2 2 1 7
Disturbance Fight 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 1
Disturbance Noise 7 3 2 4 3 2 3 24
Disturbance Verbal 0 0 5 2 3 0 1 11
Fire 5 6 6 7 2 5 3 34
Fraud 0 0 1 0 1 0 0 2
House Checks 404 218 142 99 47 59 62 1031
Illegal Parking 108 25 47 17 18 13 11 239
Information 16 14 17 34 16 12 12 121
Injured/Ill Person 18 17 13 22 14 29 21 134

Melbourne Beach Police Department

257



JULY JUNE MAY APRIL MAR FEB JAN YTD
Intoxicated Driver 0 2 1 0 3 2 1 9
Intoxicated Person 0 1 0 3 1 0 0 5
Investigation 9 3 3 4 3 3 5 30
Loitering & Prowling 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 1
Missing Person 0 1 0 0 0 1 0 2
Narcotics 1 1 1 3 2 2 5 15
Open Door 1 2 1 4 2 2 12 24
Ordinance 5 0 3 1 0 0 2 11
Parking Citations 85 17 34 15 15 10 3 179
Patrol Area 115 135 143 124 90 85 95 787
Patrol Area Business 239 390 486 305 212 196 202 2030
Patrol Area Residential 322 433 470 455 282 247 330 2539
Patrol Area School 23 32 36 45 31 48 29 244
Phone Call - Obscene/Threat 0 0 0 0 0 0 2 2
Prisoner Transport 0 0 0 0 0 0 2 2
Property Confiscated 0 2 5 0 0 0 1 8
Property Found 4 4 5 4 5 5 9 36
Property Lost 0 0 1 0 0 1 1 3
Reckless Driving 5 4 4 5 4 4 3 29
Special Detail 3 1 1 1 1 3 1 11
Standby-Keep the Peace 3 4 1 0 2 3 0 13
Suspicious Incident 12 8 8 3 10 7 8 56
Suspicious Person 13 2 11 6 15 11 10 68
Suspicious Vehicle 20 20 13 8 14 17 13 105
Theft 0 0 3 0 2 1 8 14
Traffic Citations 17 63 47 11 121 63 38 360
Traffic Complaint 3 3 3 5 4 1 1 20
Traffic Enforcement 58 145 171 142 193 129 139 977
Traffic Obstruction 2 0 0 0 1 1 2 6
Traffic Stop 81 172 109 43 243 166 137 951
Trespassing 4 2 2 2 1 2 1 14
Vehcile Abandoned 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 1
Vehicle Inspection 3 3 1 3 3 1 2 16
Vehcile Repo/Tow 1 0 0 0 2 0 0 3
Vehicle Stolen or Recovered 1 0 0 0 0 0 1 2
Wanted Person 0 0 0 0 1 2 0 3

Melbourne Beach Police Department

258



Vehicle Mileage JULY JUNE MAY APRIL MAR FEB JAN YTD
Car 359 1 1 72 29 256 162 521
Car 360 1004 1488 1222 1196 949 931 6790
Car 361 1292 1046 984 1735 1155 1022 7234
Car 363 668 790 956 818 620 1505 5357
Car 364 1197 1218 1373 1210 1108 1850 7956
Car 366 935 630 668 683 477 728 4121

Melbourne Beach Police Department

259



260



Page 1 of 2 

Melbourne Beach 

Vol. Fire Department 
507 Ocean Avenue 

Melbourne Beach, FL 32951 

(321)724-1736 
FireStation@MelbourneBeachFL.org 

 
 

 

FIRE DEPARTMENT MONTHLY REPORT 

July 2020 
 

 

 
Incident Response 

For the month of July 2020, the Melbourne Beach Volunteer Fire Department 
responded to 19 calls for service.  The average number of responding volunteer 
personnel per paged out call for the month was 10.    

Breakdown: 

 11 Fire/Rescue Calls (paged out) 
 3 Assist Other Agency 
 1 Public Assist 
 4 Special Event Coverage Details 

 

Department Membership 

 Certified Firefighters: 14 
 Support Services Personnel: 12 
 Administrative Personnel: 2 
 Probationary Personnel: 2 

 

Fire Department Garage Floor Update 

The Fire Department has finished meeting with multiple vendors and has obtained 
coating recommendations and estimates.  A determination has been made to go with a 
dual layer flake system with 2 layers of polyaspartic top coating and silica sand.  This 
coating should provide a long lasting, aggressive non slip, and professional surface.  A 
decision on which vendor to award the project to will be made in early August, and work 
will hopefully start near the end of August.  The project is projected to take a full week to 
complete once started and is still scheduled to be completed before the end of the year. 

261

mailto:FireStation@MelbourneBeachFL.org


Page 2 of 2 

 

COVID-19 Update 

The MBVFD continues to work closely with both the Police Department and Town Hall 
to ensure we are prepared to respond to the COVID-19 health crisis.  This includes 
participation in conference calls, emails, situation reports submitted to Brevard County 
Emergency Management, updating policies to address response guidelines, and 
educating citizens and visitors.  We continue to monitor the situation and update our 
response as needed.  At this time all active MBVFD personnel continue to be healthy 
and are able to respond to incidents under the Department’s COVID-19 response 
guidelines. 
 
 
Notable Events 

The Department recently held a promotional process and has promoted the following 
members with a ceremony to be held later in August/September: 

 John Miller to the rank of Deputy Chief 
 Jim Turner to the rank of Captain 
 Mike Moore to the rank of Lieutenant 
 Amber Garrity to the rank of Lieutenant  

All Department SCBA units were inspected and provided annual maintenance.  All units 
are in good shape and no major repairs were needed. 
 
The Department submitted a AAA traffic safety grant for the purpose of obtaining new 
traffic cones and incident warning signs.  The grant is non-matching, so if awarded there 
will be no cost to the Town.   
 
The Firefighters Association decided to cancel its regular 4th of July celebration in the 
park out of an abundance of caution due to the COVID-19 health crisis and social 
distancing requirements.  The MBVFA looks forward to hosting the event next year and 
making it better than ever. 
 
Chief Brown & Fire Inspector Faletra met with the Town Manager and Building Official 
to discuss possible solutions to the nuisance fire alarm activations at the Breakers East 
Condos. 
 
Due to the COVID health crisis and social distancing recommendations, the MBVFD 
was able to support 1 local birthday party “drive-by” events in Melbourne Beach this 
month to help make local resident’s birthdays special since they could not have full 
parties.  
 
Engine 58 was brought to Ten-8 in Sanford for its annual maintenance and repairs. 

262



Melbourne Beach, FL
This report was generated on 8/13/2020 9:52:57 AM

Melbourne Beach VFD

Incident Address and Type for Date Range (Landscape)

INCIDENT # DATE LOCATION 
TYPE ADDRESS INCIDENT TYPE ALARM CLEARED

SCENE
2020-89 07/01/2020 206 Shannon AVE , Melbourne Beach, FL, 32951 Arcing, shorted electrical equipment 07/01/2020 01:52 07/01/2020 02:42

2020-90 07/04/2020 2051 Atlantic ST , Melbourne Beach, FL, 32951 Alarm system sounded due to malfunction 07/04/2020 17:50 07/04/2020 18:13

2020-91 07/04/2020 Intersection  Ocean AVE  / Oak St, Melbourne Beach, FL, 32951 Assist police or other governmental agency 07/04/2020 18:22 07/04/2020 19:35

2020-92 07/05/2020 3780 Florida A1A HWY , Melbourne Beach, FL, 32951 Power line down 07/05/2020 20:17 07/05/2020 20:29

2020-93 07/08/2020 Intersection  Orange ST  / 5th Ave, Melbourne Beach, FL, 32951 Public service 07/08/2020 18:27 07/08/2020 18:37

2020-94 07/10/2020 100 Ocean AVE , Melbourne Beach, FL, 32951 Special type of incident, other 07/10/2020 09:12 07/10/2020 16:48

2020-95 07/10/2020 310 Avenue A , Melbourne Beach, FL, 32951 Assist invalid 07/10/2020 14:57 07/10/2020 15:08

2020-96 07/11/2020 100 Ocean AVE , Melbourne Beach, FL, 32951 Special type of incident, other 07/11/2020 08:11 07/11/2020 19:02

2020-97 07/12/2020 100 Ocean AVE , Melbourne Beach, FL, 32951 Special type of incident, other 07/12/2020 08:02 07/12/2020 21:29

2020-98 07/12/2020 519 Ocean AVE , Melbourne Beach, FL, 32951 Hazardous condition, other 07/12/2020 09:05 07/12/2020 09:34

2020-99 07/14/2020 501 Ocean AVE , Melbourne Beach, FL, 32951 Arcing, shorted electrical equipment 07/14/2020 10:28 07/14/2020 11:12

2020-100 07/14/2020 509 2nd AVE , Melbourne Beach, FL, 32951 Assist police or other governmental agency 07/14/2020 12:30 07/14/2020 14:07

2020-101 07/17/2020 2990 Florida A1A HWY , Melbourne Beach, FL, 32951 Watercraft rescue 07/17/2020 23:17 07/18/2020 00:03

2020-102 07/24/2020 214 Elm AVE , Melbourne Beach, FL, 32951 Public service 07/24/2020 17:42 07/24/2020 17:54

2020-103 07/25/2020 504 Harland AVE , Melbourne Beach, FL, 32951 Arcing, shorted electrical equipment 07/25/2020 20:03 07/25/2020 20:38

2020-104 07/26/2020 2203 Atlantic ST , Melbourne Beach, FL, 32951 Water or steam leak 07/26/2020 08:18 07/26/2020 09:09

2020-105 07/29/2020 20151 Atlantic ST , Melbourne Beach, FL, 32951 Alarm system sounded due to malfunction 07/29/2020 15:51 07/29/2020 16:26

2020-106 07/30/2020 Intersection  Atlantic ST  / 5th Ave, Melbourne Beach, FL, 32951 Assist police or other governmental agency 07/30/2020 14:03 07/30/2020 14:29

2020-107 07/30/2020 3785 Florida A1A HWY , Melbourne Beach, FL, 32951 Dispatched & cancelled en route 07/30/2020 23:09 07/30/2020 23:17

Incident Status(s): All Incident Statuses | Start Date: 07/01/2020 | End Date: 07/31/2020

Doc Id: 1251
emergencyreporting.com

Location Type is only filled in when it is marked Intersection, Directions, or National Grid on Basic Info 3.

Page # 1 of 1
263



Melbourne Beach, FL
This report was generated on 8/13/2020 9:53:30 AM

Melbourne Beach VFD

Personnel Count per Incident for Date Range

INCIDENT NUMBER OF PEOPLE

NUMBER DATE INCIDENT TYPE FDID ON APPARATUS NOT ON 
APPARATUS TOTAL

2020-89 7/1/2020 01:52:57 445 - Arcing, shorted electrical equipment 19112 8 3 11

2020-90 7/4/2020 17:50:04 735 - Alarm system sounded due to malfunction 19112 9 2 11

2020-91 7/4/2020 18:22:53 551 - Assist police or other governmental agency 19112 10 0 10

2020-92 7/5/2020 20:17:17 444 - Power line down 19112 1 0 1

2020-93 7/8/2020 18:27:58 553 - Public service 19112 5 0 5

2020-94 7/10/2020 
09:12:47 900 - Special type of incident, other 19112 5 3 8

2020-95 7/10/2020 
14:57:12 554 - Assist invalid 19112 1 0 1

2020-96 7/11/2020 
08:11:54 900 - Special type of incident, other 19112 6 0 6

2020-97 7/12/2020 
08:02:35 900 - Special type of incident, other 19112 5 0 5

2020-98 7/12/2020 
09:05:19 400 - Hazardous condition, other 19112 6 6 12

2020-99 7/14/2020 
10:28:14 445 - Arcing, shorted electrical equipment 19112 1 10 11

2020-100 7/14/2020 
12:30:03 551 - Assist police or other governmental agency 19112 2 0 2

2020-101 7/17/2020 
23:17:14 365 - Watercraft rescue 19112 6 4 10

2020-102 7/24/2020 
17:42:02 553 - Public service 19112 1 0 1

2020-103 7/25/2020 
20:03:12 445 - Arcing, shorted electrical equipment 19112 9 2 11

2020-104 7/26/2020 
08:18:14 522 - Water or steam leak 19112 8 3 11

2020-105 7/29/2020 
15:51:00 735 - Alarm system sounded due to malfunction 19112 6 2 8

2020-106 7/30/2020 
14:03:21 551 - Assist police or other governmental agency 19112 3 0 3

2020-107 7/30/2020 
23:09:40 611 - Dispatched & cancelled en route 19112 1 11 12

AVERAGES: 4.9 2.4 7.3

Start Date: 07/01/2020 | End Date: 07/31/2020

Doc Id: 358
emergencyreporting.com

Only REVIEWED incidents included

Page # 1

**
**
**

**

**

**

**

**

**

**

**

** Without EMS Assist or Service Calls:                    6.1                 3.9              10.0
             (Paged out calls only)

264



Town of Melbourne Beach 
Finance Department 

 

Memo 
To: Mayor, Vice Mayor and Commissioners 
From: Jennifer Kerr, Finance Manager 
Date: August 12, 2020 
Re: July 2020   

We are in the tenth reporting month of our fiscal year 2020. The target expenditure rate for July 2020 is 83.3%. All 
departments are managing their expenditures even though several budget lines are over the targeted expenditure 
rate. All budget items highlighted in green are over the target rate but within the anticipated spending of that 
budget line. Some budget lines are fully expended early in the budget year while other lines like salaries and health 
insurance are paid on a monthly basis. All budget items highlighted in yellow are being monitored. All budget items 
highlighted in red are over expended. The total General Fund expenditure rate, year to date is 73.3%. The 
Departmental expenditure rate breakdown is as follows:  
 

Legislative:    62.4% 
  Executive:  112.7% 
  Finance:   85.7%  
  Legal:    99.2% 
  Comp & Plan:     83.1% 
  General Services:  59.1% 
  Law Enforcement:  78.8% 
  Fire:    49.5% 
  Code:    64.2% 
  Public Works:     82.9% 
  Parks:    48.1% 
 
Discussion Items:  
 
Executive expenditure rate is high due to the severance pay out of previous Town Manager Robert Daniels.  
We have received payment of $867.00 from FMIT for the Safety Grant.  
We have received payment of $9,965.88 from Brevard County Fire Rescue for the EMS Grant. 
We have received payment of $39,500.00 from DEP for the grant supporting the Green Infrastructure Adaptation 
Planning. 

265



For the Period:  10/1/2019 to 7/31/2020
Target Rate 83.3%

Expenditures Original Bud. YTD Actual UnencBal % Bud
Dept:  11  Legislative
500.11.00  Executive Salaries 16,200.00 11,858.29 4,341.71 73.2
500.12.00  Regular Salaries 78,480.00 50,596.48 27,883.52 64.5
500.21.00  FICA Taxes - Employer Portion 7,243.00 4,735.35 2,507.65 65.4
500.22.20  Retirement Town Employees 6,647.00 3,936.46 2,710.54 59.2
500.23.01  Health Insurance 21,657.00 9,189.90 12,467.10 42.4
500.23.02  Life Insurance 136.00 112.60 23.40 82.8
500.25.00  Unemployment Compensation 251.00 52.05 198.95 20.7
510.31.00  Professional Services 160.00 204.81 -44.81 128.0
510.40.00  Travel & Meetings 2,660.00 418.19 2,241.81 15.7
510.40.10  Travel & Meetings - Staff 300.00 24.00 276.00 8.0
510.47.00  Printing 5,735.00 2,562.13 3,172.87 44.7
510.48.00  Promotional Activities 533.00 352.99 180.01 66.2
510.48.40  Legal Notices 14,000.00 9,909.45 4,090.55 70.8
510.49.50  Election Expense 6,000.00 5,796.68 203.32 96.6
510.54.00  Dues & Subscriptions 785.00 729.00 56.00 92.9
510.54.10  Training & Schools 1,580.00 150.00 1,430.00 9.5
510.64.00  Machinery & Equipment 0.00 124.77 -124.77 0.0
510.64.01  Capital Outlay 2,000.00 0.00 2,000.00 0.0
543.00.00  Licenses & Fees 7,257.00 6,310.87 946.13 87.0

62.4
Dept:  12  Executive
500.12.00  Regular Salaries 90,000.00 90,115.22 -115.22 100.1
500.12.05  SEVERANCE PAYMENT 0.00 16,140.54 -16,140.54 0.0
500.21.00  FICA Taxes - Employer Portion 6,885.00 7,518.73 -633.73 109.2
500.22.01  Retirement - ICMA 7,623.00 6,611.11 1,011.89 86.7
500.22.20  Retirement Town Employees 0.00 2,311.27 -2,311.27 0.0
500.23.01  Health Insurance 10,734.00 9,043.09 1,690.91 84.2
500.23.02  Life Insurance 1,200.00 629.87 570.13 52.5
500.25.00  Unemployment Compensation 288.00 90.35 197.65 31.4
510.40.00  Travel & Meetings 2,400.00 0.00 2,400.00 0.0
510.51.00  Office Supplies 0.00 129.00 -129.00 0.0
510.52.50  Gas & Oil 0.00 2,000.00 -2,000.00 0.0
510.54.00  Dues & Subscriptions 858.00 595.00 263.00 69.3

112.7
Dept:  13  Finance
500.12.00  Regular Salaries 58,000.00 46,756.17 11,243.83 80.6
500.21.00  FICA Taxes - Employer Portion 4,437.00 3,560.87 876.13 80.3
500.22.20  Retirement Town Employees 4,913.00 3,813.13 1,099.87 77.6
500.23.01  Health Insurance 7,716.00 6,184.75 1,531.25 80.2
500.23.02  Life Insurance 68.00 61.93 6.07 91.1
500.25.00  Unemployment Compensation 186.00 27.95 158.05 15.0
510.31.00  Professional Services 4,900.00 5,894.53 -994.53 120.3
510.32.00  Auditing Services 21,900.00 21,900.00 0.00 100.0
510.32.90  Banking Fees 3,300.00 3,179.75 120.25 96.4
510.40.00  Travel & Meetings 1,000.00 0.00 1,000.00 0.0
510.47.00  Printing 180.00 0.00 180.00 0.0
510.51.00  Office Supplies 0.00 329.99 -329.99 0.0
510.54.00  Dues & Subscriptions 60.00 50.00 10.00 83.3
510.54.10  Training & Schools 350.00 0.00 350.00 0.0

85.7
Dept:  14  Legal Counsel
510.31.00  Professional Services 80,000.00 79,928.00 72.00 99.9
510.31.01  Code Enforcement Attorney 1,500.00 931.25 568.75 62.1

99.2
Dept:  15  Comprehensive Planning
510.31.00  Professional Services 67,500.00 16,617.39 50,882.61 24.6

266



510.31.95  Grants Services 0.00 39,500.00 -39,500.00 0.0
83.1

Dept:  19  General Services
500.24.00  Workers Compensation 2,177.00 2,177.00 0.00 100.0
510.31.00  Professional Services 4,000.00 3,100.00 900.00 77.5
510.31.02  Lifeguard Contract 19,600.00 15,342.24 4,257.76 78.3
510.31.11  Security 1,998.00 859.39 1,138.61 43.0
510.34.10  Janitorial Services 14,108.00 8,656.00 5,452.00 61.4
510.35.00  Pre-Employment Exp 135.00 129.00 6.00 95.6
510.41.00  Telephone 10,728.00 5,293.14 5,434.86 49.3
510.41.10  Communication Services 41,004.00 38,152.29 2,851.71 93.0
510.43.00  STREET LIGHTS 45,000.00 33,132.50 11,867.50 73.6
510.43.10  Electricity 32,500.00 20,082.18 12,417.82 61.8
510.43.20  Water & Sewer 6,600.00 4,995.69 1,604.31 75.7
510.43.50  WASTE SERVICE TAX 2,964.00 2,964.34 -0.34 100.0
510.45.00  General Liability Insurance 53,700.00 53,602.00 98.00 99.8
510.45.01  Flood Insurance 3,400.00 3,402.00 -2.00 100.1
510.45.02  Property Insurance 41,500.00 41,497.00 3.00 100.0
510.45.03  Auto Insurance 7,500.00 7,141.00 359.00 95.2
510.46.10  Office Equipment Maintenance 4,904.00 3,539.92 1,364.08 72.2
510.46.15  Equipment Maintenance 13,800.00 1,633.25 12,166.75 11.8
510.46.36  Pest Control 3,000.00 2,120.22 879.78 70.7
510.46.41  Mowing Contract 29,820.00 24,850.00 4,970.00 83.3
510.46.60  SIGNAL MAINTENANCE 2,500.00 0.00 2,500.00 0.0
510.47.00  Printing 200.00 358.95 -158.95 179.5
510.49.48  Env. Boards Expense 960.00 496.18 463.82 51.7
510.49.98  Contingency 30,000.00 4,398.67 25,601.33 14.7
510.49.99  Miscellaneous 300.00 35.00 265.00 11.7
510.51.00  Office Supplies 9,100.00 7,023.14 2,076.86 77.2
510.51.10  Postage 1,800.00 1,626.42 173.58 90.4
510.52.10  Janitorial Supplies 5,000.00 3,314.44 1,685.56 66.3
510.54.00  Dues & Subscriptions 252.00 268.82 -16.82 106.7
510.64.01  Capital Outlay 149,749.00 28,161.34 121,587.66 18.8
543.00.00  Licenses & Fees 11,117.00 6,242.68 4,874.32 56.2

59.1
Dept:  21  Law Enforcement
500.12.00  Regular Salaries 542,401.00 447,421.19 94,979.81 82.5
500.12.50  Holiday Pay 19,000.00 0.00 19,000.00 0.0
500.14.00  Salaries Overtime 30,300.00 23,202.02 7,097.98 76.6
500.15.00  Education Incentive Pay 6,600.00 5,460.00 1,140.00 82.7
500.15.01  First Responder 7,920.00 4,875.00 3,045.00 61.6
500.21.00  FICA Taxes - Employer Portion 46,376.00 35,866.40 10,509.60 77.3
500.22.02  Police Pension 292,640.00 233,592.82 59,047.18 79.8
500.22.20  Retirement Town Employees 2,828.00 2,196.58 631.42 77.7
500.23.01  Health Insurance 55,227.00 58,939.89 -3,712.89 106.7
500.23.02  Life Insurance 2,255.00 2,218.62 36.38 98.4
500.23.10  Statutory AD&D 1,000.00 594.00 406.00 59.4
500.24.00  Workers Compensation 12,500.00 12,500.00 0.00 100.0
500.25.00  Unemployment Compensation 600.00 481.33 118.67 80.2
520.31.00  Professional Services 680.00 500.00 180.00 73.5
520.34.40  Dispatching Services 17,756.00 16,938.09 817.91 95.4
520.40.00  Travel & Meetings 540.00 826.10 -286.10 153.0
520.41.10  Communication Services 1,020.00 1,051.99 -31.99 103.1
520.46.10  Office Equipment Maintenance 3,000.00 2,067.63 932.37 68.9
520.46.15  Equipment Maintenance 2,000.00 1,991.70 8.30 99.6
520.46.16  Radar Calibration 1,000.00 419.50 580.50 42.0
520.46.20  Vehicle Maintenance 13,000.00 3,644.58 9,355.42 28.0
520.48.00  PROMOTIONAL ACTIVITIES 1,800.00 442.67 1,357.33 24.6
520.48.50  Crime Prevention 1,100.00 1,044.18 55.82 94.9
520.49.99  Miscellaneous 100.00 0.00 100.00 0.0
520.52.00  Uniforms 7,350.00 2,368.36 4,981.64 32.2267



520.52.05  Protective Gear 8,100.00 4,541.82 3,558.18 56.1
520.52.50  Gas & Oil 13,000.00 9,626.75 3,373.25 74.1
520.52.70  Medical 500.00 339.87 160.13 68.0
520.52.90  Operating Supplies 3,420.00 2,762.97 657.03 80.8
520.54.00  Dues & Subscriptions 450.00 492.37 -42.37 109.4
520.54.10  Training & Schools 3,500.00 2,744.29 755.71 78.4
520.64.01  Capital Outlay 45,700.00 18,109.85 27,590.15 39.6
520.71.00  Principal Retired 22,543.00 22,543.00 0.00 100.0
520.72.00  Interest Expense 1,719.00 1,716.83 2.17 99.9
543.00.00  Licenses & Fees 12,762.00 8,309.01 4,452.99 65.1

78.8
Dept:  22  Fire Control
500.12.00  Regular Salaries 38,422.00 31,033.41 7,388.59 80.8
500.14.00  Salaries Overtime 0.00 110.83 -110.83 0.0
500.21.00  FICA Taxes - Employer Portion 2,939.00 3,062.96 -123.96 104.2
500.22.20  Retirement Town Employees 3,254.00 2,537.86 716.14 78.0
500.23.01  Health Insurance 4,489.00 3,772.43 716.57 84.0
500.23.02  Life Insurance 162.00 61.93 100.07 38.2
500.23.10  Statutory AD&D 165.00 165.00 0.00 100.0
500.24.00  Workers Compensation 6,000.00 5,276.75 723.25 87.9
500.25.00  Unemployment Compensation 123.00 40.77 82.23 33.1
520.31.00  Professional Services 104,000.00 37,548.11 66,451.89 36.1
520.34.40  Dispatching Services 5,000.00 3,750.00 1,250.00 75.0
520.35.00  PRE-EMPLOYMENT EXPENSE 3,380.00 1,124.00 2,256.00 33.3
520.40.00  Travel & Meetings 500.00 177.78 322.22 35.6
520.41.10  Communication Services 1,200.00 1,120.00 80.00 93.3
520.46.15  Equipment Maintenance 4,077.00 2,838.80 1,238.20 69.6
520.46.20  Vehicle Maintenance 23,050.00 25,441.44 -2,391.44 67.1
520.48.55  Fire Prevention 2,820.00 3,705.00 -885.00 131.4
520.51.00  Office Supplies 300.00 625.12 -325.12 208.4
520.52.00  Uniforms 5,150.00 4,011.66 1,138.34 77.9
520.52.02  S.C.B.A. 1,750.00 1,034.45 715.55 59.1
520.52.05  Protective Gear 3,780.00 1,856.22 1,923.78 49.1
520.52.10  Janitorial Supplies 750.00 196.10 553.90 26.1
520.52.20  Tools & Hardware 1,500.00 236.48 1,263.52 15.8
520.52.50  Gas & Oil 2,100.00 1,421.32 678.68 67.7
520.52.70  Medical 700.00 627.29 72.71 89.6
520.54.00  Dues & Subscriptions 360.00 72.00 288.00 20.0
520.54.10  Training & Schools 6,750.00 1,982.81 4,767.19 29.4
520.54.12  Training Materials 800.00 125.70 674.30 15.7
520.64.01  Capital Outlay 86,500.00 0.00 86,500.00 0.0
520.71.00  Principal Retired 42,152.00 42,151.42 0.58 100.0
520.72.00  Interest Expense 6,311.00 6,309.64 1.36 100.0
543.00.00  Licenses & Fees 12,366.00 11,283.15 1,082.85 91.2

49.5
Dept:  29  Code Enforcement
500.12.00  Regular Salaries 13,312.00 9,024.00 4,288.00 67.8
500.21.00  FICA Taxes - Employer Portion 1,018.00 690.32 327.68 67.8
500.22.20  Retirement Town Employees 1,128.00 749.03 378.97 66.4
500.23.10  Statutory AD&D 53.00 0.00 53.00 0.0
500.24.00  Workers Compensation 166.00 0.00 166.00 0.0
500.25.00  Unemployment Compensation 43.00 9.00 34.00 20.9
520.40.00  Travel & Meetings 35.00 0.00 35.00 0.0
520.45.03  Auto Insurance 124.00 0.00 124.00 0.0
520.46.20  Vehicle Maintenance 250.00 0.00 250.00 0.0
520.51.00  Office Supplies 100.00 0.00 100.00 0.0
520.51.10  Postage 350.00 124.51 225.49 35.6
520.51.20  RECORDING COSTS 120.00 45.50 74.50 37.9
520.52.00  Uniforms 75.00 69.00 6.00 92.0
520.52.50  Gas & Oil 150.00 218.98 -68.98 146.0
520.54.10  Training & Schools 100.00 0.00 100.00 0.0268



64.2
Dept:  41  Public Works
500.12.00  Regular Salaries 155,000.00 122,567.34 32,432.66 79.1
500.14.00  Salaries Overtime 2,000.00 1,993.09 6.91 99.7
500.21.00  FICA Taxes - Employer Portion 11,858.00 9,943.55 1,914.45 83.9
500.22.20  Retirement Town Employees 13,129.00 10,207.08 2,921.92 77.7
500.23.01  Health Insurance 16,115.00 13,196.68 2,918.32 81.9
500.23.02  Life Insurance 180.00 197.00 -17.00 109.4
500.23.10  Statutory AD&D 159.00 159.00 0.00 100.0
500.24.00  Workers Compensation 2,000.00 1,153.25 846.75 57.7
500.25.00  Unemployment Compensation 496.00 130.24 365.76 26.3
530.34.10  Janitorial Service 0.00 1,159.00 -1,159.00 0.0
530.34.91  Landscaping 5,000.00 4,409.77 590.23 88.2
530.40.00  Travel & Meetings 200.00 0.00 200.00 0.0
530.43.50  Dump Service 2,000.00 500.00 1,500.00 25.0
530.46.12  Maintenance Supplies 7,000.00 369.06 6,630.94 5.3
530.46.15  Equipment Maintenance 4,000.00 695.26 3,304.74 17.4
530.46.20  Vehicle Maintenance 3,438.00 7,037.11 -3,599.11 204.7
530.46.30  Building Maintenance 5,000.00 4,769.83 230.17 95.4
530.46.31  Maintenance Old Town Hall 1,000.00 947.48 52.52 94.7
530.46.32  Ryckman House 2,000.00 221.00 1,779.00 11.1
530.46.34  Maintenance Ryckman Park 0.00 3,854.41 -3,854.41 0.0
530.46.35  Pier Maintenance 2,000.00 835.18 1,164.82 41.8
530.46.36  Pest Control 0.00 235.58 -235.58 0.0
530.46.37  Maintenance Ocean Park 0.00 3,275.14 -3,275.14 0.0
530.46.40  Grounds Maintenance 15,000.00 8,233.58 6,766.42 54.9
530.52.00  Uniforms 1,300.00 746.36 553.64 57.4
530.52.05  Protective Gear 600.00 1,221.21 -621.21 203.5
530.52.20  Tools & Hardware 2,600.00 2,193.45 406.55 84.4
530.52.25  TOOL RENTALS 3,000.00 611.10 2,388.90 20.4
530.52.50  Gas & Oil 2,900.00 2,729.84 170.16 94.1
530.53.10  Street Repair 3,000.00 4,007.16 -1,007.16 133.6
530.53.20  Street Signs 3,000.00 5,279.88 -2,279.88 176.0
530.54.10  Training & Schools 1,500.00 224.80 1,275.20 15.0
530.57.25  Welding 0.00 707.80 -707.80 0.0
530.64.01  Capital Outlay 44,500.00 40,952.26 3,547.74 92.0
530.71.00  PRINCIPAL RETIRED 11,592.00 11,592.00 0.00 100.0
530.72.00  Interest Expense 864.00 862.77 1.23 99.9

82.9
Dept:  72  Parks & Recreation
570.46.42  Park Beautification 1,600.00 1,667.30 -67.30 104.2
570.46.43  Tree Expense 0.00 400.00 -400.00 0.0
570.48.10  Founder's Day 5,000.00 782.14 4,217.86 15.6
570.48.50  Movies In The Park 1,400.00 830.00 570.00 59.3
570.48.52  Fourth of July 500.00 0.00 500.00 0.0
570.48.53  Christmas Decorations Park 250.00 1,368.10 -1,118.10 547.2
570.48.60  Easter Egg Hunt 50.00 0.00 50.00 0.0
570.63.01  Tennis Court Expeditures 500.00 0.00 500.00 0.0
570.63.02  BBall & VBall Courts 2,000.00 633.92 1,366.08 31.7
570.63.05  Bocce Court Expenditures 500.00 0.00 500.00 0.0

48.1

Total Expenditure Rate: 73.6

269



73.6

270



For the Period:  10/1/2019 to 7/31/2020
Target Expenditure Rate: 83%

Fund:  125 - Building Dept
Expenditures Original Bud. YTD Actual UnencBal % Bud
Dept:  24  Protective Inspections
500.12.00  Regular Salaries 73,284.00 54,887.96 18,396.04 74.9
500.14.00  Salaries Overtime 0.00 297.94 -297.94 0.0
500.21.00  FICA Taxes - Employer Portion 5,606.00 4,042.38 1,563.62 72.1
500.22.20  Retirement Town Employees 6,207.00 4,710.36 1,496.64 75.9
500.23.01  Health Insurance 16,301.00 15,375.52 925.48 94.3
500.23.02  Life Insurance 136.00 112.60 23.40 82.8
500.25.00  Unemployment Compensation 235.00 55.21 179.79 23.5
520.31.00  Professional Services 107,679.00 66,721.84 40,957.16 62.0
520.31.20  DRAINAGE SITE PLAN REVIEW 0.00 2,289.12 -2,289.12 0.0
520.40.00  Travel & Meetings 0.00 78.88 -78.88 0.0
520.51.00  Office Supplies 400.00 214.89 185.11 53.7
520.51.10  Postage 30.00 0.00 30.00 0.0
520.52.00  Uniforms 50.00 33.00 17.00 66.0
520.52.20  Tools & Hardware 60.00 0.00 60.00 0.0
520.54.00  Dues & Subscriptions 125.00 0.00 125.00 0.0
520.64.01  Capital Outlay 6,000.00 0.00 6,000.00 0.0
581.00.00  TRANSFER OUT 18,000.00 9,000.00 9,000.00 50.0

Total Expenditure Rate: 67.4

271





ITEM OPENED DUE DATE CLOSED REQUESTOR ASSIGNED TO 
Beach Access Parking 8/17/2019  7/15/2020 Mayor 

Simmons 
Town Manager 

DATE DIRECTION/NOTES 

6/3/2020 

TM presented proposals to Commission for resident decals and paid parking kiosks at Ocean Park. During STCM the 
Commission voted for resident-only (free) decal parking at end of street beach accesses – and resident-only (free) decal street 
parking in the "Golden Triangle" area, with no visitor passes.  The Commission approved Kiosk paid parking at both Ocean and 
Ryckman Park and further discussion regarding the amount that will be charged will be discussed at June RTCM. 

5/20/2020 

TM presented survey results. Commission voted to ask TM to get proposal for resident decals in the “Golden Triangle area; a 
proposal for paid parking at Ocean Park with budget costs including the potential effect on the PD; and a proposal for decal-
only parking at end of street beach access for residents w/limited number for guests.  Commission asked that these items be 
presented at the June TCM. 

5/6/2020 TCW Cancelled.  
4/15/2020 RTCM Cancelled.  
3/18/2020 To be discussed at May TCW 

3/13/2020 Original presentation at the March RTCM being rescheduled due to scheduling issue with Adam Meyers, who completed the 
data compilation.  Date TBD 

2/19/2020 The deadline for accepting surveys was February 18th.  The data has been compiled and graphs are being designed for 
presentation at the March RTCM. 

12/18/2019 The Commission voted 4-1 (Comm. Walters dissenting) to send the survey to residents in mid-January giving them 30 days to 
respond. 

11/20/2019 An update to the Beach parking survey was presented and discussed at this meeting.  The matter was tabled until the 
December 18th meeting so input from the absent Commissioners could be heard.  

11/6/2019 

At the November Workshop, the Commission discussed further what the survey should accomplish and how it should be 
structured (similar in format to the Beachcomber).  The Commission agreed that on-street parking should be addressed first 
followed by a breakdown of expenses and potential income.  An updated draft survey will be presented at the November 20th 
RTCM. 

10/16/2019 The Commission consented to having the Town Manager present a draft of the proposed survey at the November Workshop   

9/18/2019 

This was discussed at the 9/4 Workshop.  Mayor Simmons provided a compilation of the comments he received regarding this 
matter and they were varied.  We need to spell out to the residents why we are considering paid parking in different sections 
of Town.  A survey should be developed that outlines the 3 options under consideration and why each one is being 
considered.  Resident, end of street and Ocean Park parking should be presented as separate issues and presented to the 
residents in some fashion starting with identifying potential challenges. It's important for residents to know that the funds 
raised from the kiosks can only be used for OP maintenance.   Public input is essential. 

272



8/21/2019 

The Town Manager reported what she had found out about parking kiosks.  She talked to 3 vendors and 1 of them gave her a 
price of $6,800 - $7,000 per kiosk.  Payment can be made using several methods, upgrades are easy, fee amounts can be 
changed and there are a couple methods of enforcement. Bottom line, the kiosk can be tailored to our needs.  Mayor 
Simmons said the project would have to be done concurrently with the resident only, end of street/street parking plan.  The 
funds generated from kiosk parking must go back into improvements and maintenance of Ocean Park.   The Town Manager 
will gather more information and this topic will be readdressed at the September 4th Workshop. 

8/17/2019 

After considerable discussion, the Commission tasked the Town Manager with contacting the State of Florida to determine if 
we can charge for parking at Ocean Park, research parking kiosks, ask Indialantic how their meters affect businesses, develop 
a plan to designate resident only parking at beach accesses.  Parking passes for street parking (one side only) will be revisited 
at the 8/21/2019 meeting. 

ITEM OPENED DUE DATE CLOSED REQUESTOR ASSIGNED TO 
Collaborate w/Indialantic to 
make joint request to FDOT 
for reduction in speed limit 
on A1A to 35mph 

5/20/2020 8/19/2020  Commission Town Manager 

DATE DIRECTION/NOTES 
7/15/2020 TM attended workshop with Indialantic TM. Waiting on FDOT to make a decision. Will update in August if any developments.  
6/17/2020 Indialantic is in agreement. TM contacted FDOT and was asked to attend speed management workshop. Update at July RTCM. 
ITEM OPENED DUE DATE CLOSED REQUESTOR ASSIGNED TO 
Street Paving/Repaving 
Plan 

5/6/2020 8/19/2020  Commission Town Manager 

DATE DIRECTION/NOTES 

7/15/2020 Commission asked TM and PWS to create a color coded master plan map indicating projected dates/timeline of future 
projects.  

6/20/2020 RFP Bids will be presented at July RTCM 
6/3/2020 Commission asked for long term plan. TM will present findings at June RTCM. 
4/15/2020 RTCM Cancelled. 5/2020: TM said she received ballpark estimates from Commissioner Runte and BSE.  

02/26/2020 

The TM and PWS toured the streets that were slated for pavement.  Scott Glaubitz advised that several of the streets did not 
need to be paved just patched.  Mr. Glaubitz was not concerned about the road depression on Cherry and Rosewood.  The TM 
was advised to save the money set aside for paving this year and patch.  The larger much more expensive project will be the 
major curb replacement and repaving of Orange.   

2/19/2020 The TM said she talked to Scott Glaubitz about the roads but hasn't heard back from him.  Item being moved out to March 
RTCM. 

1/15/2020 The PWS and TM are meeting with B.S.E. in February; they don't want to spend money on paving until the road is evaluated. 

273



7/17/2019 

PW Supervisor showed on a map where the next block of paving will take place.  It's on the north end of Town and spans 2.84 
miles, is contiguous and is in an area where there are no upcoming stormwater projects. More preventive maintenance 
should be performed such as sealing cracks to stop water intrusion and sealing the roads.  Mayor Simmons suggested working 
with Indialantic when repaving contiguous areas. 

6/26/2019 
The PW Supervisor developed a map for the north, central and south sections of Town and is working on giving the roads 
grades determined by their condition.  The budget has enough for 3 miles of paving and the areas paved should be 
contiguous.  PW Supervisor to report back in July. 

5/15/2019 Interim Town Manager and the PW Supervisor are breaking the roads into contiguous zones and putting those zones in order 
of condition.  Looking to pave 3-5 miles of roads during FY 19/20. 

4/18/2019 TM said cost for one mile of paving will be approximately $66,000 but it will depend on depth and if millings will be needed. 
4/10/2019 BSE to review past paving plan.  They will see if we can piggyback onto Brevard County's contract with VA Paving. 
2/13/2019 Request delay until April 2019. 
1/16/2019 Town Manager is working with BSE to determine the order in which the roads should be paved based on condition. 
1/11/2019 BSE is scheduled to meet with the TM the week of 1/14/2019. 
10/17/2018 TM suggested working with our other approved engineering firm, Bowman Consulting, since they have expertise on this topic. 
10/11/2018 10/11/2018: Research is starting on replacement and preservation of our roadways.  
7/18/2018 Decide on one mile of paving or two miles of paving in FY 19/20 
6/20/2018 RFP bids to be presented at 7/18/2018 meeting 
ITEM OPENED DUE DATE CLOSED REQUESTOR ASSIGNED TO 
Charging Stations 11/20/2020 8/19/2020  Mayor Simmons EAB/TM 
DATE DIRECTION/NOTES 

7/15/2020 
TM shared that the offer from Tesla no longer available, meaning the charging stations are no longer free. They cost $500.  TM 
is looking at other options and will come back in August with information. Commission asked TM to look for similar offers 
and/or grants as Tesla was offering. 

6/17/2020 TM scheduled electricians Wednesday. First parking spot for bikes and two for charging stations. Update July RTCM 
6/3/2020 Commission asked TM to contact Tesla to see what they have to offer and share information at June RTCM. 
5/6/2020 May TCW Cancelled.  

3/18/2020 Commission suggested TM get with Tesla to see what they may offer - including getting one at no cost. To be discussed again 
at May TCW. 

3/13/2020 TM should receive recommendations from EAB on charging stations after the 3/25/2020 meeting.  

11/20/2019 
Because of the holidays, the EAB won't be meeting until the end of January at which time they will be notified of the request 
for them to look into charging stations. They will hopefully have some input for the March 2020 RTCM. 
 

274



ITEM OPENED DUE DATE CLOSED REQUESTOR ASSIGNED TO 
Employee 6-month 
Evaluations 

3/18/2020 8/19/2020  Commission Town Manager 

DATE DIRECTION/NOTES 
7/15/2020 TM has not received all evaluations. Will update in August.  
4/15/2020 RTCM cancelled. 
5/14/2020 TM said she had received only about half of the evaluations.  
6/3/2020 Commission moved this item to the July RTCM.  
ITEM OPENED DUE DATE CLOSED REQUESTOR ASSIGNED TO 
Code Enforcement 
Magistrate  

8/21/2019 8/19/2020  Mayor 
Simmons 

Town Manager & Town Attorney 

DATE DIRECTION/NOTES 
7/15/2020 TA Repperger said first reading will be at August RTCM. 
6/3/2020 TA said first reading will be at July RTCM. 
3/18/2020 TA moved this item to May RTCM. Attorney plans on First Read June 2020. 
2/19/2020 The Town Attorney said he will have a draft Ordinance at the March RTCM. 
1/15/2020 The Town Attorney asked that this be moved out another month. 

11/20/2019 This item relates to the ordinance change and not the Special Magistrate agreement that will be revisited by the Commission 
at the December RTCM.  The Town Attorney asked that this be moved out to January 2020.                                                         

9/18/2019 
TA Repperger said a code change will be required to change from Code Board to  Special Magistrate enforcement.  The 
Commission consented to having the TA move forward with writing an ordinance.  The Mayor asked the TM to get in touch 
with the Code Board members, as a courtesy, to let them know the Commission is thinking about a Special Magistrate.   

8/21/2019 

Town Attorney Repperger and Town Manager Mascaro weighed in on the efficiency of having a Special Magistrate instead of 
a Code Board; a Magistrate would streamline the process.  The cost could be assessed to the resident and the Code would 
have to be changed. The cost runs between $125 and $150 per hour.  The Town Manager was tasked with presenting options 
to the Commission about the handling of code hearings. 

ITEM OPENED DUE DATE CLOSED REQUESTOR ASSIGNED TO 
Comprehensive plan for 
safe pedestrian and bike 
routes 

9/27/2017 8/19/2020  Vice Mayor 
Hoover 

Town Manager 

DATE DIRECTION/NOTES 

6/17/2020 Study didn’t find any new walkways/bike paths. TM asked to investigate other option like stenciling/painting roads. Update 
August RTCM 

275



3/18/2020 Study will be completed in June.  
7/17/2019 The awarded grant funds a study that will be completed by June 2020.  To be revisited at the March RTCM. 
7/1/2019 The Opportunity for Green Infrastructure Adaptation Planning grant was awarded in the amount of $39,500 
4/18/2019 Waiting for grant award notification 

4/11/2019 
Paperwork was submitted for this grant on 1/31/2019.   If granted, funds ($39,500) will be used to develop a plan as to how 
MB could improve stormwater management, improve water quality and provide recreational/aesthetic amenities in light of 
future climate conditions such as sea level rise.  Work would begin on July 1, 2019 if we are awarded the grant. 

3/20/2019 TM will research to determine if previous TM submitted paperwork for this grant. 

2/12/2019 Town applied for a Florida DEP resiliency planning grant on January 31, 2019 in partnership with the Eastern Central Florida 
Planning Council and are awaiting word as to our acceptance. 

1/11/2019 There is a planning grant on the January RTCM agenda. 

8/9/2018 This will be a long-term project as funding and development of a trail way must be completed. Request review in January, 
2019. 

7/13/2019 TM Daniels is attending a meeting on Bike trails on July 18, 2018. 

9/27/2018 
 In lieu of moving forward with the Safe Routes to School grant program, Commissioner Hoover recommended that the Town 
focus their energy on a more comprehensive plan with emphasis placed on stormwater management.  The Commission 
agreed by consensus to his suggestion and to add this item to the Action List. 

5/7/2018 Currently there are no grant programs for this project. Some possibilities are to install sidewalks in conjunction with some 
stormwater replacement in some areas like Andrews Drive. 

3/30/2018 

Bicycle safety was addressed as it relates to safe routes to school and A-1-A at a meeting with FDOT and SCTPO. Unfortunately 
without funding from DOT, the money necessary for sidewalks puts this project in the future. Hearing that FDOT does not 
expect any grant opportunities in the future, one option is to include sidewalks/bicycle paths in any stormwater sewer 
project. 

2/21/2018 2/21/2018: Commissioner Hoover and TM Daniels have been told a meeting with FDOT will be scheduled towards the end of 
this week. 

1/17/2018 Town Manager Daniels is meeting with FDOT during the week of January 21. 
12/20/2017 Town Manager Daniels will meet with DOT after the holiday. 
ITEM OPENED DUE DATE CLOSED REQUESTOR ASSIGNED TO 
Establish Salary Ranges 7/17/2019 8/19/2020  Commission Town Manager 
DATE DIRECTION/NOTES 
6/17/2020 Commission pushed this item to the August RTCM 
3/18/2020 TM presented Salary Survey to Commission. Further discussion pushed to June RTCM.  
3/4/2020 Town Manager presented salary survey (all positions) at workshop.  Suggestions made to eliminate some towns used for 

276



comparison purposes.  The updated data will be used to present to the Commission at the RTCM on 3/18/2020. 

2/19/2020 The Town Manager gave the Commission a copy of salary ranges from neighboring communities to be used as guidelines.  
Salary ranges still need to be created for MB employees and will be discussed further at the March Workshop.  

1/5/2020 The Town Manager asked that this be moved out another month. 
7/17/2019 Town Manager to conduct research and provide a salary range for each job in the Town. 
ITEM OPENED DUE DATE CLOSED REQUESTOR ASSIGNED TO 
FDOT traffic light stanchion 
maintenance  

2/19/2020 8/19/2020  Commissioner 
Walters 

PW Supervisor 

DATE DIRECTION/NOTES 
6/3/2020 PW Supervisor said Town is on the wait list. Commission pushed item to August RTCM. 
4/15/2020 April RTCM cancelled.  PWS submitted request to FDOT. 

2/19/2020 Commissioner Walters said the traffic light stanchions on Ocean Avenue are in need of serious maintenance.  The PWS will 
contact DOT and will have an update at the March RTCM.  The project is likely to take a long time to complete.  

ITEM OPENED DUE DATE CLOSED REQUESTOR ASSIGNED TO 
Sheds on Corner Lots 11/20/2019 8/19/2020  Commission Town Attorney 
DATE DIRECTION/NOTES 
6/3/2020 April P&Z cancelled. TA will send to July P & Z and bring back to August RTCM. 
3/18/2020 Commission moved to send to P & Z and revisit at June RTCM.  
3/4/2020 Presented at workshop.  Commission moved 4/1/2020 workshop. 

2/19/2020 The Town Manager is contacting the Town Planner about this matter in order to address it further at the Planning & Zoning 
meeting on February 3rd, prior to the Workshop. 

12/18/2019 
The Town Planner and staff have some options to address this issue that will be presented to the Planning & Zoning Board in 
January at which point the matter will be brought back to the Commission. 

11/20/2019 A resident asked about the Code restriction related to the placement of sheds on corner lots.  After Commission discussion, 
the issue was placed on the Action List to discuss and perhaps address at a later date.  

ITEM OPENED DUE DATE CLOSED REQUESTOR ASSIGNED TO 
Social Media Policy  6/3/2020 8/19/2020  Commission Town Staff 
DATE DIRECTION/NOTES 
6/3/2020 Commission directed Town staff to create a social media policy for the Town. 
ITEM OPENED DUE DATE CLOSED REQUESTOR ASSIGNED TO 
Establish Facebook Pages 6/3/2020 8/19/2020  Commission Town Staff 
DATE DIRECTION/NOTES 
6/3/2020 Commission directed Town staff to establish a plan for Facebook page management 

277



ITEM OPENED DUE DATE CLOSED REQUESTOR ASSIGNED TO 
Research availability & 
compensation for Bld. Off. 

1/15/2020 9/16/2020  Commission Town Manager 

DATE DIRECTION/NOTES 
3/18/2020 TM presented salary data and starting search. Mayor said salary can't exceed $95,000. Further discussion September RTCM 

3/4/2020 Town Manager presented salary survey at workshop.  Some towns eliminated for comparison purposes.  The data for Building 
Officials will be used to present to the Commission at the RTCM on 3/18/2020. 

2/19/2020 
The Town Manager talked to somebody who was interested in the job but in a matter of days, accepted a job in Rockledge.  
Compensation is less than they all thought.  A former employee, Rob Perry, is now working for Safebuilt and will be working 
for us on Wednesdays until Ken (the building inspector) returns.   

1/15/2020 
The Commission approved the Safebuilt contract for one more year (5-0).  Because Marc Meyers is retiring soon and their 
rates will be raised next renewal period, the Commission tasked the Town Manager with doing a salary survey for Building 
Officials and to determine availability. 

ITEM OPENED DUE DATE CLOSED REQUESTOR ASSIGNED TO 
ADA Compliance 3/20/2019 9/16/2020  Commission Town Clerk 
DATE DIRECTION/NOTES 
7/15/2020 TC uploaded ADA compliant minutes for 2020 to Town website. Will update progress again in September.  

6/3/2020 
The TC (who is new) reported that ADA compliance cannot be achieved in a short-time frame – but rather – is part of a long-
term goal that could take between 6 – 12 months to implement. The TC will give updates to the Commission on the progress 
made. Next update scheduled for July RTCM.  

4/15/2020 RTCM Cancelled. TC and AA received training and TC implemented new Agenda platform. TC and AA received ADA training 
and continue to work on ADA compliance. 

2/19/2020 
Software installation/training isn't happening until April so with luck, our April RTCM packet will be generated utilizing the 
new Granicus Peak software.  This isn't going to solve our ADA issues but it will allow for the cover page and compliant 
memo's, etc., to be available online.   

12/18/2019 

The Town Clerk reported that nothing has really changed regarding solutions to the ADA issue.  Having a notice on the website 
saying we are updating our site to be compliant is now sufficient to fend off lawsuits.   After our new agenda software is up 
and running, the TC will see how feasible it is to upload agenda packets (or partial packets).  Currently, agendas and minutes 
are on the website and she'll be working on modifying the last 2 to 3 years of resolutions and ordinances for placement on the 
Town's website. 

6/26/2019 

Estimates received for closed captioning would cost about $16,000/year. Commission meeting audio is available at 
Soundcloud.com.  The problem still lies with the uncertainty involved in being 100% compliant; nobody quite knows how to 
determine compliance.   
 

278



4/18/2019 

Town Clerk is working with other municipalities to determine the best way to deal with compliance.  There isn't a clear 
understanding of a protocol to follow and many entities that thought they are compliant are not.  If the information is 
available to non-disabled people on a website but not available to disabled people, a lawsuit can be filed.  If the information is 
not posted at all, we stand a better chance of not being targeted.   

3/20/2019 

The TC reported that many counties and municipalities have been sued because their sites aren't ADA compliant.  She 
disabled a lot of the files on our website and is researching what will be needed for us to be 100% compliant as we add 
content and as we republish older content. 
 

12/19/2018 Commission decided to move this out until April 2019 
12/10/2018 The master plan will be worked on at a later date after current projects have been completed.  
11/9/2018 Meeting moved to December 5,2018 
10/17/2018 BSE to discuss at November 7th Workshop 
10/11/2018 BSE will start on the updates to the master plan once the current projects are completed and Cherry at Rosewood is analyzed. 
9/12/2018 A new roadway collapse happened at Rosewood and Elm which will start repairs on Monday 9/17/2018. 

8/9/2018 The original project at Rosewood and Dogwood is complete. Three underground drains are being installed because of the high 
water table at the location. 

7/18/2018 Town Manager was tasked with getting a Master Stormwater Plan from B.S.E. with associated cost. 
7/13/2018 The project started this week on Rosewood at Dogwood and the project on Oak south of Cherry will start on July 19, 2018. 
6/14/2018  Two project bids are on the agenda for the June RTCM as well as the approval for Andrews. 
5/10/2018 Public Works crew completed surface trench work on Third Ave at the River for the storm water sewer. 

5/9/2018 RFP was advertised for two projects, Oak south of Cherry and Rosewood at Dogwood with scheduled bid opening for May 
24th. 

4/25/2018 
Video equipment could not be utilized due to severe blockage in pipe on Andrews Drive. The Vacuum truck worked for six 
hours and was not able to remove the entire blockage. BSE will meet with the Town during week of May 14th to discuss 
options. 

4/12/2018 

Received communication on Andrews Drive project that the surface drainage solution would not work due to the amount of 
water that needed draining. The existing pipe will be videotaped and forwarded to BSE. The remaining Tier one projects are 
progressing and we should have some answers week of 4/16. The baffle boxes are scheduled for cleaning on April 25 and 26. 
Public Works will be repairing a surface outflow on Third Avenue at the River. 

2/22/2018 Communication to BSE relaying the approval and requesting a time-line. 

2/21/2018 Commission approved $28,800 for engineering services to BSE for the 5 priority locations. The Commission also authorized up 
to 18 hours of engineering fees to BSE to review new material and documents from the former engineer.  

1/17/2018 Vote granted B.S.E. up to 10 hours to evaluate the spots located at Rosewood/Dogwood, Oak/Cherry and Andrews in order 
for them to develop remediation plan. 

279



1/10/2018 B.S.E. reviewed boxes of new material and requested material from our last engineering firm.  It was to be voted on at the 
1/17/18 meeting how many hours we would grant B.S.E. to work on the three hotspots in Town 

12/20/2017 B.S.E. is modifying the quote presented at the 12/6/17 meeting based on new material received from the Town that needs to 
be reviewed.  Will present new findings at 1/10/18 Workshop. 

11/15/2017 At the December 6th Workshop, our engineering consultant, B.S.E., will be present to discuss the Town's stormwater issues. 
10/18/2017 The Commission agreed by consensus to discuss stormwater management at the November 1, 2017 Workshop. 

9/27/2017 In tandem with Commissioner Hoover's comprehensive plan for safe pedestrian and bike routes, a stormwater plan needs to 
be implemented.  The Commission agreed by consensus to place this on the Action List.  

ITEM OPENED DUE DATE CLOSED REQUESTOR ASSIGNED TO 
Fire Tax Briefings 6/26/2019 2/3/2021  Commission Town Manager 
DATE DIRECTION/NOTES 
2/5/2020 The Commission push out item until they can determine effectiveness of stipend plan 
12/18/2020 The Commission decided this should be discussed at the February 2020 Workshop. 
10/21/2019 Survey regarding fire services and a referendum on ballot to be discussed at workshop.   
8/21/2019 FD present options at Workshop.  Comm discuss fire tax/dedicated department fund. 
6/26/2019 TM to get information regarding fire taxes so Commission to make an educated decision  
 

280





From: Scott Glaubitz

To: Melbourne Beach Town Manager

Subject: RE: Town of Melbourne Beach -Orange Street RFP

Date: Thursday, August 13, 2020 2:25:03 PM

Unfortunately no, can we slip it a month? Sorry.
Scott Glaubitz PE; PLS
BSE Consultants, Inc.
312 So. Harbor City Blvd.
Melbourne, Fl. 32901
Cell 321-403-1436
Office 321-725-3674
sglaubitz@bseconsult.com

From: Melbourne Beach Town Manager 
Sent: Thursday, August 13, 2020 12:18 PM
To: Scott Glaubitz 
Subject: FW: Town of Melbourne Beach -Orange Street RFP
Hi Scott,
Have you had an opportunity to decide upon a cost to prepare the RFP and hold the pre-bid
meeting? The Commission meeting is next week, so I need to give the Clerk information by
tomorrow, if possible.
Thanks,

Elizabeth Mascaro
Town Manager
townmanager@melbournebeachfl.org
507 Ocean Ave., Melbourne Beach, FL 32951-2523
(321) 724-5860 Fax (321) 984-8994
www.melbournebeachfl.org

Brevard County’s Oldest Beach Community – Established 1883
Under Florida law, e-mail addresses are public records. If you do not want your e-mail address released in response to a public-records request, do not send electronic
mail to this entity. Instead, contact this office by phone or in writing.
CONFIDENTIALITY NOTICE: This electronic transmission, including any attachments, may contain confidential information that is legally privileged and exempt from
disclosure. The information is intended only for the use of the individual or entity named above. If the reader of this message is not the intended recipient or any
employee/agent responsible for delivering the message to that recipient, you are hereby notified that any disclosure, dissemination, copying, distribution or the taking
of any action in reliance on the contents of this confidential information is strictly prohibited. If you have received this communication in error, please destroy it and
immediately notify me at townmanager@melbournebeachfl.org or (321) 724-5860.

From: Melbourne Beach Town Manager 
Sent: Wednesday, July 22, 2020 3:02 PM
To: Scott Glaubitz (SGlaubitz@bseconsult.com)
Cc: PW Supervisor; Melbourne Beach Finance
Subject: Town of Melbourne Beach -Orange Street RFP
Hi Scott,
I hope all is well with you.
I have asked the Commission’s permission to have BSE prepare the RFP, hold the pre-bid meeting

mailto:SGlaubitz@bseconsult.com
mailto:townmanager@melbournebeachfl.org
mailto:townmanager@melbournebeachfl.org
http://www.melbournebeachfl.org/
mailto:townmanager@melbournebeachfl.org
mailto:SGlaubitz@bseconsult.com


and open the bids/make recommendations on awarding the project. I need to know what your
approximate cost would be to provide these services to the Town.
I would like to present your cost to the Commission at the next regular meeting on August 19, 2020.
Let me know if you have any questions.
Best regards,

Elizabeth Mascaro
Town Manager
townmanager@melbournebeachfl.org
507 Ocean Ave., Melbourne Beach, FL 32951-2523
(321) 724-5860 Fax (321) 984-8994
www.melbournebeachfl.org

Brevard County’s Oldest Beach Community – Established 1883
Under Florida law, e-mail addresses are public records. If you do not want your e-mail address released in response to a public-records request, do not send electronic
mail to this entity. Instead, contact this office by phone or in writing.
CONFIDENTIALITY NOTICE: This electronic transmission, including any attachments, may contain confidential information that is legally privileged and exempt from
disclosure. The information is intended only for the use of the individual or entity named above. If the reader of this message is not the intended recipient or any
employee/agent responsible for delivering the message to that recipient, you are hereby notified that any disclosure, dissemination, copying, distribution or the taking
of any action in reliance on the contents of this confidential information is strictly prohibited. If you have received this communication in error, please destroy it and
immediately notify me at townmanager@melbournebeachfl.org or (321) 724-5860.

mailto:townmanager@melbournebeachfl.org
http://www.melbournebeachfl.org/
mailto:townmanager@melbournebeachfl.org

	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	ADPF5D9.tmp
	22.02 Definitions and References
	22.03 Directives

	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	ADP8651.tmp
	Town Manager Report for July 2020

	Blank Page
	ADP41C6.tmp
	Permits Issued query

	CE Monthly Reoprt 072020.pdf
	Sheet1

	ADPCFBA.tmp
	Sheet1

	Blank Page
	ADP42A8.tmp
	Sheet1

	ADP8EA7.tmp
	Sheet1

	Blank Page
	Blank Page



